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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwRE

Our company, China Regenerative Medicine International Limited
(“CRMI” or the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries. the
“Group”), has been evolving — we changed the annual report date.
Now our financial year end date has changed to 31 December, in line
with the end date of Gregorian Calendar year. This report covers the
eight months ended 31 December 2017.

We were not totally immunised from the recent turbulence in the
global stock market. Our share price ended lower than the beginning
of this report period, which is disappointing. This is just another
reminder that no public company can be isolated from international
influence and we must remain open-minded and embrace the world
as a whole. We whole-heartedly thank our shareholders for their
patience and understanding.

| would also like to thank our distributors, collaborators and partners,
who helped us to bring our products to the patients, and our
employees in CRMI for their contributions to the Company.

I would like to end my brief report with important positive notes. The
Group invested in a fund, the Haitong International ZhongHua Finance
Acquisition Fund I, L.P (the “Fund”), and the latter completed the
acquisition of the business of Obagi Medical Products, Inc (“Obagi”).
in November 2017. Obagi is a well-known U.S cosmeceuticals brand.
As a result of our investment in the Fund and the Fund’s acquisition
of Obagi, the Group has the opportunity to explore collaboration with
Obagi directly, which will be strategically important to the Group to
link regenerative medicine to cosmeceuticals. Another exciting news
is CRMI attained the Hong Kong’s Most Valuable Companies Awards
(HKMVC) and we were recognised for our ‘leading research and
development (“R&D”) capabilities, extraordinarily product quality and
high acknowledgement’ in the market. We know we are good, but it is
always pleasing to know other people believe we are good too.

Professor Zhanfeng Cui, PhD, DSc, FREng
27 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L T

The Group further deepened and refined various management
systems under the strategic planning of further strengthening its
industrial layout and market expansion in the period from 1 May 2017
to 31 December 2017 (“Fiscal Year 2017”) and continued its effective
promotion of the four main lines of management and control, namely
operation management, financial management, human resources
management and technical management, to continuously improve
the management standards of the enterprise, and at the same time,
achieved good results on the expansion of various industrial chains
such as tissue engineering, cosmetics and cells as well as investment
and merge and acquisition (“M&A”) businesses.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

. Further consolidated the foundation of the Group’s
management

Following the planning and reviewing of fiscal year 2016, the
Group clearly defined four main lines of management and
control, namely the operation management line, financial
management line, human resources management line
and technical management line, and fully implemented the
Group’s operation and management of various divisions and
subsidiaries. At the same time, it established the “2+3” business
strategy, defined Fiscal Year 2017 as the “Year of Management
Effectiveness”, set “Management Improvement” and
“Operational Effectiveness” as the objectives and established
a business strategy of focusing on the market and striving
for effectiveness, so as to continuously improve the Group’s
operating results.

On this basis, in Fiscal Year 2017, the Group continued
to optimize and refine various management systems and
management processes, strengthened operation and
management system construction and system optimization,
improved financial accounting management system and
optimized the approval process, and formulated a performance
appraisal system for all employees and implemented the system
to improve management efficiency, which have all shown
good results. By constantly consolidating the foundation of
the Group’s management, the rights and responsibilities of the
three-tier organizational system, i.e. the Group, the business
divisions and the subsidiaries, have been clearly defined,
bringing smoother communication and improved management.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

11.

.

Further strengthened budget management and
performance management

The Group started full-scale budget management and
performance appraisal in Fiscal Year 2017 to further clarify
responsibilities and promote the implementation of various
business objectives. Through budget management and
business performance appraisal, the performance objectives
awareness of each unit’s management teams was further
enhanced, and the operating responsibilities of each unit
were further clarified, which highlighted the management- and
performance-centered management tone of Group.

In the meantime, in implementing performance management
in the human resources system, the Group formulated a
performance appraisal scheme to fully mobilize its staff, further
improving the construction of the Group’s human resources
management system and enhancing the standards of human
resources management.

Further optimized the industrial structure

In Fiscal Year 2017, the Group further advanced its industrial
layout in accordance with the management standards and
status of each industry segment of the Group, added the newly
acquired industries to the Group’s industrial segments and
optimized its organizational structure.

1. Cosmetics segment restructuring and introduction
of a new product line

According to the strategy of the Group’s cosmetics
business of comprehensive introduction of international
brands, the Group further implemented the requirements
of the Board of Directors on accelerating market-oriented
operation and enhancing the profitability of the Company
by adjusting the product lines structure of its original
cosmetics sector, stopping the operation of AMYbio
cosmetics and strengthening the market expansion of the
Ascara product lines.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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11.

.

R EEEERELEE

REBA0N1 7T FFG - 2EHETREEE
MEEREERTIE - AE—TREEE -
HEZERAKLLZAR - BBRREEENL
LEREEZ E—IRESTEEULEER
BB RERRER £ THETSEM
REEE SETEESEER  BXRENE
ESE e

R - EANERERETEREETE
SENETERERSTR  ROBAHETT
FERIE  E—FPTETREANEREE
BERER  RBATANEREEKF -

E—HEILERSE

REBEE2017HMF - RESEZEXRRR
MR EKF R ERIRGIR - E— T HEEERM
B BB HERMASEERRSRE - [
R SRR BT T T B -

1. LR RBETEERE  HAMBE
ﬂ%/&%

RIBAE B CimiRiE 2 H 5| AR
MR LR E—FEREEES
SRR INRMIS(CER - REARI&F
BENMER - KEHFEA(CHmIREH
EmARETT T SRR - (3 LML
AL - IR KR ERZNT
BHE

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

.

V.

Further optimized the industrial structure (Cont’d)

2.  Market launch and effective linkage between
mainland China and Hong Kong in the cell segment

The cell segment is a brand-new business of the Group
starting from Fiscal Year 2017 to explore a chain of
cell storage and services that effectively connects the
Group’s subsidiaries in Tianjin and Suzhou as well as
the subsidiary currently being set up in Changzhou
and Hong Kong International Regenerative Center and
BioCell Technology Limited. The Group formed a cell
marketing team in the Cell Division in Beijing and laid out
marketing plans to cover the domestic regional markets.
Through service function improvement and service flow
optimization of the Hong Kong International Regenerative
Center, we have formed a synergy for the cell businesses
in mainland China and Hong Kong.

Further expanded the Group’s domestic industrial
Strategic layout

In order to realize the effective integration and rational
distribution of existing industries and future businesses of the
Group, through repeated inspections in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), the Group decided to start by establishing
an international research institute in Shanghai, which will take
the lead in forming an industries park for the related tissue
engineering, cell and cosmetic segments and the product
lines proposed to be acquired through investment and M&A to
achieve the Group’s new industrial strategic layout in the PRC
through setting up an important strategic foothold in Shanghai.

The Group has set up an investment and development center in
Shanghai and decided to invest in Shanghai Lingang Songjiang
Science and Technology Park after inspecting various industries
parks in Shanghai. We are currently conducting further
communication and expect to finalize the investment-related
plan and sign the cooperation agreement in January of fiscal
year 2018.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Further accelerated investment and M&A, and
explored new products and new channels

The Group has always been committed to finding suitable
business opportunities to further enrich its existing product lines
in the areas of tissue engineering and cosmetics, etc.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
31 March 2017, 18 July 2017 and 7 November 2017, China
Regenerative Medicine Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, subscribed a limited partnership interest in
Haitong International ZhongHua Finance Acquisition Fund I, L.P.
(the “Fund”) with an investment commitment of US$35 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$272 million). The Fund was set
up to invest in companies in the skin care and medical products
industries. In November 2017, the Fund completed the full
acquisition of the business of Obagi Medical Products (“Obagi”),
a US drug store brand under the international biopharmaceutical
company, Valeant Pharmaceuticals International, Inc. In
order for the Group to fully realise the benefits of the Fund’s
acquisition of Obagi, and through the Group’s investment in
the Fund, the Group is exploring the opportunity to collaborate
with Obagi to customize its products for sale and distribution
through the Company’s networks in Greater China. As Obagi
is a leading US professional skin care brand, which introduced
Nu-Derm as early as in 1988 to specialise in professional skin
care products, its stellar products will become the knock-out
products to be sold and distributed through the Group, and
will deepen the Group’s presence in the drug store industry
and become a new profit contribution driver. Obagi’s products
include:

Obagi C20 Whitening Lotion: significantly improves skin tone,
and could be referred to as the most effective whitening
essence.

Obagi C10 Whitening Lotion: developed specially for Asian skin,
it uses patented technology to help VC better penetrate the skin
to ensure that the skin can be truly absorb VC.

Obagi Skin Correction Gel: contains 4% Obagi-HQ Factor,
which corrects the entire skin tone and inhibits skin
pigmentation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

V.

Further accelerated investment and M&A, and
explored new products and new channels (Cont’d)

Obagi Eye Cream: a refreshing moisturizing eye cream and a
unique formula to effectively alleviate the dryness of delicate eye
skin.

Obagi Healthy Skin Repair Series: systematically improves the
skin texture and helps the skin restore healthy young radiance.

Further, as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 December 2017, the Group entered into a framework
agreement in relation to the acquisition of Lung Hang
Investments Limited, a pharmaceutical company, the sales and
distribution networks of which in the production, distribution,
trading and sales of Chinese patent medicines, chemical raw
medicine, biochemical products, chemical pharmaceuticals and
health food products can help with the channel expansion of
the Group’s existing tissue engineering and other products.

Further expanded the market to improve business
performance

The Group set out to expand its market of various product
lines, enhance its product awareness and market share in the
Fiscal Year 2017. The Group formulated a detailed business
plan and market expansion strategy at the beginning of Fiscal
Year 2017 and integrated resources to fully support such
plans and strategy. Through continuous efforts throughout the
period, all product lines achieved good results in terms of sales
performance and recorded a significant year-on-year growth
comparing to fiscal year 2016, thus laying the foundation for
further market development in fiscal year 2018.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Further expanded the market to improve business
performance (Cont’d)

At present, products and operations for each business line of
the Group are as follows:

1.

Tissue engineering product line

The Group’s tissue engineering product lines are situated
in our three subsidiaries in Xi’an, Shaanxi and Shenzhen.
The tissue engineering products include:

(1)

@)

Tissue Engineered Skin with Living Human Cells —
ActivSkin®

ActivSkin®, being the first tissue-engineered skin
approved by China Food and Drug Administration,
is the only tissue-engineered skin containing living
cells in the PRC. It is mainly used for healing deep
2nd degree and 3rd degree burn and scald wounds.
It can relieve pain, shorten healing time and reduce
scars in treating burns and scalds.

Acellular Corneal Stroma — Acornea

Acornea is the world’s first bio-engineering cornea
that has completed clinical trials and has been
successfully launched to market, establishing
China’s leading position in regenerative medicine
research of corneal disease in the world. The total
effective rate of clinical trials of Acornea reached
94.44% with the healing effect similar to that of
donated cornea. In 2016, Acornea was reported
by BBC as one of the five major scientific and
technological revolutions from China, which had
great contributions to the world. Its academic status
allowed China to seize the initiative in the field of
biomedical competition in the world.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Further expanded the market to improve business
performance (Cont’d)

1.

Tissue engineering product line (Cont’d)

&

(4)

)

Calcined Bovine Bone — Gegreen

Gegreen is a protein-detracted bone substitute
material for inducing natural bone regeneration,
which is the first independently developed material
for oral bone grafts in the PRC. It is made by
extracting material from epiphysis cancellous bone
of bovine femur, and then goes through the process
of virus inactivation, degreasing, protein detracting
and low-temperature calcination. It is extensively
used for jawbone defect restoration, particularly in
dental implantation and treatment of periodontal
defects.

Acellular Anal Fistula Repair Stroma — Asiunin

Asiunin is applied to simple anal fistula disease
without going through fistulotomy operation which
is traditionally used to cure anal fistula in western
medicine. Fistulotomy operation has a chance to
harm the sphincter muscle and causes relapses. It is
believed that the relapse rate when using Asiunin for
simple anal fistula is comparatively lower, bringing
in revolutionary changes to anal fistula treatment.
It can completely reshape the perianal tissue and
protect the anal sphincter mechanism. Through
minimally invasive operation, it can speed up the
healing rate and shorten the hospitalization period.

Oral Cavity Repair Membrane with Excellent
Regeneration Capacity — Megreen

Megreen, a new product developed by Shaanxi
Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, is currently in the process of applying
for registration. Megreen is made from the
bovine pericardium tissue with collagen as the
main component through decellularization, virus
inactivation and other treatments, which retains a
natural three dimensional structure. Megreen can
be widely used in the repair of oral cavity tissue with
its advantages of natural double-layer membrane
structure, superior mechanical performance and
longer degradation time.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Further expanded the market to improve business
performance (Cont’d)

1. Tissue engineering product line (Cont’d)

©

Cell Sheet-Autologous Chondrocyte Implantation —
CS-ACI

CS-ACI is a cartilage repair technology based
on the world’s leading cell sheet preparative
technology. It is used for tissue repair and functional
reconstruction of damaged articular cartilage. As
the first 4th generation of autologous chondrocyte
treatment technology developed by China, CSACI
is used to produce transparent cartilage as a
substitute for exogenous material to avoid cell loss.
In addition, since suture is not necessary and it
takes shorter time in the operation, it has a broad
clinical prospect.

2. Cosmetics product line

(1)

Skincare cosmetics brand — Ascara

The Group imports the original skincare cosmetics
brand — Ascara with a history of more than 40 years
from Switzerland. Ascara has various functions,
such as skin relieving, anti-aging, skin whitening,
anti-freckle and so on. It is a foreign high-end
skincare product line targeted at the mass market.
It has built an omni-channel sales network centering
DS and then radiating to CS, covering e-commerce
platforms and assisted by regional distributors.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

VI.  Further expanded the market to improve business
performance (Cont’d)

3.

Cell storage, preparation and services product line

Currently, the Group has established four cell storage
and preparation centers in Tianjin, Suzhou (Jiangsu
Province), Changzhou (Jiangsu Province) and Hong Kong.
Further, the Group established Hong Kong International
Regenerative Centre to address healthcare needs of
customers at home and abroad.

(1)

@

Tianjin Weikai

The Group’s subsidiary Tianjin Weikai focuses on
the R&D and applications of cell culture equipment
and cell products, as well as providing cell-related
outsourcing technical services. The self-developed
3DFlo cell culture instrument ensured the high
quality cell reproduction and established an in
vitro model to simulate in-vivo physical condition
by utilizing automated continuous perfusion cell
culture technology. Meanwhile, Tianjin Weikai has
established a close cooperation relationship with
Institute of Chemical Physics, Chinese Academy of
Sciences and other scientific research institutes at
home and abroad.

AK Suzhou

In 2016, the Group’s subsidiary AK (Suzhou)
expanded the Phase Il Cell Preparation Center. It
provides high standards of service and equipment
for cell clinical research, testing and applications
leveraging on the Oxford R&D team’s unique cell
processing technology and reagent formula. Its
core technologies include human cell separation,
purification, cultivation, amplification, storage and
transportation, as well as the development and
production of automated closed cell bioreactors.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Further expanded the market to improve business
performance (Cont’d)

3.

Cell storage, preparation and services product line
(Cont’d)

(&

(4)

(&,

Changzhou branch company, Jiangsu Province

Changzhou branch company of the Group has
been identified as the technology transformation
unit of Engineering Technology Research Center for
Tumor Immunotherapy of Jiangsu Province, mainly
responsible for industrial transformation and clinical
applications of the R&D results achieved by the
center. The scope of business mainly covers cellular
therapy, cell storage, genetic testing, biological
agents manufacturing.

Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre

The Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre
(“HKIRC”), being the first large-scale comprehensive
health care base for precision medicine in Hong
Kong, was established by the Group at the Miramar
Center in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. In possession
of precise medical technology, combining with
precise physical examination and genetic testing,
the centre aims to provide precise healthcare
to meet the physical and mental needs from
customers, including precise cellular therapy and
precise medical beauty.

BioCell Technology Limited

Located at Phase 3 of Hong Kong Science Park in
Shatin, our China Stem Cell Clinical Applications
Centre has started construction. Stem cell clinical
application facilities meet the clean room standards
from EMA, FDA, CFDA, TGA and GMP PIC/S. As
Asia’s first international cell and gene preparation
center.

Hospital Management Division of the Group

The Group has obtained approval to establish a
comprehensive medical institution in Hainan Bo’ao
Lecheng International Medical Tourism Zone to further
enrich and expand the Group’s industrial lines and
channels. The planning and design of the proposed
hospital was completed in 2017, with steady progress
made to date.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

VI, Further expanded the market to improve business
performance (Cont’d)

5.  Overseas Business Division of the Group

The Group has completed the establishment and began
operation of its offices in the United States and the United
Kingdom, and the Japanese office is being set-up. In
Fiscal Year 2017, with active expansion of overseas
offices, it has established contacts with a number of
companies and channels. The overseas sales of its
tissue engineering products have already entered the
implementation phase.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Group initiated market strategies and operational policies outright
during the year. By fully optimising its organisational structure,
integrating operational teams, seeking quality talent with extensive
industrial experience, and streamlining the management system and
process, the Group further improved its industrial layout and market
expansion. Besides, technology and product upgrades enabled the
Group to cater to market and clinical application needs.

Meanwhile, the Group invested and established its own international
research institute in Shanghai to strengthen cooperation with
scientific research institutes at home and abroad, including Oxford
University. In order to continuously enhance the Group’s technology
competitiveness of products and its role as an industry leader, the
Group expanded the scope of product research and development
as well as application of its products for commercial use. All these
ensured the sustainable, healthy and steady development of the
Group.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The fiscal year 2018 is an important year for the industrial strategic
layout and market expansion of the Group. The Group will further
adjust and optimize its organizational structure, improve its
management and control processes, continue to strengthen the
introduction of high-level management personnel, aggressively
expand the marketing and sales of various industrial chains such as
tissue engineering, cosmetics, and cells, etc., continue to enhance
the operating performance of each industry and the profitability of
the Company. At the same time, it will continue to seek investment
opportunities in line with the strategic development of the Group
both at home and abroad to promote the sustainable and steady
development of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

During the year, the Group made a change to the date of annual
report, meaning the year-end date is changed from 30 April to
31 December. This report covers the eight months from 1 May to
31 December 2017 while the previous annual report covered the
twelve months from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017.

The Group’s revenue for the period ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$503.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$146.7 million or 41.1% as compared to the
Group’s revenue of approximately HK$357.0 million for the previous
year ended 30 April 2017. The overall increase in revenue was
attributable to an increase in revenue from two segments, namely
cosmetic and others and medical equipment. Gross profit increased
by 7.1% to approximately HK$147.3 million during the period, which
was in line with the increase in revenue.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$122.6 million
from sales of tissue engineering products for the period ended
31 December 2017, representing a slight decrease of 2.9% from
last year because there are only eight months results in this period
compared to 12 months results in last year. (for the year starting from
1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$126.3 million).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$2.1 million from
provision of cell therapy service and sales of cell related medical
equipment for the period ended 31 December 2017, representing a
decrease of 22.2% from last year (for the year starting from May 2016
to April 2017: HK$2.7 million). The decrease was attributable to there
are only eight months results in this period compared to 12 months
results in last year.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$67.5
million from sales of cosmetic and other products for the period
ended 31 December 2017, representing an increase of 50.3% from
last year (for the year starting from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017:
HK$44.9 million). The increase in sales was attributable to the
Group’s successful expansion of the Hong Kong and Taiwanese
markets.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Result (Cont’d)

Sales of medical equipment for the period ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$311.5 million, representing an increase of
70.1% as compared to last year (for the year starting from 1 May
2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$183.1 million) because the Group has
continued to further develop distribution channels to enhance sales.

During the period under review, the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$158.5 million,
as compared to a loss of approximately HK$184.5 million for last
year. Loss for the Group decreased from last year, which is mainly
attributable to the corresponding increase in gross profit as a result
of increase in sales of our owned products and other income of
approximately HK$35.2 million generated from the disposal of a
subsidiary for the period but were offset by (i) decrease in interest
income from loan receivable and bank balance, (ii) increase in
advertising promotion expense to improve sales. During the period
ended 31 December 2017, the per share loss attributable to the
owners of the Company was HK$0.901 cent (for the year ended
30 April 2017: HK$1.049 cents).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the period ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$328.3 million, representing
a decrease of 15.7% as compared to last year. The expenses mainly
consisted of (i) staff cost of HK$101.4 million (for the year starting
from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$131.7 million); (i) advertising,
marketing and promotion expenses of HK$63.1 million (for the year
starting from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$38.2 million); (i) the
amortization of intangible assets of approximately HK$30.4 million (for
the year starting from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$41.0 million);
and (iv) research and development costs of HK$26.7 million (for the
year starting from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$56.0 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Net Assets

Net assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$1,813.3
million as at 31 December 2017, as compared to approximately
HK$1,907.9 million as at 30 April 2017, representing a decrease
of 5.0%, which was mainly attributable to the loss incurred for the
period.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$244.4 million (30 April 2017: HK$571.7
million). The decrease in cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$327.3 million was mainly due to the following: (i) the Group has
made investments in available-for-sale financial assets and acquisition
of subsidiary of approximately HK$575.3 million; (i) repayment of
bank loans and payment of bank borrowings interests of HK$53.2
million; and (iii) utilisation of working capital to support the operation
with the amounts of HK$193.3 million, whereas it was offset by the
proceeds of HK$472.5 million from the shareholder’s loans.

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$1,176.4 million (30 April 2017: HK$1,017.1
million), while its current liabilities stood at approximately HK$761.7
million (80 April 2017: 176.3 million), representing a net current
asset position with a working capital ratio (current assets to current
liabilities) of 1.54 (30 April 2017: 5.77).

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as
total bank borrowings to total equity, was 0.4 (30 April 2017: 0.4).

Capital Structure

During the period ended 31 December 2017, there was no material
change to the Group’s capital structure. As at 31 December
2017, the total number of issued shares of the Company was
17,585,790,000 (30 April 2017: 17,585,790,000).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L T

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The
Directors consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is manageable. The management will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when appropriate actions are required.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 October
2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent Buyer (the “Buyer”) through Shaanxi Aierfu
ActivTissue Engineering Co., Ltd.” (“Shaanxi Aierfu”), being its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, whereby Shaanxi Aierfu disposed
all equity interests in Shaanxi Aimiya Bio-Technology Company
Limited (“Shaanxi Aimiya”, being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shaanxi Aierfu) to the Buyer (the “Disposal”), at a consideration of
approximately RMB17.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$20.8
million).

Further, on 18 October 2017, Shaanxi Aierfu also entered into an
assignment agreement with the Buyer to sell and assign the loan
owed by Shaanxi Aimiya to Shaanxi Aierfu amounted to approximately
RMB22.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$27.4 million) (the
“Loan”), at a consideration equivalent to the loan amount. Such
consideration was determined after arm's length negotiation between
Shaanxi Aierfu and the Buyer.

The total consideration of the Disposal and the assignment of the
Loan amounted to RMB40 million (equivalent to HK$48.2 million).
The Company had received a total of RMB40 million (equivalent to
HK$48.2 million) from the said transactions as at 27 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no material acquisitions/

disposals of subsidiaries and associate during the period from 1 May
2017 to 31 December 2017.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, on 1 August 2016, the exclusive business cooperation
agreement, the exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge
agreement, the power of attorney and the consent letter of spouse,
entered into among (i) /L &R B8 = £ ¥ EHE B R A 7 (Jiangsu Vi Ze
Biotechnology Company Limited®) (“Jiangsu Yi Ze”), a company
established in the PRC, a wholly owned subsidiary of SCI
Therapeutics Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong under
limited liabilities, being owned as to (a) 80% by CRMI Medical Bio-
Tech Limited, formerly known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 20%
by Mr. Shi Yufang respectively as at the date of this report), (i) )T &k
SEZAEYEFAR AR (Jiangsu Ding Xuan Biotechnology Company
Limited”) (“Jiangsu Ding Xuan”), a limited liability company established
in the PRC to engage in the business of providing services and
equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical applications
in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on human stem cell
technologies and equipment for human stem cell processing and for
trading of its related equipment), the then (jii) registered shareholders
of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Jiangsu Ding Xuan is currently owned
by Ms. Xu Jie as to 50% and Mr. Dai Lifeng as to 50% (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders”).
Jiangsu Ding Xuan is controlled by the Group through Jiangsu Yi Ze
by way of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements pursuant to
which Jiangsu Yi Ze controls Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Jiangsu Ding Xuan is established to engage in the business of
providing services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related
clinical applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D
on human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.

# for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements

(@

Irrevocable power of attorney
Parties:
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the contracts under Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements including their respective supplemental
agreements (“Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main Obligations”) have been
terminated or discharged in full.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise Jiangsu Yi Ze and its respective
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation to
their equity interests in Jiangsu Ding Xuan, including attending
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’ meeting
and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full shareholder’s
rights under the articles of association of Jiangsu Ding Xuan
and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including but not
limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment of the legal
representative, director, supervisor and senior management
of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, filing documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and
disposition of the equity interest of Jiangsu Ding Xuan held by
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders or making decision on the
liquidation of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and the formulation of the
profit sharing plans of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, provided that the
exercise of the power(s) of attorney shall not cause breach to
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) Jiangsu Yi Ze
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

The exclusive business cooperation agreement commences
from 1 August 2016 and is effective perpetually, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan should appoint Jiangsu Yi Ze as exclusive
service provider for its business operations, including but
not limited to, technical R&D, technical support, technical
consultation, technical training and other management and
corporate consultation services.

Exclusive option agreement
Parties:

(i) Jiangsu Yi Ze
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

The exclusive option agreement commences from 1 August
2016 and is effective until all the shares of Jiangsu Ding Xuan
have been transferred from the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
to Jiangsu Yi Ze and/or any person(s) designated by Jiangsu Yi
Ze.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(c) Exclusive option agreement (Cont’d) (c) EBxBRERGZE)
Main Subject: FEEEIR

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu Ding Xuan
irrevocably agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of
the PRC, to transfer to Jiangsu Yi Ze and/or any person(s)
designated by Jiangsu Yi Ze at any time and from time to time,
all or part of their equity interests in Jiangsu Ding Xuan, or all or
part of the assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Jiangsu Yi Ze may exercise its rights under the paragraph above
at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as permitted
under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each of the
rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest price
permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other price
as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and/or Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Jiangsu Yi Ze or any person(s) designated by
Jiangsu Yi Ze.

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu Ding Xuan jointly
and/or severally undertake that, among other things, without
having obtained the prior written consent from Jiangsu Yi Ze,
they will not (i) amend the articles of association of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan; (ii) increase or decrease the registered capital of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan; (iii) dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create
any security interest or third party rights in its equity interests
in Jiangsu Ding Xuan; (iv) appoint any director(s) or executive
director(s) of Jiangsu Ding Xuan; and (v) pay dividends in any
manners. Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders further undertake
that, without having obtained the written consent from Jiangsu
Yi Ze, they and their respective related persons will not engage
in any business which is in competition with the businesses of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(d)

(e

Equity pledge agreement
Parties:

(i) Jiangsu Yi Ze
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu
Ding Xuan (including but not limited to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main
Obligations) are satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of
the pledged equity interests under the equity pledge agreement
at the relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce
has been completed.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders pledged all equity interests
in Jiangsu Ding Xuan legally held by Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Shareholders (including present or future registered capital and
their rights and benefits, whether through increase of capital
and/or transfer of equity interest) to Jiangsu Yi Ze.

Consent letters of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid

until the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(e) Consent letters of spouse (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders unconditionally
agreed to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Shareholders in Jiangsu Ding Xuan contemplated on
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements shall be Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and
further, the said spouses undertake that they shall not take any
act that causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of Jiangsu Ding Xuan involves technology for human stem
cell research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Jiangsu Ding Xuan
at that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions,
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements were designed to
provide Jiangsu Yi Ze and, thus the Group, with effective control over
the financial and operational policies of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and (to the
extent permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the
equity interest in Jiangsu Ding Xuan.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Reason for using the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and the significance to the Group (Cont’d)

Revenue and assets subject to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 2017 30 April 2017
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Revenue Uz - _
Net loss FEE 3,910 2,876
Total assets BEE 9,034 9,281

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017, the revenue
and net loss subject to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
amounted to nil and approximately 2.35% of the revenue and net loss
of the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total assets
subject to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.26% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the revenue and net loss subject
to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to nil
and approximately 1.44% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.32% of the total assets of the Group.

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of any
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements are removed.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and has relied on the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, as the case may be, to control, operate, and be
entitled to the economic benefits and risks arising from the respective
businesses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan in the PRC. However, there are
risks involved with the operations of Jiangsu Yi Ze under the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.

(i

There is no assurance that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements could comply with future
changes in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and
the PRC government may determine that the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements do not comply with
applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership
of companies engage in the businesses concerning technology
for research & development and applications of human stem
cells, gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan are regarded as design and manufacturing of
preclinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves
in technology for human stem cell research & development
and applications, in addition to providing contract research
services. The Company is a company incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. Jiangsu Yi Ze may not engage
in the businesses concerning technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications in the PRC under
current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to conduct
the business of Jiangsu Ding Xuan in the PRC through the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements will be interfered or objected
by any PRC regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce
and other competent authorities may have different opinions
on the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not
agree that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
comply with the current PRC laws, regulations or rules or those
that may be adopted in future, and the authorities may deny
the validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of any of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, it could have a material adverse impact on
the Group’s businesses, financial condition and results of
operations.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(i)

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
may not be as effective in providing control over and
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project
Company (namely “Jiangsu Ding Xuan as the case may
be”) as direct ownership

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may not
be as effective in providing the Group with control over and
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project Company
as direct ownership. If Jiangsu Yi Ze had direct ownership of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, Jiangsu Yi Ze would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Jiangsu Ding Xuan. However, under the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, Jiangsu Yi Ze
can only look to and rely on Jiangsu Ding Xuan and the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations
under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements such
that Jiangsu Yi Ze can exercise effective control over Jiangsu
Ding Xuan. The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders may not act
in the best interests of Jiangsu Ding Xuan or may not perform
its/their obligations under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, and in that case, Jiangsu Yi Ze may replace the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant
to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements. However,
if any dispute relating to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements remains unresolved, Jiangsu Yi Ze will have to
enforce its rights under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements in accordance with the
PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal
system.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) EHNZHE(E)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual B TAfsIZE4) LA E B 2 BB R A 4 7]
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to BRER 2 [ 18R e 2 15 5t (4E)
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(i)  The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements (i) SIFREZEHLTHRIZEREER A & (5T
may not be as effective in providing control over and BEZ(RIERME) ) REFELEF T E
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project HRETHE BN ()

Company (namely “Jiangsu Ding Xuan as the case may
be”) as direct ownership (Cont’d)

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that BN EDERRIB A RN ER R EM AR
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the & - WP BUEESIEHR 2 THAAEE R 2
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce PR I A S B R BT L ER Sz B &bk 2 B
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements. There is no 7 e BRI ABHISEREENREER
assurance that such arbitration result will be in favour of the K/ S8BT IR 2 E A EE AT g
Group and/or that there will not be any difficulties in enforcing BEBAMEE  PERITETAEE AR
any arbitral awards granted, including specific performance or BATSE S SR MR ANEBIR T E(E - f
injunctive relief and claiming damages by the Group. As the RS B Al g 85 M S EAS B S e B
Group may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely HUECEDT 8 REZ1T R BRRIE IR 2 58 0 Ko
manner, its ability to exert effective control over Jiangsu Ding TARREREMAE LR ERESIEXE
Xuan and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology KAF R 2 - W A] REAH BT ARS8 2 275 I 3
for human stem cell research & development and applications REBECES IRREEEBEEESTRD
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the 2 -

business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.

(iii)  Potential conflicts of interest among Jiangsu Yi Ze, (iii) TAEEE - STEREZRTIEHAZKRZE T
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders BETFTE B TEF 2 B 25
may exist
Jiangsu Yi Ze shall rely on the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual TEREE B AR T &R REZA VLT TR
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the ZATEEHERE EMEBEENE - RRY
economic benefits from Jiangsu Ding Xuan. Jiangsu Yi Ze may TEREZEHNTHEPITRAERERI - I
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Jiangsu Ding FR 20 ge A L B B L8R R 82 A SR LAV 8RR
Xuan Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging them to B EAEMNEITEM ML R ZR R
act in the best interests of Jiangsu Yi Ze, other than stipulating SR o T ERREZRER AN IR MR &R
the relevant obligations in the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual B BT #RERE v R B RFE RILE
Arrangements. The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders may REZENLH - HERWGREIIHFBRZZE
breach the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements in % R REEEEEEERNTATE -

the event of conflicts of interest or deterioration of its/their
relationship with Jiangsu Yi Ze, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Jiangsu Yi Ze's business, prospects
and results of operation.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Potential conflicts of interest among Jiangsu Yi Ze,
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
may exist (Cont’d)

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Jiangsu Yi Ze or
that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of Jiangsu Yi Ze. If
any of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders fails to perform its
obligations under the respective Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, Jiangsu Yi Ze may have to rely on legal remedies
under the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which may be
expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to Jiangsu Yi Ze's
operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated above.

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may
be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and
additional tax may be imposed

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may be subject
to scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be
imposed on the Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be. Jiangsu Yi
Ze, as the case may be, may face adverse tax consequences
if the PRC tax authorities determine that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements were not entered into based on
arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities determine
that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements were
not entered into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the
income and expenses of Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be, for
the PRC tax purposes, which could result in higher tax liabilities
on Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be.

The operation results of Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be,
may be materially and adversely affected if the tax liabilities of
Jiangsu Yi Ze, Jiangsu Ding Xuan increase significantly or if they
are required to pay interest on late payments.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBER R

BHRH(E)

BT RIZE LB B 2 B R A 2 7]
RE 2 FE B E e = 7 s ()

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) WHEIEERAZEREREEZR

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets

of the Project Company

Jiangsu Yi Ze’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests
in or assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs. In case Jiangsu Yi Ze
exercises its options to acquire all or part of the equity interests
and/or assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan under the relevant exclusive
option agreement, the acquisition of the entire equity interests
in or the assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan may only be conducted
to the extent as permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will
be subject to necessary approvals and relevant procedures
under applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation (such
as an appraised value for the entire equity interests in or all
assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan) or other limitations as imposed
by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial amount of other
costs (if any), expenses and time may be involved in transferring
the ownership of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, which may have a material
adverse impact on Jiangsu Yi Ze's businesses, prospects and
results of operation.

TEHEZWE IHRRZ 2HMEENEE L
BE) P REME B Z THIR B R KB © fid) T &%
PROBIR B AE B B R B M W ik 1T (£ AL R AR
VAMS BT R % 2 2 BBk AP IR IE KB
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

In April and August 2015, the Group completed the respective
acquisitions of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou through contractual
arrangements. Save as disclosed in this report, there have been no
changes to such Contractual Arrangements since the respective
completion dates.

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into among (i)
AK Subsidiary (&M E AW EMEERRIEBREE A (Suzhou Bo
Kai Biomedical Consultation Service Ltd.*), a company established
in the PRC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Frame Sharp
Limited (a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, being
owned as to (a) 70% by CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited (“CRMI
Medical”), formerly known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 30%
by Remed Tiger Limited (“Remed Tiger”), a company incorporated in
the Republic of Seychelles, being owned as to 100% by Mr. Zhang
Xumao) respectively as at the date of this report), (i) AK Suzhou (5]l
(8RN £ HEAT AR A &) (AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd."), a limited
liability company established in the PRC to engage in the business of
providing services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related
clinical applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D
on human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem
cell processing and for trading of its related equipment), the then (i)
registered shareholders of AK Suzhou and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, AK Suzhou is currently owned as to 30% by
Ms. Cui Keyan and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (the former executive
Director of the Company, which had resigned from his directorship of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2016) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders”). AK Suzhou is
controlled by the Group through AK Subsidiary by way of AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which AK Subsidiary controls
AK Suzhou.

AK Suzhou is established to engage in the business of providing
services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical
applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on
human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.

* for identification only

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangerments (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

a)

Irrevocable power of attorney
Parties:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the contracts under AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
including their respective supplemental agreements (“AK
Suzhou Main Obligations”) have been terminated or discharged
in full.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise AK Subsidiary and its respective
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation
to their equity interests in AK Suzhou, including attending
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’
meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full
shareholder’s rights under the articles of association of AK
Suzhou and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including
but not limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment
of the legal representative, director, supervisor and senior
management of AK Suzhou, filing documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and
disposition of the equity interest of AK Suzhou held by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders or making decision on the liquidation
of AK Suzhou and the formulation of the profit sharing plans
of AK Suzhou, provided that the exercise of the power(s) of
attorney shall not cause breach to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

b)

c)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) AK Subsidiary
(i)  AK Suzhou

Terms:

10 years commencing from 7 August 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10-year extension
will continue until AK Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

AK Suzhou should appoint AK Subsidiary as exclusive service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.

Exclusive option agreements
Parties:

(i) AK Subsidiary
(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(i)  AK Suzhou

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until AK Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding the termination of the term.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangerments (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)

Exclusive option agreements (Cont’q)
Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou irrevocably
agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by AK
Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part of their
equity interests in AK Suzhou, or all or part of the assets of AK
Suzhou.

AK Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
AK Suzhou and/or Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
AK Subsidiary.

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou jointly and/
or severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the prior written consent from AK Subsidiary, they
will not (i) amend the articles of association of AK Suzhou; (i)
increase or decrease the registered capital of AK Suzhou; (iii)
dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest or
third party rights in its equity interests in AK Suzhou; (iv) appoint
any director(s) or executive director(s) of AK Suzhou; and (v) pay
dividends in any manners. Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from AK Subsidiary, they and their respective related
persons will not engage in any business which is in competition
with the businesses of AK Suzhou.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

d)

Equity pledge agreements
Parties:

(i) AK Subsidiary
(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(i)  AK Suzhou

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou
(including but not limited to AK Suzhou Main Obligations) are
satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged
equity interests under the equity pledge agreement at the
relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce has
been completed.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders pledged all equity interests
in AK Suzhou legally held by Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(including present or future registered capital and their rights
and benefits, whether through increase of capital and/or
transfer of equity interest) to AK Subsidiary.

Consent letter of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid

until the AK Suzhou Main Obligations are satisfied or discharged
in full.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangerments (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

e)  Consent letter of spouse (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
unconditionally agreed to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders in AK Suzhou contemplated on AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements shall be Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou involves technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in AK Suzhou at that
time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
AK Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of AK Suzhou and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in AK Suzhou.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Revenue and assets subject to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI (E)
B (M) aR 2 ()

Bl (FM)ERNZHZ Wt REE
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Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 2017 30 April 2017
B=Z—t#F
TA—HBE
—E—tF HE_Z—+t5F
+=A=+—H MA=+H
L-EARE IEFE
(HK$°000) (HK$’000)
(F#&7m) (F%&7T)
Revenue & 736 247
Net loss FEE 4,968 8,612
Total assets BEE 76,964 73,901

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017, the revenue
and net loss subject to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
amounted to approximately 0.15% and 2.99% of the revenue and
net loss of the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total
assets subject to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 2.18% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the revenue and net loss subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.07% and 4.32% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately 2.56%
of the total assets of the Group.

Material changes
Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material

changes in AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

E-E—+HFRA-BE_ZE—+F+-_/F=1+—
BIFEAR - RGN A OL 2 WaE R EE S
G A S B U e MR B 1R £90.15% [22.99% © 7=
E—tF+—A=+—8 " BIEMNEHLHEZ
BEEMNAEEBEEL2.18% °

BE_Z—+tFNA=1THILEE - BIGEM)E
N HE 2 W KRB b AN E BN RFE
BAI0.07% % 4.32% - W_ZE—+FMWA=+H -
BY (BRI BN LHZREELAEEREEL
2.56% °

P )
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RS NZHNBRAL BT EAES -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangerments (Cont’d)
Unwinding of AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements are removed.

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into among
(i) Tianjin Subsidiary (Tianjin Weisheng Biotechnology Consulting
Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC with Royal Noble
Development Limited as its sole shareholder (a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with Passion Stream Limited as its sole shareholder, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, being owned as to
70% and 30% by the CRMI Medical and Remed Tiger respectively)),
(i) Tianjin Weikai (R)ZFELAEY TIEAR A A (Tianjin Weikai Bioeng
Ltd.”), a company incorporated in the PRC to engage in the business
of designs and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell
related equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors and their
related consumables, as well as providing CRO services i.e. contract
research services which mainly include drug screening, drug efficacy,
toxicity assays in the drug development services to local institutions
and hospitals), the then (iii) registered shareholders of Tianjin Weikai
and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Tianjin Weikai is currently owned as to 30%
by Mr. Cui Zhanyong and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Tianjin Weikai Shareholders”). Tianjin
Weikai is controlled by the Group through Tianjin Subsidiary by way
of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which Tianjin
Subsidiary controls Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Weikai engages in the business of design and manufacturing
of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment, especially in 3D
cell culture bio-reactors and their related consumables as well as
providing CRO services.

* for identification only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

a)

Irrevocable Power(s) of Attorney
Parties:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the contracts under Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements including their respective supplemental
agreements (“Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations”) are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise any representative and its respective
successors appointed by Tianjin Subsidiary to act on their behalf
all matters in relation to its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai,
including attending shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of
shareholders’ meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising
their full shareholder’s rights under the articles of association
of Tianjin Weikai and applicable PRC laws and regulations,
including but not limited to shareholders’ voting right,
appointment of the legal representative, director, supervisor
and senior management of Tianjin Weikai, filing documents
with the relevant governmental authorities or regulatory bodies,
acquisition and disposition of the shareholdings of Tianjin Weikai
held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders or making decision on the
liquidation of Tianjin Weikai and the formulation of the profit
sharing plans of Tianjin Weikai, provided that the exercise of the
power(s) of attorney shall not cause to breach the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

b)

c)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i)  Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from 17 April 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10-year extension
will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai should appoint Tianjin Subsidiary as service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.

Exclusive option agreements
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i)  Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding the termination of the term.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)

Exclusive option agreements (Cont’q)
Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai shall irrevocably
agree, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
Tianjin Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part
of its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai, or all or part of the assets
of Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
Tianjin Weikai and/or Tianjin Weikai Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated
by Tianjin Subsidiary.

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai jointly and/or
severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the written consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they will
not (i) amend the articles of association of Tianjin Weikai; (i)
increase or decrease the registered capital of Tianjin Weikai;
(iiiy dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest
or third party rights in its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai; (iv)
appoint any director(s) or executive director(s) of Tianjin Weikai;
(v) pay dividends in any manners. Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they and their respective
related persons will not engage in any business which is in
competition with the businesses of Tianjin Weikai.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

d)

Equity pledge agreement
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i)  Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai
(including but not limited to Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations) are
satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged
equity interests under the equity pledge agreement at the
relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce has
been completed.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders pledged all equity interests in Tianjin
Weikai held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders (including present or
future registered capital and their rights and benefits, whether
through increase of capital and/or transfer of equity interest) to
Tianjin Subsidiary.

Consent letter of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be

valid until the Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

e)  Consent letter of spouse (Cont’d)
Main Subject:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall unconditionally
agree to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders undertake and
declare that the equity respectively owned by Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders in Tianjin Weikai contemplated on the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements shall be Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou which involves technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Tianjin Weikai at
that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
Tianjin Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of Tianjin Weikai and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in Tianjin Weikai.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) EBHLTHE(E)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d) KB ZH (B

Revenue and assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual FXEEHNEHNTHERZ Y REE
Arrangements

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai ~ FKZETENA QLT HEZ WES - FEE M EEES I

Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: N
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 2017 30 April 2017
H=Z—tfF
ER—BEE
—B—+F BE_Z—+F
+=A=+—~H MA=+A
LEHAR IFFE
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
(FHBT) (F&7T)
Revenue Wegs 742 2,149
Net loss FER 7,317 5,583
Total assets BEE 101,990 107,254

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017, the revenue B _-ZE—+4*HFA—HE-_E—+F+-_A=+—
and net loss subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements B IFEAfE - R2EIE DL 2 Yz SR EE 5 5
amounted to approximately 0.15% and 4.40% of the revenue and {5 A& B U5 IFE B 2 £90.15% %4.40% ° FA—
net loss of the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total ZE—+F+-_A=+—0  R2EH SN2
assets subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted & (N2 B 42 & EE #92.89% o

to approximately 2.89% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the revenue and net loss subjectto  HE_Z—+FMNA=+HILFE - XEFHIE
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately — #972HE 2 Wz 2 E BT 18 D BlIME AN £ B U &S M 0% &S
0.60% and 2.80% of the revenue and net loss of the Group 827 40.60% %2.80% « R—E—+EM A=+
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to Tianjin B » KEG STz B EELNEBBEELD
Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately 3.71%  3.71%

of the total assets of the Group.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)
Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been
any failure to unwind any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are removed.

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in AK Suzhou
and/or Tianjin Weikai and has relied on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and/or Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
as the case may be, to control, operate, and be entitled to the
economic benefits and risks arising from the respective businesses
of AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai in the PRC. However, there are
risks involved with the operations of AK Subsidiary and/or Tianjin
Subsidiary under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) BRRHE)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual HE | (FM) e X ZHR X B a9 %
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual HEE 2 RfE R AL R 2 IR R fE =
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to Bt (4E

mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(i)  There is no assurance that the AK Suzhou Contractual () HBETREREBRE (FFM) SR ZHR X EEE]
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual BRILHEEHETARRPEEER T E
Arrangements could comply with future changes in R BB T o] GEEE R (B M) &4 ZHER
the regulatory requirements in the PRC and the PRC KREHYEH T H BB TE AR

government may determine that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership of WATHBUER RERZEILINE R BN ER #
companies engage in the businesses concerning technology for AR ERER - ERDE R ER
research & development and applications of human stem cells, fiy 2 275 o BrRiBHE & R RAE N - BE)
gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of AK Suzhou and (BRM) R RORE Y 2 E5 Rk et R AEERK
Tianjin Weikai are regarded as design and manufacturing of AIARRE S AR AR R - HR P AR R
pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves IR R ER R - AR R A —EIRIER
in technology for human stem cell research & development and EREREFMKLZ AT - BRIFIRITH
applications, in addition to providing contract research services. FE o BYMBARLRRKEMNB AR TR
The Company is a company incorporated under the laws of the B S5 A A BE S A PR AT B % R B R AT 2
Cayman Islands. AK Subsidiary and Tianjin Subsidiary may not X o Bt - ARBEEESRIE BRI (&
engage in the businesses concerning technology for human M) EX LB R R R E DL BN P BT
stem cell research & development and applications in the PRC B (BRI ) R RERI 2 5T o

under current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to
conduct the business of AK Suzhou and Tianjin Weikai in the
PRC through the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements respectively.

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the AK Suzhou BELEDRBETRIIGEMN) EHLHRK
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual EHIENLHEERMNFPHEEHET
Arrangements will be interfered or objected by any PRC TEsk R ¥ - RESBMAA - BEREA
regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the Directors, TEMBETRREAREACRERERESE
there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce and other W R AR (BN & LB R EREE
competent authorities may have different opinions on the DL BN EIRITEAR R A RN 2 R BIE
interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not agree 2 ORREARA - Mz SRER T RES
that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin (M) BN R R EZFINENLE 2 BR
Weikai Contractual Arrangements comply with the current M B KRR BT ©

PRC laws, regulations or rules or those that may be adopted in
future, and the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness Mz EHESREMEIN G &R
and enforceability of any of the AK Suzhou Contractual REHINEHNLBE 2B « & KAl 58 H|
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, ATV - ERIREE AR E 2 ¥ - MR
it could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s DR EEBEX BRI E -

businesses, financial condition and results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(i) HH (M) ERZHRXEEGANEAZHR

(i) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin

Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing
the Group with control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company as direct ownership. If AK
Subsidiary had direct ownership of AK Suzhou, AK Subsidiary
would be able to directly exercise its rights as a shareholder
to effect changes in the board of directors of AK Suzhou.
However, under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
AK Subsidiary can only look to and rely on AK Suzhou and the
Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders to perform their contractual
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
such that AK Subsidiary can exercise effective control over AK
Suzhou. The Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may not act in
the best interests of AK Suzhou or may not perform its/their
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
and in that case, AK Subsidiary may replace the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant to
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements. However, if any
dispute relating to the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
remains unresolved, AK Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights
under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and seek to
interpret the terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with the PRC laws and will be subject to
uncertainties in the PRC legal system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

It will be the same situation for the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. If Tianjin Subsidiary had direct ownership of
Tianjin Weikai, Tianjin Subsidiary would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Tianjin Weikai. However, under the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary can
only look to and rely on Tianjin Weikai and the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements such that Tianjin
Subsidiary can exercise effective control over Tianjin Weikai. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may not act in the best interests
of Tianjin Weikai or may not perform its/their obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, and in that case,
Tianjin Subsidiary may replace the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
by its other nominees pursuant to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. However, if any dispute relating to the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements remains unresolved, Tianjin
Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights under the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements in accordance with
the PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC
legal system.

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are governed by the PRC laws.
When a dispute arises under any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
the relevant parties thereto shall settle the dispute through
negotiation in an amicable manner. In case the dispute is not
resolved, the parties to the dispute may have to rely on legal
remedies under the PRC laws. The AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
provided that dispute will be submitted to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission for arbitration to
be conducted in Beijing. The decision of such arbitration is final
and binding on the parties to the dispute.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements. There is no assurance that such
arbitration result will be in favour of the Group and/or that
there will not be any difficulties in enforcing any arbitral awards
granted, including specific performance or injunctive relief and
claiming damages by the Group. As the Group may not be
able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely manner, its ability
to exert effective control over AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai
and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology for
human stem cell research & development and applications
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the
business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.

Potential conflicts of interest among the respective
shareholders and the Project Company may exist

(@)  Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedlical Shareholders may exist

AK Subsidiary shall rely on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the
economic benefits from AK Suzhou. AK Subsidiary may
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging
them to act in the best interests of AK Subsidiary, other
than stipulating the relevant obligations in the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements. The Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders may breach the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements in the event of conflicts of interest or
deterioration of its/their relationship with AK Subsidiary,
the results of which may have a material adverse impact
on AK Subsidiary’s business, prospects and results of
operation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) BRRHE)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual HE | (FM) e X ZHR X B a9 %
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual HEE 2 RfE R AL R 2 IR R fE =
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to Bt (4E

mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iii) Potential conflicts of interest among the respective (iii) FEIRRREHE 4 52 B i e 7 1E B flla

shareholders and the Project Company may exist (Cont’d) ELE V)

(a)  Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK (a) ZEIMBE LA - B (BFM)REFMEY
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may exist FEMTAR B = [ O] BEFA E B FE Fl|as i 25
(Cont’d) (#&)

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Suzhou A REB LR - &INEYRI
Biomedical Shareholders will act in the best interests IR LA RSB AR 2 S EMN=ITE
of AK Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in B A BB AR BN 2 R
favour of AK Subsidiary. If any of the Suzhou Biomedical Bk o R ERIN AE MR RR B AR Bt
Shareholders fails to perform its obligations under the THREHRI(EMN)ERHLHET 2
respective AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, B - BIHBRARIAIREBEFE IBEEF
AK Subsidiary may have to rely on legal remedies AMKRERBER T 2 A - tERA]
under the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which EHE  BREKPEHREIMBATZE
may be expensive, time-consuming and disruptive iE - BAJgemEER ESCATi 2 N EREAA
to AK Subsidiary’s operations and will be subject to Eo

uncertainties as stated above.

(b)  Potential conflicts of interest among Tianjin Subsidiary, (b) FKEMBLE] - KEEHG R K EEG IR
Tianjin Weikai, the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may exist R 2 [ AR R TR BT Fllan B 5
Tianjin Subsidiary shall rely on the Tianjin Weikai REMBR R FREREEGINE LT
Contractual Arrangements to exercise control over and HRRBYITR G & B EEEE
to draw the economic benefits from Tianjin Weikai. Tianjin Mz o BRRREFINEDLHFEIRE
Subsidiary may not be able to provide sufficient incentives BRI RENB AR AR
to the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders for the purpose of B REFIRARZM B AR 2 &E
encouraging them to act in the best interests of Tianjin T HMmAREE AR RIZ RS
Subsidiary, other than stipulating the relevant obligations ) o REFIIRE AT ge IR T = E 2R
in the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements. The S EEEWB AR HEREBERER
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may breach the Tianjin REFINELLH - BERATREHXE
Weikai Contractual Arrangements in the event of conflicts MEARICEE I REEEEEE
of interest or deterioration of its/their relationship with BEARIHFE -

Tianjin Subsidiary, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Tianjin Subsidiary’s business,
prospects and results of operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D) BHZH(E)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual HE | (FM) e X ZHR X B a9 %
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual HERZERRA L R 2 F IR 2
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to Bt (&

mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iii) Potential conflicts of interest among the respective (iii) FEIRRREHE 4 52 B i e 7 1E B flla
shareholders and the Project Company may exist (Cont’d) ELE V)
(b)  Potential conflicts of interest among Tianjin Subsidiary, (b) FKEMBLE] - KEEHG R K EEG IR
Tianjin Weikai, the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may exist R B BT TE B TE Fllan 1B 55 (4B)
(Cont’d)
It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Tianjin Weikai BE MR & Az - REFEIMRE
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Tianjin AR ZEM B AR 2 &EFZITESLE
Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of A NE R ZEZNB AR AT 2757 E#E
Tianjin Subsidiary. If any of the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders R MERRKEEIIRRARERBITER
fails to perform its obligations under the respective Tianjin BEMREFIENLHBET 2EE - K
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary SRR B A gER B B AR AR MK R
may have to rely on legal remedies under the PRC laws BUER T ZAEMR - R SRE -
through legal proceedings, which may be expensive, ERRPERXENB AR 2 EE - AR
time-consuming and disruptive to Tianjin Subsidiary’s BEMER_E3CFTit 2 NEARARE & -
operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated
above.
(iv) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin (iv) Zgl(FM)EHNEZHRXEEHHNEHZHT
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may be subject to BEES HEH A EE WK A

scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai BYL(BM)E DL R R2EI ST
Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the feEXPRBGKREES - MAXENBAR]
PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed on the K/ BYLHEA R (RBERME) 7] B
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be. WEBINELIE o fini i B 75 1 B 72 BR 9L (B
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be, M) EBZHERREFINE DL BN FERE
may face adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities ANFHEERIY - AIREMBAR K, B
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and M@ AR (RIB R T E ) 7] BEHE ER T FIFE 5 1%
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered into R MPBIRBEHAETERZI(EFEMN) ELD
based on arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities TZHE R RKEGIE DL HEI IER A FEAERT
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and S HAlpesi P BB B R REHE A
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered Ak BB ARGRBERME) Z WA
into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the income and HRFY R ERRKENB AR N B
expenses of Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the B ARI(RIERAME)EREES 2HBE
case may be, for the PRC tax purposes, which could result in f& o

higher tax liabilities on Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary,
as the case may be.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iv) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed (Cont’d)

v)

The operation results of the Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK
Subsidiary, as the case may be, may be materially and
adversely affected if the tax liabilities of AK Subsidiary, Tianjin
Subsidiary, Tianjin Weikai or AK Suzhou increase significantly or
if they are required to pay interest on late payments.

Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company

@

AK Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity
interests in or assets of AK Suzhou may be subject to
various limitations and substantial costs

In case AK Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire
all or part of the equity interests and/or assets of AK
Suzhou under the relevant exclusive option agreement,
the acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of AK Suzhou may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of AK Suzhou) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time
may be involved in transferring the ownership of AK
Suzhou, which may have a material adverse impact on
AK Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company (Cont’d)

©®)

Tianjin Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity
interests in or assets of Tianjin Weikai may be subject to
various limitations and substantial costs

In case Tianjin Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire
all or part of the equity interests and/or assets of Tianjin
Weikai under the exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of Tianjin Weikai may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of Tianjin Weikai) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time may
be involved in transferring the ownership of Tianjin
Weikai, which may have a material adverse impact on
Tianjin Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.

In light of the above risks associated with the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has adopted
a set of procedures, systems and internal control
measures to ensure the sound and effective operation
of the Group and the implementation of the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. Such procedures, systems and internal
control measures include (i) regular discussions of matters
relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities, if any, by the board of directors
of the Company at board meetings; and (ii) retaining legal
adviser and/or other professional to assist the Group
to deal with specific issues arising from the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements, if so required.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the University
of Oxford for the researches on cell therapy and tissue engineering.
The Company agreed to provide GBP9.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$90.1 million) to the University of Oxford by
instalments over the period covered by the agreements. As at 31
December 2017, the Company has paid GBP4.75 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$52.5 million) to the University of Oxford.

CHARGES IN ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, bank loans of HK$771.8 million were
secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits with carrying
amounts of HK$818.1 million (April 2017: HK$794.7 million). As at
31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(April 2017: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

On 15 July 2017, China Regenerative Medicine Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Haitong International
ZhongHua Finance GP Ltd. invested in Haitong International
ZhongHua Finance Acquisition Fund I, L.P. (the “Fund”) whose
investment objective was to acquire, hold and dispose skin therapy
and medical product industries portfolio companies. The Company’s
initial capital investment in this regard was US$75 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$585 million). On 7 November 2017, the
Company’s capital investment in the Fund was reduced to US$35
million (equivalent to approximately HK$272 million).

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for
material investment or capital assets during the period.
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 449 (April 2017: 542)
employees located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an
equal opportunity employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus
policies are determined with reference to the performance and
experience of individual employees. The total amount of employee
remuneration (including that of the Directors and retirement benefits
scheme contributions) of the Group for the period was approximately
HK$101.4 million (1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017: HK$131.7 million). In
addition, the Group may offer options to employees as a recognition
of and reward for their efforts and contributions to the Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen”), aged 45, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEQ”). He is also a
member of the nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Chen joined the Company in October 2016 as
the president and re-designated as the CEO in February 2017. Mr.
Chen has 20 years of relevant experience and has accumulated
abundant experience in investment and M&A as well as corporation
management. He also serves as a director of some subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics and obtained a master’s degree. From 1996
to 2012, Mr. Chen served as the president of AE&E = £ @ (Dalian
Shide Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Dalian Shide”) who was responsible for
the overall management of this 3000-employee group. Under his
management, he established 8 production bases across the country
for new construction materials, all of which were put into operation
successfully, and developed over 100 distribution channels, making
“Shide Profiles” one of the well-known brands in the PRC. During
his tenure with Dalian Shide, he led the investment in and acquisition
of JA4b&Z E R B R 2 &) (Lingyun Industrial Corporation Limited*
(SSE code: 600480)) and % B K JT I 7 F R A 7 (Ningxia Dayuan
Chemical Co., Ltd.* (SSE code: 600146)), and invested in a number of
financial institutions such as A:ERI TN BRA A (Bank of Dailian
Co., Ltd.#), KFF R MDA R A 7l (China Pacific Insurance Co.,
Ltd."), 4 &5 A SRR B BR A Al (Sino Life Insurance Co., Ltd.%),
Z=[E NSRBI AR Q7] (Sino-Conflux Insurance Company Ltd."),
HEIBITIRM AR QA (Bank of Tieling Co., Ltd.") and £ IE&RH &
+ B AR A F] (nvesco Great Wall Fund Management Company
Limited®), etc. During such period, he also formed A& & & At A
[ /A ] (Dalian Shide Petrochemicals., Ltd."), BEEEERARE A 7
(&) (Shide Group (Hong Kong) Holdings Co., Ltd."), KEE = B ik
{E£4%8 (Dalian Shide Football Club®), KiEEZEIREFRE A 7 (Dalian
Shide Investment Co., Ltd.”) and other dozens of companies. In total,
Mr. Chen managed nearly a hundred of parents and subsidiaries
and a billion-dollar group during his tenure with in Dalian Shide. From
2012 to 2016, as president of A& )& E K& E (Hairunlai Group Co.,
Ltd."), Mr. Chen has led the investment in and acquisition of 2%F &
5 49 & @ik =0 & #L (Shengyin Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*,
based in Korea) and the investment in & AT IEIR K& 7 AR 2 7
(Beston Global Food Company Limited), based in Australia, JA/1bE R
B H B AREIE AR A R] (Chinatsi Big Data Inc.”) and BEl&& &
R 2 7] (Guojin Financial Leasing Co., Ltd."), etc. In addition, Mr. Chen
has integrated the group’s resources and implemented an overall
transition in the group. Mr. Chen is also the chairman of /& B %
L E AR A 7] (Shanghai Yonghan Equity Investment Co., Ltd.#).

*for identification only

HITES

BREBKE(TBRELE]) @ 455 0 ARITTEERA
NEFTERE ([TTHRAE]) - BINBARRIREE
BE([IBREE8TIZKE - BEFR-_T—RF
+AMBARAREEEE TR —+F =A%
EAEITHREE - BIEEHRB0FHBLAR - P&
BEHBRC(ETEHNAHFTLEMER - MIHE
ARRIETHBRARIZES - HEEREILFEXR
L BEEELIE - N NANAFEZT—ZF
PR A EEER ([ EEE ] BERAE - 8
MEEXEEEEEE000AZER - £HZE
BT - AR T 2 A AEM £ EREN - e
BRI A EEEE - KNEE 71005 RIGERN
P [BEAM IRARERMNRAREZ — - REEKR
HEE M - HIRERIKE T EZERMHER
RA( EBBEHFRZARIN : 600480) K EE KT
A BRAR( EEEHFR SR - 600146)
WEREXERITROHBRAR - KFEFRERRD
BRAF - £ ABRBRIRODBER AT - EEAS
RBIEHDBERAR ~ HERTROHBRATKLRSIE
EHESERERARERS & RMEE o 1R H
Mo BIMER T KRBEEEALAERAR  BEEE
TRABRAROEE) - REEERIELE - K&
BEEREARABISETRERLAT - FRIEERK
HEETRPEATETHAARSTAE - EH
+EBEENERRAR —E——HF T —XF -
PR % A T RSB B R R B BB AR R TS - A IR
BT EERRDBASRIKA ST - TNEE T EM
MEIBRIRRBAR AR AL EREBAAHK
BERARLESSRHEERERAAEZAT ¢ It
I BRAEEBEEATEEER  WHEEERT 2
A TR - RIACEIN A DS BRERERRA
REER -

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR




AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Dr. Ray Yip (“Dr. Yip”), aged 67, is an executive Director. He is
also a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”). Dr. Yip joined the Group in February
2017 as a non-executive Director. He had been re-designated as an
executive Director in September 2017. He is an international public
health leader who has made a significant contribution to global health
in the areas of nutrition, maternal and child health, HIV/AIDS and
tobacco control. Dr. Yip has been working on emergency response
to war and famine, long term program and policy development effort
in the PRC in recent years. Dr. Yip was the founding director of the
Chinese office of U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(the “CDC”) in 2013, and the China program director of the Bill and
Melinda Gates Foundation (the “Foundation”) in 2017. Dr. Yip is
known as a specialist for health and medical issues in the PRC.

Dr. Yip’s major contributions to the global health include: refining the
international criteria for screening for malnutrition and anemia and
increasing the awareness of diarrhea as a major contributor to acute
malnutrition. His work in the PRC has resulted in the mainstreaming of
hepatitis B vaccine for routine immunization, the adoption of hospital-
based delivery as a strategy which significantly reduced maternal
mortality, transformation of the national AIDS response to one
targeting those high-risk groups by accepting the role of civil society
and assisting in engineering the policy support for tobacco control at
the top level.

Dr. Yip established the Foundation’s mission in China by assisting the
government in addressing the key public health issues such as HIV
and tobacco. He also transformed the Foundation’s strategy in giving
it a new focus “China-for-Africa” which includes identifying successful
Chinese experience and technology to assist in the development of
Africa. Since 2017, Dr. Yip has served as a special advisor focusing
on health and clean energy for bgC3, a think-tank headed by Bill
Gates.

Dr. Yip served at the faculty of the University of California-San
Francisco between 1990 and 1994 and was an adjunct professor
at the Friedman School and Nutrition Science and Policy of Tufts
University between 2006 and 2010. Currently, Dr. Yip is an adjunct
professor at the Research Centre for Public Health of Tsinghua
University.

Dr. Yip graduated from the Medical School and the School of Public
Health of the University of Minnesota, and he was then certified as a
pediatric hematologist-oncologist.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Cui Zhanfeng, PhD, DSc FREng, (“Prof. Cui”), aged 55,
is a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board of the
Company. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”).
Prof. Cui joined the Group in November 2013 as consultant. He
also holds directorship in one of the subsidiaries of the Company.
Prof. Cui obtained his Bachelor’'s degree of Science from Inner
Mongolia Polytechnic University, the PRC in 1982, and a master’s
degree of Science in 1984 and doctor’s degree of Philosophy in
1987 from Dalian University of Technology, the PRC. Prof. Cui was a
postdoctoral Fellow in the Bioengineering Unit, Strathclyde University,
the United Kingdom from 1988 to 1991 and a Lecturer in Edinburgh
University from 1991 to 1994. He moved to the Oxford University
as a University Lecturer from 1994 to 1999 and was promoted to a
Reader in 1999. In 2000, he was elected to the Donald Pollock Chair
of Chemical Engineering in the Oxford University at the age of 37. He is
also a Professorial Fellow of Hertford College, the Oxford University.
He was a visiting professor to Georgia Institute of Technology, the
United States of America (“USA”) in 1999 and University of Minnesota,
USA in 2004, and to several universities in China. He is a Chartered
Scientist, a Chartered Engineer, and a Fellow of the Institution of
Chemical Engineers. Prof. Cui was awarded the Doctor of Science
(DSc) by the Oxford University in 2009. In 2013, Prof. Cui was elected
to a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering (FRENQ).

Prof. Cui was the first Chinese who was elected to a Statutory Chair
in the Oxford University. He has a wide range of collaborative activities
in the PRC with Chinese Universities and Chinese Academy of
Sciences. He was a Chang Jiang Scholar of the Ministry of Education
of the PRC and has acted as an adviser to several governmental
organisations, including the Overseas Chinese Affair Office of the
State Council.
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AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Professor Xiong Chengyu (“Prof. Xiong”), aged 63, is a
non-executive Director. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Prof. Xiong joined
the Group in March 2017. Prof. Xiong is currently a professor and a
doctoral supervisor of the School of Journalism and Communication
of Tsinghua University in the PRC. Prof. Xiong has extensive
experience in new media studies, media development and journalism.
He was a member of each of IR (E Bt BEXAENEES L8 (the
Advisory Committee for State Informatisation®) and B 5% & B 49 3% &
HEBHRERZMNE B EZ 8 (the Advisory Committee for Internet
Development and Management”), and served as a vice dean of the
School of Journalism and Communication of Tsinghua University in
the PRC. Prof. Xiong currently serves as a member of the University
Academic Committee and the chairman of the National Research
Center of Cultural Industries in Tsinghua University in the PRC. Prof.
Xiong was an independent director of each of j# F & & & % 5
BBRAE] (Hunan TV & Broadcast Intermediary Co., Ltd.”) (Shenzhen
Stock Exchange: 000917) and F E IR EEE B RH B R A A
(China South Publishing & Media Group Co., Ltd.) (Shanghai Stock
Exchange: 601098). He currently serves as an independent director
of I# & EE B BRIEEME MM AR A A (iangsu Broadcasting
Cable Information Network Corporation Limited”) (Shanghai Stock
Exchange: 600959).

*for identification only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Bing Woon, sBs, Jp, (“Mr. Chan”), aged 72, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also a member of the
each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chan joined the Group in March 2014.
Mr. Chan is a consultant of Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., Solicitors and
Notaries. He has about 40 years’ experience in the legal profession.
Mr. Chan has been involved in numerous public duties including
being Advisor of the Joint Mediation Helpline Office. He is also a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a council
member of the Hong Kong Society of Notaries, a general accredited
mediator of Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and the Law
of Society of Hong Kong, and the chairman of the Hospital Governing
Committee of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital. Mr. Chan
was a member of the Hospital Authority and a past chairman of the
Hong Kong Mediation Council. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Kwoon Chung Bus Holdings Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 306).

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (“Mr. Wong”), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wong joined the Group in
February 2017. He has over 25 years of experience in venture capital,
corporate finance, business development and general management.
Mr. Wong has served as the president and group chief financial officer
of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB”) since November 2011 and as
the chief financial officer and the company secretary of KVB’s group
company, KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6877) since October
2014. Mr. Wong has also served as an independent non-executive
director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited (HKEx stock code:
3628) since October 2011, HongDa Financial Holding Limited (HKEx
stock code: 1822) since July 2014, Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited (HKEx stock code: 1355) since
November 2016, Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (HKEx
stock code: 1581) since November 2016 and Common Splendor
International Health Industry Limited (HKEx stock code: 286) since
September 2017.

Mr. Wong also served several positions at Adamas Finance Asia
Limited (LSE stock code: ADAM), including its executive director from
May 2008 to February 2014, its chief financial officer from May 2008
to October 2011 and its non-executive director since February 2014,
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AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONT'D)

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s degree of
science in investment management from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in 1998 and a master’s degree of science
in electronic engineering from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2008.

Mr. Wong was admitted as a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales in November 1999, October 2002 and January
2018, respectively. He was admitted as a chartered financial analyst
of the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts in September 1998. He
is also acting as the president of the Hong Kong University Graduates
Association, the deputy chairman of the HKU Convocation, the court
member of The University of Hong Kong, a committee member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong.

Dr. Fang Jun (“Dr. Fang”), aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Dr. Fang joined the Group in December 2017. He served
as an executive member and the executive vice-chairman of the
Cross-straits Medicine Exchange Association of the National Health
and Family Planning Commission of the PRC* (FR2E A R FIEI R
BENGEEEZEGBRMFEEFERMHE), an executive
member and the vice-chairman of China Sexology Association”
(P E 2 &), the publisher and the executive chief editor of the
China Sexology Journal® ({ F Bl %%} £ )) and the deputy head of
the Sexology Research Center of Peking University Health Science
Center* (b R KE2EZE L2 5TH 0 ). Dr. Fang also assumed
various positions such as the executive member and the secretary
general of Wu Jieping Medical Foundation (R FEEEE S S ). Dr.
Fang graduated from Peking University Health Science Center with a
master’s degree in Social Medicine and Health Service Management
and a doctorate degree in Epidemiology and Health Statistics.

Dr. Fang is also an independent non-executive director of HongDa

Financial Holding Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(1822.HK).

*for identification only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTRARBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONT'D)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny (“Mr. Pang”), aged 45, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Pang joined the
Group in September 2012. He is the managing partner of Benny
Pang & Co which specializes in capital markets and general corporate
and commercial work. Mr. Pang is also an executive director and
a vice chairman of Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (previously
known as Goldenmars Technology Holdings Limited) (“Huabang”),
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
3638), since January 2017. He was an independent non-executive
director of Huabang since June 2012. Between 1997 and 2017,
Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with several international law firms in
Hong Kong and Sydney. He received his bachelor’s degree in laws
with honours from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr.
Pang obtained his graduate diploma in legal practice and master’s
degree in laws from The College of Law, Sydney and the University of
New South Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been admitted as a
legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia
since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
2009. Mr. Pang is a member of both the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2789) and Sanbase Corporation Limited (the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8501).

# for identification purposes only
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of
the Company for the eight months ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Reporting Period”), i.e. from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Group believes that high standard of
corporate governance provides a framework and solid foundation for
achieving, attracting and retaining the high standard and quality of the
Group’s management, promoting high standards of sound internal
control, accountability and transparency to all shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) and also meeting the expectations of the
Group’s various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG
Code”) throughout the Reporting Period, with the exception of code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of Shareholders. One of the non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Hui, did not attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 8 September 2017 (the “AGM”) due
to his engagements in other business commitments. Other Board
members, including members of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, attended
the AGM and made themselves available to answer questions to
ensure effective communication with the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CODES AND POLICIES
Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors, has
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards of
dealings regarding securities transaction by the Directors as set out
on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Reporting Period.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the ethical standards of all the employees,
officers and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards
of professional conduct and work performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

Board Composition

Details of the membership of the Board together with their roles and
functions are posted on the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website and such information shall be updated as soon as practicable
whenever there are changes.

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board had eight Directors, including
two executive Directors; two non-executive Directors, and four
independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Board Composition (Cont’d)

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this report:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Chunguo

Dr. Ray Yip

Non-executive Directors
Professor Cui Zhanfeng

Professor Xiong Chengyu

(Chief Executive Officer and
member of the Nomination
Committee)

(member of the Remuneration
Committee)

(Chairman of the Board, chairman
of the Nomination Committee
and member of the Audlit
Committee)

(member of each of the
Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Bing Woon

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest

Dr. Fang Jun

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny

(member of each of the Audiit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

(chairman of the Audit Committee,
member of each of the
Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

(member of each of the Audiit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

(chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, member of each of
the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

Biographical details of each director are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executives” on pages 59

to 65 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The principle functions of the Board are to:
° establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination Committee
and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest financials
with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and M&A, is appropriate
for the businesses of the Company. The Board will review its
composition from time to time taking into consideration of the specific
needs for the overall Company and its subsidiaries’ businesses.

Continuing Professional Development

The Company Secretary is responsible for updating the Board on
governance and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, ensuring that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
Reporting Period, all Directors participated in continuous professional
development and had provided the Company with records (if any) on
their participation. The individual training record of each Director for
the Reporting Period is set out below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Cui Zhanfeng

Chen Chunguo

Ray Yip

Xiong Chengyu

Chan Bing Woon
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
Fang Jun

Pang Chung Fai Benny

>>>>>> > >
(SUR VSRR VYAV RRUORN VO R VYA VY}
00000000

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/workshops
organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to the
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities,
which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to the Company'’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors who will
retire at the annual general meeting of the Company shall be those
appointed by the Board during the year and those who have been the
longest in office since their last election or re-election.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Staterments

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in relation
to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Policy
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,

the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Staterments
(Cont’d)

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Board and General Meetings

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and organises additional meetings as and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen days is given of a
regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT'D) EEE(E)
Board and General Meetings (Cont’d) EFERKRRAE(E

S e

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time HitEE=ehEZEe e
is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held six &1 - R#REHIR - EFe

RREN A IR A

BITH

/Aau%z ﬁ‘:F‘E

meetings, of which four were regular meetings. The following table D’U%EHHE\.E% TREFVEREEREPRLFS

shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held &2 1&%
during the Reporting Period:

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
General Meetings Board Meetings
entitled entitled
to attend to attend
Name of Directors EE# % g/ BRELE e/ HREHE
(From 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017) (ZE—+F A A —HE-F—+F+-A=T—HHH) BRRAEHE EZg8EYA
Executive Directors YTES
Chen Chunguo BRER 1/2 5/6
Ray Yip EZ
(redesignated from non-executive Director to (BEZZ—tENA/\BieH
executive Director with effect from 8 September FRITESATANTES)
2017) 1/2 6/6
Shao Zhengkang APk
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2017) (BZE—tFNANBRET) 2/2 4/4
Wong Sai Hung Hit
(resigned with effect from 30 November 2017) (BZE—tF+—A=+HEEHT) 2/2 3/4
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Cui Zhanfeng EhE 2/2 5/6
Xiong Chengyu BRET 1/2 6/6
Wang Hui TiE
(re-designated from independent non-executive (BEZE—tF A—-BeaBL
Director to non-executive Director with effect FHTESHTAFERTESLR
from 1 June 2017 and resigned with effect rom 8~ —Z—+F N A\BEET)
September 2017) 0/2 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHGTES
Chan Bing Woon o4 2/2 6/6
Wong Yiu Kit Emest EIRA 1/2 6/6
Fang Jun itk
(appointed with effect from 29 December 2017) (BZE—tFT- R+ HBEZRT) 0/0 0/0
Pang Chung Fai Benny 2 2/2 6/6
Lui Tin Nang ZPN-1
(resigned with effect from 15 September 2017) (BEZZ—tENATRAREHT) 2/2 4/4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In addition,
the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
prepares minutes and/or written resolutions and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the CEO should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The positions of the Chairman and the CEO were held by Professor
Cui Zhanfeng and Mr. Chen Chunguo, respectively.

The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the CEO which allows a balance of power
between the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures
their independence and accountability. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman
and the CEO.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO (CONT’D)

Professor Cui Zhanfeng, as the Chairman during the Reporting
Period, has taken overall responsibility for providing leadership for the
Board. He ensures that:

° the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

° the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda;

° good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and active
participation to the affairs of the Group; and

° the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.

Mr. Chen Chunguo as the CEO during the Reporting Period, was
responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of
the Group, attends to formulation and successful implementation
of policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all
operations of the Group.

Mr. Chen possesses extensive experience in investment, M&A and
corporate management. He has given valuable experience and
contribution to the Group. Working with the management team of
each core business division, he ensures the smooth operations and
development of the Group. He maintains a continuing dialogue with
the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major
business development and issues.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of two years and they are required
to retire by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, in compliance with Rules 5.05A, 5.05(1)
and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, there were four independent non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third of the board
so that there is a strong element of independence in the Board to
exercise independent judgment and of sufficient caliber and number
for their views to carry weight. Amongst them, at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors have professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

° scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of their independence
to the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision D.3 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference adopted
by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall have the following
duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices from
time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
3 subcommittees, namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of
the senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three members
who must be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof
must be independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom
must have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit Committee has
been established since 4 July 2001 with written terms of reference
which was revised on 16 March 2016 in compliance with the code
provision C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, following the nomination of Dr. Fang
Jun on 29 December 2017 as a member of the Audit Committee,
the total members of the Audit Committee are six and majority are
independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest has served as chairman of the Audit
Committee. The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

° to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i)  major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(v compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

° to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system;

° to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response;

° to review the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditors to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

° to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee (Cont’d)

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once with
the external auditor without the presence of the management.

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 July 2017, six
months ended 31 October 2017, and audited consolidated financial
statements for the eight months ended 31 December 2017 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the Reporting Period, four meetings of the Audit Committee
were held to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The following table shows the
attendance of the members of Audit Committee at the meetings of
the Audit Committee held during the Reporting Period:

EEZEE(HE)

%7‘?-;5 (mﬁ)

E’\%&iHHF'EJ ERLZEGMRATENEERELES .
ERT - BEINEZBETEE K
ERZEERBEHASEREE 2 —t5+ A
=t+—BLE=EARBE_ZE—+F+H=1+—8H
EREAZEBEURBE_S—+F+_A=1+—

BB A 2 BEZEREWHRE -

RmEHE - BRRE@/ABTHREE - R
REFRAEE MG 2WMEF RAMERE - TXRH
J BREZEEKEREHRLEERZREEERL
B

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
entitled to
attend
Name of Audit Committee Members B ZEEEH S % HE/ B
(From 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017) (ZE—+F A —HE-F—+F+-HA=T—HHMH) HESEHA
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Cui Zhanfeng G 3/4
Xiong Chengyu BT 4/4
Ray Yip (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  Z& (BEZZ—tFNAN\BREHT) 3/3
Wang Hui (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017) T (BEZZ—tFNAN\BRREHE) 2/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Chan Bing Woon R im 4/4
Wong Yiu Kit Emest ~ (appointed as chairman with effect from B (BZZ—tFNATHER 4/4
15 September 2017) BZEBER)
Fang Jun (appointed with effect from 29 December 2017)  F71& (BZE—tFT-A-ThBREZMT) 0/0
Pang Chung Fai Benny ) 3/4
Lui Tin Nang (resigned with effect from 15 September 2017)  BX& (BEZZ—tENATHRIREHT) 3/3
Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company HEiZZE SV TE@RCHEALNRIWERTE - 5
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details and 4% ¥ KTl Wé—\uiml BREREZE

are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the case
may be, for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the conclusion of the meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

According to code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 with
written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016 in
compliance with code provision A.5.2 of the CG code.

During the Reporting Period, following the nomination of Dr. Fang Jun
on 29 December 2017 as a member of the Nomination Committee
on, the total members of the Nomination Committee are six and
majority are independent non-executive Directors.

Professor Cui Zhanfeng has served as chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least
once a year. The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D) EEZEE(H)
Nomination Committee (Cont’q) EEZE= (&)

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Nomination —RFREHME - IRLE 8@ LRITHNSH - UK
Committee were held to review and recommend the structure, size, I ESSZE « BE - AR NZ oL ITREEE -
composition and diversity of the Board. Altogether the members of BINSEEE K 8 AEE S HREZ A A F4L
the Board bring a wide range of knowledge and experience to the & ' EABR AR TNEREE - TRHFI|IELE
Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Company. B& K EREHELFEIEZEESSZ 21BN
The following table shows the attendance of the members of

Nomination Committee at the meetings of the Nomination Committee

held during the Reporting Period:

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
entitled
to attend
Name of Nomination Committee Members 22 ZE8& ﬁﬁél’t% e B
(From 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017) (ZE—+F A —HE-F—+F+-HA=T—HHMH) HESEHA
Executive Directors HITES
Cui Zhanfeng (appointed as chairman with effect G (BZZ—tFNANBREZTAERE) il
from 8 September 2017)
Chen Chunguo AR 4/5
Wong Sai Hung (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017) &tk (BEZZ—tFNANBREHT) 3/4
Shao Zhengkang (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  AIBUE (BEZZ—tFNAN\BREHT) 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ray Yip (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  £& (BEZZ—tFNANBREHT) 4/4
Wang Hui (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  T#2 (BEZZ—tFNANBREHT) 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Chan Bing Woon R im 5/5
Wong Yiu Kit Emest ARG 5/5
Fang Jun (appointed with effect from 29 December 2017) 718 (B2 —tFTZ AT NHREZE) 0/0
Pang Chung Fai Benny 7 5/5
Lui Tin Nang (resigned with effect from 15 September 2017) B XS (BEZZ—tENATRBREHT) 4/4
Remuneration Committee FWESE

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company ﬁ?ﬁGEMJ:ﬁ%EE'J%% 3445 » AN B8 R S 3 B
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the B MEXZENEABIIENTEE - HM
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The Kg\ﬁg—z TREL AT+ ZHRK - AR
Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 EREMCEEATHSTEIEXEBA2EERA-E
with written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016 NEZA+NAERER -

in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the CG code.

WCH*
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’q)

During the Reporting Period, following the nomination of Dr. Fang Jun
on 29 December 2017 as a member of the Remuneration Committee,
the total members of the Remuneration Committee are six and
majority are independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny has served as chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is
scheduled to meet at least once a year. The quorum shall be any two
members.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the skill,
knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights, and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation as
to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate goals
and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of those
individual Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) of each executive Director/senior management
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates
of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined by
the Board after considering the individual’s relative performance
against the comparable organisations. The fees paid/payable to
the non-executive Directors take into account factors such as
effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors.

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management. The
criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved from certain
aspects of the Group’s business activities against targets,
together with an assessment of corporate and individual’s
performance during the Reporting Period. Bonuses payable to
the executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to ensure
alignment of their interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees, suppliers
and customers. The terms of the scheme are set out in note
34 to the financial statements. The movement of share options
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
14 September 2011 during the the Reporting Period is set out
on pages 120 to 128 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’q)

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the
Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the eight months
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held to review the remuneration package of the
Board and the senior management. The following table shows the
attendance of the members of Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the Reporting
Period:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

entitled

to attend

Name of Remuneration Committee Members HMZE &K 1% HE/ B

(From 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017) (ZE—+ &R A —RZE_F—+F+-_A=1+—H ) HESEHA

Executive Directors HTES

Ray Yip £ 5/5

Wong Sai Hung (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  &itti# (BEZZ—tFNAN\BRREHT) 3/4

Shao Zhengkang (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  AIBE (BEZZ—tFNAN\BeEHT) 4/4

Chen Chunguo (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  B&E (BZE—tFNANBRET) 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Xiong Chengyu (appointed with effect from 8 September 2017)  EEET (BEZT—tENA\RREZRT) 11

Wang Hui (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)  T#2 (BEZZ—tFNANBRREHT) 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Chan Bing Woon B i 5/5

Wong Yiu Kit Emest =R 5/5

Fang Jun (appointed with effect from 29 December 2017) 715 (BEZZ—tE+Z AT NHREZE) 0/0

Pang Chung Fai Benny 2 5/5

Lui Tin Nang (resigned with effect from 15 September 2017) B XS (BEZZ—tENATRRREHT) 4/4
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on
all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance development and
accounts for such when making decisions. The compliance officer
is directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with the
GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations applicable
to the Company.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial
year an issuer’'s company secretary must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. During the Reporting Period, the
Company Secretary has complied with the rule by taking more than
15 hours of relevant training courses and seminars.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the eight months ended 31 December 2017, auditor’s
remuneration of HK$1,022,000 (HK$1,133,000 for the year starting
from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017) was charged to the Group.
Among such fee, HK$950,000 (HK$790,000) was paid for the audit
service provided by BDO Limited, the existing auditor of the Company
who was appointed on 13 December 2010. There was no non-audit
service provided by BDO Limited during the Reporting Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes policies and procedures and limits of authority
governing the authority level and business processes. It is designed
to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The system is
intended to manage rather than to eliminate or eradicate risks.

Risk Management Process

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires. Identified
risks have been further assessed and evaluated by the Management
across the business lines. The risks have been evaluated in terms
of their impacts and the likelihood of their occurrences. As part of
the evaluation process, the risks have been prioritized based on the
evaluation results. Follow up action on key identified risks are being
taken by the management.
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(F(R)I%KN MS)NAGEI\/IENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [E B B R RN A BRI (48

Risk Governance Structure B2 E R4

The Group has established an enterprise risk management structure  EBERIEI =@EfH & WEREYT 7T OERKR SR
in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that defines the three  Z8## @ :ZRNTEE TEE - RBRESIMESL - EK
layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight, risk monitoring and ~ FUZHEIFT AN = (EAEMBE -

review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They SEMEKIFIRE—ENLE ESHENRRE
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control  I2FIEHBEIE - F B GAREBEEIREEE &
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s BERBEEZFHART ~ THEMED - 55 =B
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation — HFEZZ E @ MEBRNREPEZEFIERK - B F Y
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of B R E I M A ZBIEH| R ETIB L THE - &
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal ~ E&ISMNEBES A B Y& BB R A BT T N30
auditor department. The third line of defense is responsible for the — Hlth &EITE BT E— T T E=EHLR -
independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk management 17 E AR EZZ B @& B AIEHITIE -

and internal control systems. The external auditor of the Group

further complements the third line of defense by independently

auditing material internal controls over the Group’s financial reporting

processes and reports on material control weaknesses to the Audit

Committee on a regular basis.

Internal Control A EB1E Y

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which reports directly to  ANERER B EEMNEZZ E QERNANBEZS
the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee and the Board 9 » B AEBERNIEEIE ZRF R E LB A A E
with useful information and recommendations on the adequacy #“ZE&@hEESREEMAENMIEREES - DR
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. During the — &HIR » AEERRENBEREZESGREESIER
Report Period under review, internal audit reports are submitted to DAL EE B T HERE i 5 I JE R4 - LA — IR FH D
the Audit Committee and the Board for review with recommendations ~— BE¥ZREIRKAN » LR A BIRE R T A o

adopted to further enhance the effectiveness of the internal controls

which complied with the international and professional standards.

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and BT R B AREEEEFR A e
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures ~— ZNA BBESTE A L EAE N ([ BHREBEEN ) K&
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses GEM EMRBIZRTE - BIEERHEBRESK
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable — HEAE{EH NMEAI L 2B X HEE - BaIRNEFE Y
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as  ZBESIEHIY)E A 17 EEE N F R\ R R H (A
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the ~ AEHE c AEBERAAREZHEAFEGAEEH
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.  FEMEIRFZ B BEERE - BEASEERBEERIFHN
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality ~ FERIMERME - sz EBRIBER I - FBRERIEF AR
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, B TELH 2 o AEBM HER AN ERT
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. BEEEHEEEMNETHEEEMBNEREN » 5
The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in FEREEHEZENEFEMBEMKEREM - %
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or ~ ZEE&ERABLAEM K3 FrH X 24 - BN7BEFZi
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of HELIENEEMES -

presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires

equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information (Cont’q)

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@ access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b)  pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) notification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders or investors
are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or investors may
be put to the Board through the following channels to the Company
Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at 10th Floor, Everbright
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3966 8388;
3. By faxat (852) 2802 0026; or
4. By email at info@crmi.hk

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include () the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key information
of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its Shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear and detailed information of the
Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders through
the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting (for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice will be given). The Chairman as
well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, the Directors
are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. The management will ensure the external auditor to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

According to the Company’s articles of association, general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by
the share registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are
published on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at 10th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by
the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate
indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication
of his/her personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting. In order to ensure
the Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the
proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without adjourning
the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the
Notice as soon as practicable, say at least 15 business days prior to
the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness to comply with the code provision E.1.4 of the CG
code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website (www.crmi.hk) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”) are pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) for the eight months ended 31 December 2017
(the “Reporting Period”) and express commitment of the Group
to sustainability. This is the second ESG Report of the Group
which discloses the management, policies, performance, targets
and feedbacks of the business in providing services of the Group
in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong in
relation to sustainable development. The Group would like to take
this opportunity to present ESG performance to all investors and
stakeholders, and put forward the commitments and contributions on
social responsibility.

Report Compilation Basis

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”)
enclosed in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”) to fulfil all general disclosure
requirements.

For details of the Group’s financial performance and corporate
governance issues, please refer to the previous sections of the annual
report of which this ESG Report forms part.

Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in this ESG Report were
prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy documents and
other internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no false or
misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on several assumptions and expectations at the time of its
publication. Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to
be reliable after internal reviewing process. The statements consist
of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that
that actual results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and
conclusions made herein. No guarantee is expressed as to the
accuracy of the statements and the Group expressly disclaims any
liability for and assume no responsibility to correct or update those
forward-looking statements in the event that any of the statements
does not materialize or turns out to be incorrect.
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OUR VALUE

The Group currently focuses on four major business segments,
namely tissue engineering, cell, cosmetic and others and medical
equipment. ActivSkin®, the only tissue-engineered skin developed
in the PRC that contains living cells, engraved a leading position in
tissue engineering and regenerative medicine industry. Patients whom
applied the ActivSkin® can shorten healing time for burns and scalds,
and relieve pain. ‘Acornea’, the world’s first bio-engineered cornea
which completed its clinical trials and obtained China Food and Drug
Administration (“CFDA”) approval for commercialization, helps elevate
the Group as well as the nation to the world stage of regenerative
medicine research.

Other tissue engineering products of CRMI include: Calcined Bovine
Bone — “Gegreen”, Acellular Anal Fistula Repair Stroma - “Asiunin”,
Cell Sheet-Autologous Chondrocyte Implantation — “CS-ACI”, Guided
Tissue Regeneration Biological Membrane — “Megreen”. Also, CRMI
collaborated with Mila D’Opiz Group in Switzerland to establish
Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited, which is mainly
responsible for the entire business of the renowned Swiss skincare
brand “Ascara” in the PRC.
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D) BIHEE(E)

To become a global
leading force in medical
innovation
REABEGEIE
¥R - 5lBERK
BEEH

To become China’s one
of the pioneers in tissue
engineering and

bio-medical industry Strive to enhance health
AR !E’jiﬂig&lﬁﬂ and improye qualiy To lead a new era into
EMERERE L E&ﬁa&i;fulfl%et/\;kgm the construction of

T AR hgman S orgaqs and
tissues from tissue

engineering development
SIEAEEm T EER

FA@“*ﬂ@%%L

BRIFTLT

To develop cutting-
edge medical products
and technologies with a
focus on innovation in
regeneration medicine
EEEREEEMRR
Bl - IR BERS
op=pi=e =1kt

A value-creating business — this is what the Group aims to be. The KA RAIEEBEMNAR @ @AEEGHEEKNE
Group achieves this goal by leveraging the biological science research 12 o NEBH /RFEE L MR EITTE AL
competence to create a positive impact to the world. The research Attt FREEEBRAFE - KEBMM I TETHEIE
contributes the society by catalyzing bio-pharmaceutical research and ¥ E #4283 R - At e EHER - TR
development. The services make biological sciences research more ﬂﬁ?ﬁl%@ﬁE%&Wﬁﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%H’\]%F’Eﬂ RS
efficient by shortening the time required for biotechnology research  #IRIEFRFTIE - LF K - BEBRAIFTHSE -
procedures. Since the Group is brave in taking innovative steps, it $’$Iﬂlﬂfiﬁylﬁ SENEVBIEMRER - 7T
has contributed to breakthroughs in medical and biological science DR HEE(E -

research over the years — thus living out our value.
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OUR VALUE (CONT'D) AP E 1E ()
The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model REBHLFEHEEFE

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation with regard to the 383 - & LEAREFMNE 7T AEE 7
Group’s corporate social responsibility model, shown in below, on  # @5 TEN - BEFHEER BEERF - @EF
different aspects, including stakeholder communication, employee  E7%% - IRIFRE - AFLE - S EEI LG
welfare, health and safety, environmental protection, fair operation, 4R EHME o

social contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Stakeholder Communication
BHhEBER
Fair Operation
NFEE

Employee Welfare

EEFF
Social Contribution

HEEE

Health and Safety CRMHI
REHZE hE R 4EEEE

Maintain Sustainability

HERTHERE

Environmental Protection

RIGRE
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model
(Cont’d)

The Group continually strengthens communication and relationship
with investors. Designated senior management personnel keep
close contact with shareholders and investors through email,
teleconference, one-to-one meetings, participation in broker
forums and non-trading roadshow or other forms, so as to ensure
shareholders and investors can get latest information of the Group in
a fair and timely manner, helping them make investment decisions.
The Group will give a detailed and timely response to inquiries from
investors. The Group has made a materiality evaluation to identify
material matters in the Group’s businesses which have significant
influence on economy, environment and society, and are most
important for stakeholders. In accordance with evaluation results,
the Group hopes to make the commitments and undertake the
responsibilities to all stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent and
innovative employees who deliver quality services to the clients and
business partners and make worthwhile contributions to several
stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups of
stakeholders that are related to its main business. These stakeholders
include customers, employees, government, media and shareholders/
investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the long term
success and sustainable development. The Group will increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation in order to
achieve long-term prosperity.

BMHEEGE)
FEFNEFHEETRA(E
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY M ENSEREEM (&)
(CONT'D)

Stakeholder Communication Channels
BihE BERE
Customers 1. Company news updates
TR RNEFTEER
2. Conference
=S

3. Customer Service Hotline

B P IR AR

4, Email, facsimile and phone contacts

BH  (BERTEMES

Employees 1. E-mall
] BH
2. Internal website
AR
. Regular meetings
ple
Government 1. Cooperate with the government and regulatory authorities on
B compliance inspections

REEBRKEERBNARRE

2. Conference
P
=

3. Email, facsimile and phone contacts

BE FERERBK TN

Media 1. Company website
e N A8
2.  Press releases
FhEEAMm
Shareholders/Investors 1. Annual General Meeting
BRREE REAFRE
2. Company news updates
NS e

3. Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B HFEREFEHEAN

4. HKEx Website: Announcements, Notices, Reports, etc.
BAER MM - RE - BE WSS

5. Press releases

i

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2017

T ERE B REAEE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group recognizes the importance of good environmental
stewardship and is committed to protect and conserve the
environment. The Group hopes that the concept of environmental
sustainability lies in all aspects of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price and
environmental impact when consuming resources and materials.
The Group is closely monitoring the energy consumption and water
consumption through the concept that it is part of the communication
priorities to educate staffs on the rationale of environmentally friendly
choices, and for making them available.

As principal operation is based in the PRC, the Group is principally
subject to the PRC environmental laws and regulations such as
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (7 2 A R £ M FH IR B R
# J%), Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the
PRC (h 2 AR FEFEIIKST2585%), and Law on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC (12 A R A K R5
#7578 7%). The senior management team are delegated to perform
the maintenance of the Group’s sustainability. The representatives
of each operational department, will actively manages business in an
environmentally and socially responsible manner. The Group will meet
annually to review the key processes and identify possible aspects
underlying the operation of such department. The senior management
team will also discuss on any significant aspects identified, and
design measures accordingly. These measures will be documented
for reference to ensure effective implementation.

R EHE
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT’D) RIBEME (&)

The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse impact of the ~ REEMRK BIZEEEBYURBOTAZERE
businesses on the environment. The efforts being made throughout — fx{& o ANEBERIRE AR ATER TIEAL T -
the Reporting Period can be concluded as follows:

Practice
R

1. Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment
BRESSRRIENER
Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection

WFFARBREREOEE R RERER

3.  Creation of an environment for sustainable development
BT ERRNIES

4. Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment
RETRHABRERTHE

5 Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel
WA EBEIREERE - BIERME R

6. Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste
WA RERIE S - WA R se R E T R AR A

7.  Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of conserving
energy and reducing waste

FERET ~ BATERFEMHEER - {EERAREME - AR R
8.  Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative effects due to

the Group’s development and the environment
ANEENEBBEREE - RO MELRNEENERGRFERNERTE

>

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted R¥REHME @ AEBHMEZEENEARNERES
comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental management  IBAR B T 2B E ARG E © (REFERME AT
situations of all controlling subsidiaries to facilitate the improvement  fEIBIEEIE T EMNEEIES ; [RHISAEIRE R
and promotion of controlling subsidiaries on environmental ERMNEHE @ GEENEENITHELE - AR
management, and demanded the completion of its construction — 2 EifE - ANEE AR A(TAIIRIB R EM -

and implementation with stipulated deadlines, ensuring effective

sustainable development of the Group. During the Reporting Period,

there was no environmental pollution incident in the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
Use of Resources

The Group understands that an excellent resource management
system can improve the efficiency of utilization of resources.
Resources consumed in the daily business operation are mainly
electricity, water and paper.

The Group collect the electricity usage and sewage usage every
year in order to control the subsidiaries to avoid the waste of energy
as well as implement the strategy for energy saving and carbon
reduction. The following figures indicate the energy and water
consumption of the major operations in Shenzhen and Xi’an for the
Reporting Period.

Consumption of resources in Shenzhen operation

RIGEH (&)
BIREH

AEERARFNERERBRER MR ERE
RARE - HEEBLERANERBREED - KKk
Aok e

AEESFREREENAKE  UEHHEBR
Al BRERORE - WEIBERERMRR - AT
RN E HIEARY M h e £ R EFABERE R AKX

=
= °

RYIFEBNEFHER

Resources Consumption
iR HEE
Electricity kWh Approximate 427,000
=] TFEE #9427,000

per employee electricity consumption (kWh/employee) Approximate 6,470

BREEREE(TRRA) #16,470
Water Ton Approximate 3,011
i A #13,011

per employee water consumption (Ton/employee)
BHEERKEWMEA)

Consumption of resources in Xi’an operation

Approximate 46
#4946

BAREBNEFRHER

Resources Consumption
EIR HEE
Electricity kWh Approximate 391,000
=] T RB #3391,000

per employee electricity consumption (kWh/employee) Approximate 4,344

BREEBREE(TRRA) #)4,344
Water Ton Approximate 1,628
i WA #)1,628

per employee water consumption (Ton/employee)
BHEERKEMEA)

Approximate 18
#4918
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
Use of Resources (Cont’d)

The Group has monitored the use of resource, specified the duties
and authority of relevant staff, and avoided resource wastage.
Measures aimed at controlling the use of the electricity and fuel in
air-conditioning, lighting, machinery and vehicles, as well as water
consumption in its operations and daily usage by the Group’s staff
are put in place. For example, the Group arrange air-conditioning
and light zoning in offices to minimize unnecessary energy wastage.
After the work is done, all electric equipment must be turned off.
In addition, the Group arranges for the equipment and vehicles to
undergo regular maintenance in order to improve the performance of
equipment and to dispose high energy consumption equipment as
part of the efforts to conserve resources at source.

Currently, water resources supply comes from the regional
government via its domestic water supply. The Group is
strengthening the management of water usage and the inspection
of water conservation. The Group has adopted internal guidelines
and provides staff education to promote water conservation, as well
as routinely inspects and upkeeps water supply facilities, to reduce
water wastage. Rectifications would be implemented whenever a
water leakage was found.

The Group encourages employees to go paperless as much as
possible by liming print outs as well as communicating via e-mail as
opposed to fax. Employees are also encouraged to re-use paper
and conserve paper usage by printing double-sided to the extent
practicable.

Management of Wastes

The Group has taken several measures to deal with wastes. The
Group strictly complied with local regulations to identify and manage
the substances to ensure safe treatment, transportation, storage, use,
recycle or reuse and disposal for them. The Group also conforms to
industry practices in order to reduce wastes. The main emissions of
the operation include daily wastes, polluted water and exhaust gas.
The Group intends to minimize environmental impacts associated
with wastes generated from the operations. In this regard, the Group
promotes the “3-R” concept which aims at minimizing, to the extent
practicable, the amount of wastes produced during the course of the
Group’s business operations. The term “3-R” represents:

RIRER (&)
BIREH (&)

AEBECDERTEERNERBR - AEILEBRET
MBEER  HRERRE -AKEH=H - K
B MR R EWETHANE N E - AREE
MAEEE THBENOBRE - 1T T SRR
ZHITERE o Plan - AEESRATHZE R RS E
KERAETTHRE - R TBERERRE ° TIF=<
R - FTBERETRELHREE © o - AEER
BERB R RIS TE HMRE - ARTTR B R
ERMERERE  BONRBELHNER -

SR KRERHET A BUT E KB PR M - X
SEEMBAKER - WinEHOMK - XEER
RayMELHE S| R B TH#ITHE M EEH L AKIA
K Bt E R B HUKREAR D IORE » NEE
RAKIER - e HETTEELR °

AEESEIEERSEMMEMD  RITELIAE
B(MIEER)EM - RRREMAM - KETEE
THEDEATERERRR R RMERTE

B EE

N [ O BN B FEER TR REY) o AN E BRI ST
EHUARERFIEEDR - UBERELE2EE - &
W @E - FH DWESBRAMESEME - RE
ENBBERERIARDEY - AEELENETE
PR BIERBEY  SKRER - AEBBIR
MEBELBEYNEBREFE - AEEEHIL A
HE#TTI3-RIES - EERYEATHIBER TR
REBEEBRKERAERTIMEENEEDHE -
[3-RJ¥E :
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT’D) IRIBEH (&)
Management of Wastes (Cont’d) EYETE (18
Concept Practice
B2 =¥
(@ Reduction Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by using alternative
TR materials, processes and procedures
BRERBERME - RELEFRNERAITTNEA VR EE R EEENNHE
(o) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials
BERER BEREBREENERY REEREROME
(¢) Recycling Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful substances from them,
BIRBE such as recycling packaging material and paper

R ER AR AR e AP RRERYE - fINRRBEBEME RER

In the production process of the Group, hazardous wastes may be
generated. The hazardous waste discharge of the Group has satisfied
the regulatory requirements of government departments due to
effective recovery and disposal of wastes.

Hazardous wastes are collected with leakage-proof containers (e.g.
scrap metal bucket) to avoid leakage during transfer. A hazardous
wastes warehouse is established for collection and classified storage
of hazardous wastes. Eventually, a qualified company will be engaged
to transport the wastes out for disposal.

Emission of Greenhouse Gases

In the global trend of emission reduction, the Group has complied
with local regulations, as well as conforms to industry practices in
order to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases. Greenhouse
gases emitted by the Group are principally from transport vehicles
commissioned. In addition, the use of electricity by the Group is
also indirectly attributable to generation of greenhouse gases, most
notably carbon dioxide, in the electricity generation process.

AEBENEEBRETARELAZEEY - A5E
BTBRASBMERASEENHIBNEERNR A
MK fa B R ©

AEBEERNRRR(NESBR) WEEEEE
o LR ERBERTHRRRE - AKERIAE
BREWRE UNWREMDBEREFEEREY - &
% AEEEBEFAREBRARKETBEREELHE
& o

= B

HH 2R RNBE - ARERETE AR
Sh - TRBREERERABRBEREBEIW - AEE
FURERE T 2EREHERERSEW o W K
SENAETHRESRERE SRBRENIH
BIBIEPELN AL -
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT’D) IRIZEEMHE (&)
Emission of Greenhouse Gases (Cont’d) BEREEHK (1E)

Emission data from the operation unit of Shenzhen and Xi'an are set &Y N PO 48 & BE AT O BEPREBIEE S0 T -
out as follows:

Main Operation FELEEN
Resources
EiR
Shenzhen
w
Electricity kWh Approximate 427,000
B TR #1427,000
Carbon dioxide equivalent emission for electricity consumption (Note 1) Ton Approximate 384.1
HEIEREH e 2B () A #1384.1
Water (VR Approximate 3,011
7K SR #33,011
Carbon dioxide equivalent emission for water consumption Ton Approximate 1.3
MK ZRILIRE EHEW A #91.3
Xi’an
(i
Electricity kWh Approximate 391,000
B TR B #7391,000
Carbon dioxide equivalent emission for electricity consumption (Note 1) Ton Approximate 369.7
MBI EFEN A E 2B () T8 #1369.7
Water VR Approximate 1,628
7K K #91,628
Carbon dioxide equivalent emission for water consumption Ton Approximate 0.7
AR ZRILIRE S HEW A #90.7

Note 1: emission factor is sourced from the China Southern Power Grid in  FizE1 : BEAZERE - — NFHRREEHEN - U5
2016. The figures are calculated in accordance with the “Reporting RRRRBRERURR MRS5S 5 E -
Guidance on Environmental KPIs”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any Ri&EHIE - ANER W EEERBETIRRE &S
complaints, fines, sanctions or any other parties in respect of any  ERIRIEEREEMIEF - S - EERR
environmental protection issues or breaches of environmental HE/EHESNETMEAIRIRTSEN - NS H
regulations, and had not experienced any material environmental [ - K& Ij’[,ﬁﬂg?ft}iiﬁiﬁ;z&jz;ﬁ,@hﬁﬁgﬁix
incidents arising from daily activities. During the Reporting Period, no 17 |k st 52 S M ¥ & dE = A T Al 2 28

material administrative sanctions or penalties were imposed upon the

Group for the violation of environmental laws or regulations which had

an adverse impact on its operations.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Labor Standards

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human resource
policies stipulating rules on recruitment, compensation, training,
welfare, promotion guidelines and dismissal. In order to safeguard
benefits for the employees, the Group abides by Labor Law of the
PRC (% A R £ MEI 4 8)5%), Labor Contract Law of the PRC (1
ZEAREFMBELSHA /\ [ /%), the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong (& % & ﬂ% 14 5]) and employment laws applicable to relevant
jurisdictions where operations are located. Labor contracts or
employment agreements are entered into between the Group and
the employees. Moreover, the Group regularly monitors information
related to employment to prevent non-compliance with labor laws
and regulations.

As the Group strictly adhered to the Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Minors (4 ZE A R £ A B K 5K F A (R # /%), the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and other laws and regulations in all
aspects, the Group does not permit forced labor or child labor under
any circumstances. All new employees’ identification card should
be checked before they entry the Group to ensure their age meets
requirements of laws and regulations.

Recruitment Process

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure consistency
and compliance in the recruitment and selection process, as well
as to promote a fair opportunities to each candidates, the Group
has detailed recruitment policies in place. An objective and carefully
documented recruitment process will ensure that any discrimination
risks are minimized and will give us the best possible chance of
identifying the right candidate. Regardless of nationality, gender,
age, race, religious belief or disability, etc, candidates with relevant
professional qualifications and working experience receive equal
consideration for employment.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2017
B LR R REARE

HEET

2 TER)

AEBT BN - T 123 - B - BFIESIR
RESRY —ERENANERBEST - AIRER
BiEF| - AEEYSFRE A RLMBF LS « hiE
AREFELEARE - BSEEIEHRLEME
ARSI EE LR - LBHARNERTS
TR AEMEE BT - oh o ANEMET HIERE
AR A AR B T A BB AR AR E T -

SR BN BT ES AR ST R AR KMBIRAK
FAREL - BERERBIGE MEMERIER - &£
ERIBER TAEES T AFFRES TRERFET -
PrEFRERBARKERIHAZEREGNE - A
PRI EN A ERERRERIRE

HEEF

RTIRSHEERENME - WHRRRERBERE
PH-HERARYE - URABMIREARTLAF
ME  ARECRYFANBERR - F8A
O REERH) RIS AR AR PRI R AR -
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D) HEEmUE)
Labor Standards (Cont’d) HTXER(E)
Team Profile =/c8-pH

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and equitable manner $§‘§%@ﬂﬁﬁ%v?i?é&iﬁﬁriwﬁAﬁ%ﬁ%Q
through social media such as online platforms and newspaper “FRIEMBEAS - EAREBZ TN EFEAS
advertisements. Across the Group’s diversified business portfolio, as ‘:F' rEEHZE-_ZT—+F+_A=1+—HBEER
of 31 December 2017, the Group has a workforce of 449 in anumber BN EBIEHE449ZE T - B TMHEMKIT ¢

of locations in the PRC and Hong Kong. The composition of staffs is as

follows:

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
RIS D HE TR

51% 49%

@ Vvae =it Female 2zt

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR @



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2017
B LR R REARE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D) MEEE(E)
Labor Standards (Cont’d) HTXER(E)
Team Profile (Cont’d) BB EX (E)

Categorized by employee’s gender, male employees accounted ZEEHRINDLE - BMHEE(LX49% @ MAZEEE
for approximately 49% and female employees accounted for the  (F82T51% ° $%l§,@7/%%ﬁ1§§\2%ﬁa’w&@&ﬁ
remaining 51%. The Group believes in equality of opportunity and B¥% - BAE A FIW (RHERFEBEELREER
treatment between male and female employees because it is just and 3§ o $’$.w—jjj 7 e B TIEP TS50 HE
fair and promotes good business and better performance. The Group B2 I F/ELER - Ut E B 2 BBl 7R
recognizes that equality at work between male and female employees A i M (o) D IRESEBRBFEANA LR EREA
means (a) discrimination is not existed in the recruitment process to  {&:& AR LSS -

get the best candidates for the appropriate vacancies; and (b) equality

of opportunity in providing assignments based on candidate’s merit

and choice.

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
REREOMNE THEE

8%

14%

45%

@ <=0 30-40 @ :1-50 @ s

DH305% 30Z405% 41E505% NN
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D) MEEE(E)
Labor Standards (Cont’d) L TR (&
Team Profile (Cont’d) BB EX (E)

As for employee distribution by age, aged below 30 accounted for 1% {&E & F# 9 48 * 305 A NME4933% : 302 405%
approximately 33%; aged 30 to 40 accounted for approximately 45%; 15 %J45% : 412505516 4914% + M515 A R4
aged 41 to 50 accounted for approximately 14%; and aged above 51 8% °

accounted for approximately 8%.

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION
BHBEKFETHETHEH

2%
159, 11%
0

@ Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D”) @) Master @ Bachelor ) Diploma Other
Bt ( [ELt]) Bt B4 R Hh
Professionals in different fields are the Group’s precious assets. JEBEHMNEEASTRAETNETELE - KA

Categorized by education level, employees with Ph.D background B/KF 048 #EELTEFEMNESMESLIEN
accounted for approximately 2% of the total number of employees;  £92% : #EAETEMHEEHH11% : HEEEL
employees with Master degree accounted for approximately 11%; B MESNHLI47%  HEEESCRNESLY
employees with Bachelor degree accounted for approximately 47%;  31% : MEAMES(EER T 9% °

employees with diploma accounted for approximately 31%; and

others accounted for the remaining 9%.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to support the
precious asset, employees. In addition to the international labor
standards and laws, the Group has created internal guidelines and
systems specific to industry to make sure employees would discharge
their duties effectively. The Group insists on the identification of safety
risks of various job positions so that the injuries and diseases can be
prevented effectively.

Remuneration, Benefits and Holidays

The Group provides our employees “5 Insurances and 1 Pension”,
business trip allowance, birthday allowance, wedding allowance,
body check, and holiday allowance. Employees are entitled to
national holidays, company holidays, annual leave, funeral leave,
marital leave, maternity leave and sick leave as well. In addition, The
Group also adopted measures, such as distributing gifts and benefits,
as well as holiday lengthening, to further enhance the benefits system
and its staff satisfaction.

Staff Development and Training

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment through
development and training in the Group. Equipping employees
with the appropriate knowledge not simply benefits the long term
development, but the society as a whole.

On-job Training
EHEHE

Internal

AR

Self-learning

B RIS

T

Mutual

Communication

LAY

External Parties

INEBEE AR

Training Course
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BERZE
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BEE RBEEZMEE - REIRS TER AR
Sl AEEE HIEBPIEEATTER R RS 5] K Hl

& ARREBEARETHE - AEERHED
BRI TR TERRMZ 2 AR - UEA e TS
BB EROEE -

FHl - @R AR
AEBAEBRHEAR—S] - EHORY - LA
B WIRR . BRTREER R - (R 5 S 2
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BRANRIER = b5 - A EIEREUEZAE & RARFIA
&Lﬁﬁﬂﬁhm E—SERABMHERETH
BT ZRAE

AEEFRAEEBRRATIHAEBMZEBME - 12
FREBEEMNMD  TEEINAEENRRE
B HEEHEIIEEAER -

On-site Visit
ShEE R

Case Database

=BIERE

Others
HAith
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)

Staff Development and Training (Cont’d)

HEEm (&)
ETZEMNE (&)

Understanding that employees are a vital factor for success in B B2 F 17T E TSI AR E 857 2 B E

the competitive industry and promotion of innovation, during the
Reporting Period the Group continued to provide a wide range of
training opportunities. The comprehensive training and development

opportunities include, but not limited to the followings:

Training & Development

Target

= ARR  AEERAHEASERE —ES
FREEIIEE - FREFIIMERKERBRENR
RIAT&IA

Summary of Training

R AEI

Induction Training
BT ABIEII

Measures for Implementation of
Work Safety in Production
LEAEEERE

Reinforcement Class for
Managerial Representatives in
Medical Equipment Business

BEESMAEERERRREST

Measures for the Supervision
and Administration of Medical
Devices

EESMKEEBEEEIE

Director’s Induction Training

B Bl

Training on Emotional
Management
TBHEEIRRIZ

Training on Detection Technology,

Detection Measures and CRO

Service Process Management
TORIE ~ B F R R E TR

HRERBRIZE IR

Fire Safety Training
SH 2 2 EL A1 EIE

R

New employees

MiEE

Manufacturing
departments

SUERRPT

Management team
T [

Related
departments

A E A2 AERE AR

Directors
=5
Employees

(=1

Risk Management
Department
[\ Bea R B

All employees
THESR

BB

Introduction of the Group’s vision, mission, culture,
organizational structure, rules and regulations as well as
trainings on operational standards, job specifications,

work procedures and customer service etiquette for each
department of the Group

REEZFES - o )b - AR - RARAEFNEAR
REEFIPIFRIELER] - THEHA - THERBNEF RS

2]

Internal training focusing on work safety in the daily operation
EIRBEENTIEZ2HAREII

Comprehensive training specific to the management team on
building effective coaching techniques; mastering problem
analysis and decision making; strengthening interpersonal
skills; and recognizing team success with enthusiasm
EMETHERER R B RBEERAEI  ZEREST R
IR R ARRZAERD  RABREEFKNNEEER
BRIEERE FI

Training on the measures deliberated and adopted at the

executive meeting of the CFDA
HEERRFET eI RBNEMETHERE

Specific induction training for directors
EFARAREY

Training is provided to ensure the mental health of employees
RIS - AeiRiE B O IR

Sessions regarding the detection technologies and CRO
service process

B RARAIM R R B IR R R AT R &

Training on fire prevention and fire escape
TRF A K Bk 5
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
Staff Development and Training (Cont’d)

Through comprehensive, diversified and systematic development
mechanism, the Group broadens the international perspectives of
the employees, deepen their professional knowledge, strengthen
corporate vision and bring out creative ideas to the ever-changing
environment.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners. Stability,
safety and effectivity of product quality is directly influenced by
the selection of suppliers. To effectively manage the supply chain,
the Group has developed a comprehensive system for assessing
new and existing suppliers. The Group has further regulated the
operational procedures of evaluation and approval for main suppliers,
and clarified the suppliers’ qualification, selection principle, quality
evaluation methods, evaluation standard, and approval procedure for
main supplier. The Group requires suppliers to comply with local laws
and regulations in all aspects. Most of the supplies of the Group are
procured from the PRC. The PRC government has strict laws and
regulations governing social and environmental risks.

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s business and product distribution are
relied on agents to introduce and promote the products to hospitals
for sale. Therefore, the management of the agents is very crucial to
the Group. To avoid inefficiencies in agents and to strengthen the
sales performance, the Group has tailor-made contracts for each
agent in accordance with its selling ability and respective target
customers in the PRC. The contracts clarify the province or area in
which the agents are responsible for, as well as the hospitals they
cooperate with. The contracts also list out the compensation they
get, and the sales amount that is targeted to be achieved during the
contract period. The Group will evaluate agents from time to time
following their performance against the contract terms. The Group
believes that the management of agency contracts can help to
control the quality of agents and to implement the business strategy
efficiently.

HEEm (&)
ETZEMNE (&)

BEEE - ZICREFCNERES - AKER
FIREMBEIRRE  RMCEERME - REEEM
RNHEREBENRBELAIR -

RIEHEETE

HEARASENRUEGAIERHE - fERNE
BERTVEEREENRTN R2UERBAMIE -
REWERHER  AREDREY —E2EANE
EJEHEIENRBHER - AREEHEHIE
BEERR - HEBHEEmF G RELRIFRER
TR - AT EHERARERAEER
FERRA - BO0% - FHERERELRRERF - A&
BERERHESET @B TERERIER - K
SEAmARD RIEPERE - PEBTHIER R
REEE RIRBRREEAREM

REBEAIEHE

RERBARE D O EH MEmD IHREROIEE R E
Brol B RIiEEEMASHE - Bt - EEMNER
HAEEMEEREE - SERRIERMERETL
RITEHERE - ARERBRIZHHHEEEL IR
HEPENEREPASRERESEHEN -4
HWAETREBRARENEDHRE - REFANUE
TEHYEEBT © A K TRES| H R SEGH RN A O
WAZERH B IRHER - AREHTRRIES K
FEHEREEN KRR - ARERS - HRIEAHHN
EEAPNEFIRERNEE - YAEREBELHR

i
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
Anti-corruption

To ensure honest, loyal behaviors and ethical conduct among
employees, the Group has adopted code of ethics and anti-
corruption regulations, so as to enable employees’ conducts and
behavior to be monitored throughout daily operations. The Group
performs annual self-evaluation to look at the implementation of
code of ethics and relevant regulations, the objective of which is to
ensure the thoroughness and consistency in actual operations and
management practices, with a view to balancing and safeguarding
interests of the stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships.
The Group employs independent auditors to carry out external audits
on the Group, aiming at preventing corruptive behaviors within the
Group through internal supervision and external audits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any relevant standards, rules, codes
and regulations. There were no complaints of corruption against the
Group or any of the Group’s employees during the Reporting Period.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives for products and services excellence across all the
business activities. To protect the samples from contamination in the
laboratory, the Group has devised procedures for operations in the
laboratory. The Group also requires the laboratory technicians to wear
protection suits and to regularly clean and disinfect the laboratory
equipment, in order to maintain workplace hygiene and prevent the
cross-contamination of the products.

Apart from the hygiene control in laboratory, the Group also
understands the importance of an accurate testing result. Thus, the
Group has developed policies in relation to the management and
maintenance of laboratory equipment, especially the calibration of
laboratory equipment. Our equipment is calibrated externally by
professionals and internally when necessary to ensure its accuracy.
Qualified personnel is assigned to each equipment for the daily
management and maintenance, to make sure equipment that we are
using is in good condition. Damaged equipment will not be used until
they are fixed by the suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences with products
and services is the key to the Group’s success. The Group constantly
interacts with customers by reviewing their enquiries and feedback
so that performance can be tracked regularly. Also, the Group is
dedicated to provide after-sale maintenance and operational technical
supporting services to customers. Training is provided to employees
in offering comprehensive services to customers.

HEREE(E)
REF

REREEBNHE - BHTALBERT  AEE
ERMERTAMRETER - MERENTAR
RERBEARLETHRINER - AEEETT
FEBHMEARBBRE TR GOEER
o REMEERREREEREEENSI =2
—HWRETT - e FERRERHENNR LR
RHRHAR - AEBZRBRBUZEEINEALE
EITINEDEN - BABBNEEE RIMNEEZ - B
IASERERESRTRS -

RBERA - AEREL TNAEAEREAREST
BRAEE - A STRIRMAEPIIER - RREHRE
MEHUASEXIAEBEMNREFHEE TN

EmElf

EEBEED  ARETEEE®R MRS LEEK
1B REREREGARSR  AREGEREE
ERIERFF - AEETREERERMABFEDR
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BERIEERRXIFH
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RREHERE - REMABBERESHREE
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
Intellectual Property and Confidential Information

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect operational
and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure agreements are signed
by all suppliers. A systematic approach is implemented internally to
ensure that only designated employees have access to sensitive and
confidential information. No confirmed cases of data leakage were
identified during the Reporting Period.

Privacy

In accordance with the Law of the PRC against Unfair Competition (4
= NREMBE R IEEHFE), refer to matters that are not known by
the general public, can bring economic benefits to the Group, are of
practicality, and include technical secrets and operational information
protected by the Group’s confidentiality measures. Furthermore, the
clients’ privacy is our first prioritized concern, the Group regulates and
educates all level of employees to have professional ethics and never
leak any confidential information of clients to third parties.

In view of the customer confidential information, the Group
implemented a strict confidentiality system. According to the system,
the Group should enter into a confidentiality agreement with the client
who provides the confidential information. Meanwhile, for ensuring no
betraying confidential matters, risk control department of the Group
is responsible for investigating the confidential information to delimit
secrecy scope and ascertain information-security. The Group also
provides employees with education regarding confidentiality, including
specifies the confidentiality obligation of employees in employee
manual.

HEEm (&)
HBEERREER]

AEEC T ARG BRI ERERESE
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FREREAR - REPHLEEREEENRE
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REBFEARKNBERTNEERTE  BEWER
BARDTIIME e RAREEREENZ - A
B E M AR A SR B R EUR B e A A = A
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B AREREYHAESRETIRSREER 8
TEEPHE KT ESERGRE =T °

AEBHETNTPHEERN T RGN REH
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT’D)
The Community

With the market’s focus on corporate behavior, the short-sighted
behavior of maximizing financial returns to shareholders is no longer
the management goal of business. The Group stays proactive in
fulfilling the responsibilities as a corporate citizen of the community.
As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to extending
the efforts from own operation to the wider society. The Group
believes that staff members are the core value makers in the
society. The Group will continue to pool the strengths and commit
itself in increasing community participation, balance of interests of
stakeholders and strives to build a corporate-community relationship
that promotes harmony, security and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and documented a specific
community policy, social care is deep-seated in the Group’s
corporate culture. Employees are encouraged to participate in various
charitable events and community service.

Aspect Description

Ji=fT] Eipu

Aspect A1: General Disclosure

Emissions —fEHE R

HAT :

PEnn Information on:

BRAERIOREREIR - mKELEDT -
BENBEERYNELSHN
(@  the policies; and
HE M
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
BFHBETAGERTENRBER AR
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BEH -

Aspect A2: General Disclosure

Use of Resources —RRHREE

[EHEA2 :

BRER Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BREABER(RIEER « KREMEREME) A
% o

Aspect A3: General disclosure

The Environment —RR R

and Natural

Resources Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant

[EEAS : impact on the environment and natural resources.

RERRAER IR BT ABIRIE R RN E RER AT BRI

& o

HEREE(E)
#HE

BEEMISURET AN  BREAWHE xAZL/(
CIERRIE —ERTACETEEREENER

AEERBEEITES —REEARNHENEE
ERABENDEE  AREXEHEERE FEKLE
BRRE  BEZBNERMNESERENTEE
o AKEREETRAESE EULTTTEE’]V/U?J

2 - AKEREESETRANE  EIHELRE - F
BRHENTZ  BBEEEBE - 22 REE
B 1 2 Bt [E R o

BEREEWRT Mt AT REBER @ B
BHENHS S RAFERRAEENDEVEE
o AEEHEIEESESEEAS T RAMER
ﬁ% o

Details

For more details, please refer to pages 98 to 103.
BT ZHE  #2HE98E103E -

For more details, please refer to pages 98 to 101.
BREZHIS - F2HFE8E1018 °

For more details, please refer to pages 98 to 103.
BHEE LS - 52 HE8E103E ©

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2017
T ERE B REAEE

Aspect Description Details
EE Rt L
Aspect B1: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to Page 104.
Employment —R = BT LS - 52H%E1048H ©
EEB :
EE Information on:
BT RIERNER

(@  the policies; and
BER R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
BT AN BEAT BN EERER
Aspect B2: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to pages 104 and
Health and Safety —fE R 108.
[BHEB2 : BT %1% B2H%E104K%108E -
fERRERZ 2 Information on:
BEANTEIENER

(@)  the policies; and

BUOR + M

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
BFHBETAAERZENEMER AR
Aspect B3: General disclosure For more details, please refer to pages 108 to 110.
Development and — = EHAE LS - 52HE108E 1108
Training
[EHEB3 : Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
B R IET skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
BRRAEE BT LIEBERAHE KRR RBUE -
HAIEIES o
Aspect B4: General disclosure For more details, please refer to pages 104 to 107.
Labor Standards —REHEE BHEEZFE  F2HE104E1075 -
[ETHEBS -
A5 T AR Information on:

AR IEE T SoaHI4 T -
(@  the policies; and
BER M

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
BHBETAAERZENEBEREIER

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

BB -
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Aspect
=)

Aspect B5:
Supply Chain
Management
MBS :
AR ET

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility
[ETHEB6
EmAE

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption
[EEBT
RES

Aspect B8:
Community
Investment
[ETHEBS :
HERIRE

Description
i
General Disclosure

—RIEE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
BRAERMEIERENRIR RS REREBUR o

General Disclosure

—RREE

Information on:
ERFREERNRBOERAZS - &S - 28
RALEEE AR AR

(@  the policies; and
WE R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

BTHETABEATENHERERIOER

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

RYER o

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:
AR IEARES - 1R - BGFRERER ¢
(@  the policies; and

B &

(o)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

BTHEITABERZENBRER AR

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

KB -
General Disclosure

—fRBER

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BN ESER T BREITAS L%Eﬁ@%%ﬂ
R EEB R 8 S E Rt R T =B

Details

#h

For more details, please refer to Page 110.
BT %15 - w2H%E1108 -

For more details, please refer to Page 111.
BEHRE %% #2H%81118 -

For more details, please refer to Page 111.
BREZHE  #2HF 1A -

For more details, please refer to Page 113.
BHEZHE - #2H%118E -

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
= EEfRE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the eight
months ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the R&D of bio-medical
and healthcare products, and medical techniques; the provision of the
production and sales of tissue engineering products and its related
by-products; as well as sales and distribution of medical products
and equipment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting Period as
well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance under
review and the material factors underlyings its financial performance
and financial position are provided in sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on page 6 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 7 to 58 of the annual report and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the eight months ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 145.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held on
Friday, 11 May 2018 (the “AGM”"). For determining the entitement to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 8 May 2018 to Friday, 11 May 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company
in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 7 May
2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 256.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$2,051,657,000
(As at 30 April 2017: HK$2,263,445,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 148 and note 31 to the financial
statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Chen Chunguo (Chief Executive Officer)

Ray Yip (re-designated from non-executive Director to executive
Director with effect from 8 September 2017)

Shao Zhengkang (resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)

Wong Sai Hung (resigned with effect from 30 November 2017)

Non-Executive Directors

Cui Zhanfeng (Chairman of the Boara)
Xiong Chengyu
Wang Hui (re-designated from independent non-executive Director to

non-executive Director with effect from 1 June 2017 and
resigned with effect from 8 September 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Bing Woon
Wong Yiu Kit Ermnest
Fang Jun (appointed with effect from 29 December 2017)
Pang Chung Fai Benny
Lui Tin Nang (resigned with effect from 15 September 2017)

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Professor Cui Zhanfeng and Mr. Chan Bing Woon
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Dr. Ray Yip and Dr. Fang Jun shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 59 to 65 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from the
date of appointment. After the expiry of the appointment letter(s), the
Director(s) shall agree to continue to hold office as a Director, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. In the event that the Director(s) is successfully re-elected
at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company, the
Director(s) shall enter into a supplemental letter with the Company for
continuation of his/her appointment for a term of two years.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters in respect
of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those set out in note 35 to the financial statements and
under heading “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in this report, none
of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTIONS BBIRE

Share Option Scheme B 2

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted WRZZE——FNAFMHH - KA FEFNERAETE
on 14 September 2011 for the primary purpose of providing  ([REE:TE]])  TERAMABRALRTEELAEE
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Company. & E BIR L ESE)

The movement of share options under the share option scheme WEHE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIt/\(AA AR
adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011 during the eight AR =T ——F 7 A+ V0B EH 2 BRETSIE T
months ended 31 December 2017 was as below: ZBEREFFHNT -

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BEC3-tETCAZT-BLMERZERERE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
B i
Bz TE-tf TE-tf
fFE HERERR BRIEREZ BA=1H tZB=t-A
RERAL REAH (7)) AnEEH i HAGR BEH Bk CENSE BA¥ HAGE
Directors 16/9/2015 045 16 September 2016 10 Up to 20% (“1st Options’) 37,010,000 NIL NL (19,590,000 (3,500,000 13,920,000
S “T-1f 15 September 2017 55007 ERE]) i E
NATHA (both days inclusive)
(the “1st Period)
“E-ENATRRE
“E-tERATRA
(BfEEERE)
(T (B8
16 September 2017 to Up t0 20% ‘2nd Options’) {together
15 September 2018 with any 1st Options which
(ooth days inclusive) have not been exercised
(the *2nd Period!) during the 1st Period)
“S-HENATIRE 5% E-HERE])
:T NERATER (BERE-EHERRAR
(BfEEERA) LERE-RERE)
([E-fEsm)
16 September 2018 to Up to 20% (*3rd Options") together
15 September 2019 with any 1st and 2nd Option’s
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been exercised
(the “3rd Period) during the 1st Period and
“E-\ENATRAZ 2nd Period)
Z2NENATRE 5% E=AERE)
(BfEEERE) (EFRE-EERR
(£ =(R8R) ”‘flﬁﬁ SRATTRZ
F-ARE-7ERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

BRE(E)
BREZ(E)

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BECR-tETAZT-RLNERZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i B
BlE2 8-tk I3t
fikE BERERR BRUEREL RA=1H TZAZt-8
AERAL REAH (#1)  AOREH i AR BEH B CENGE B&H HAGE
16 September 2019 to Up to 20% (‘4th Options") together
15 September 2020 with any 1st, 2nd and 3rd Options
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been exercised
(the "4th Period) during the 1st Period,
“Z-NERATARE 2nd Period and 3rd Period)
RIZENATRE S50%([EmRHERE])
(BfEEERE) (EFRE—(EER
(EmEssE)) S [HERE=EE
AR FEEH
E_RRE=MERE
16 September 2020 to Up to 20% (*5th Options’) (together
15 September 2025 wiith any 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th
(ooth days inclusive) Options which have not been
(the *5th Period’) exercised during the 1st Period,
ZECEENATARE 2nd Period, 3rd Perod and
“ES-RENATEA 4t Perod)
(BfEEERE) SH0%[ERHERE])
(£ RiAERE) (EFRE—(EER
EZEE - ZZRHER
SOEERRAAR 2
-0 £ £=hk
EMRHERE)
9/9/2016 0.291 9 September 2017 0 8 September  Up to 20% (‘First Options) 60,200,000 NIL NL (47,000,000 (4,500,000) 8,700,000
25 2018 (oot daysinclusive)  H520%([ E—(3ERE) i 2
AANA (the Firs Period’)

“I-LEAANRE
Z2-\EAANR
(BfiEERA)
(1% - {EER)

9 September 2018 to
8 September 2019
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Second Period)

“E-)\FNANRE
“E-NENANA
(nEEEERA)
([E-fEsm)

Up to 20% (*Second Options’)
(together with any First
Options which have not been
exercised during the
First Period)

SH0%([E-hERE])
(ERRE-BERRAGR
RS- {hiERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

BB PR A (
BRE 2 ()

nla

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BEC3-tETCAZT-BLMERZERERE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i i
Bz TE-tf “E-tf
fFE HERERR BRIEREZ BA=1H tZB=t-R
AERAL REAH (7)) AnEEH i HAGR BEH Bk CENSE BAX HAGE
9 September 2019to Up to 20% (‘Third Options’) (together
8 September 2020 with any First and Second Options
(ooth days inclusive) wihich have not been exercised
(the “Third Period’) during the First Period and
“E-NENANEE Second Peroc)
ZRIRENANA 5% E=AERE)
(BfEEERE) (EFRE-EERR
(E=(R8R) ”‘M@ SRATTRZ
F-ARE-7ERE)
9 September 2020 to Up to 20% (‘Fourth Options’)
8 September 2021 (together with any First,
(ooth days inclusive) Second and Third Options
( the “Fourth Period’) which have not been
ZECEENANRE exercised during the
ZE-ERAN First Period, Second
(BfEEERA) Period and Third Perod)
(EmEERE]) EH00( EMAERE])
(EFRE—(EER
& Z[HE s = AR
AR IS
E-hRE=HERE)
9 September 2021 to Up to 20% (‘Fitth Options’) (together
8 September 2025 with any First, Second, Third and
(ooth days inclusive) Fourth Options which have not
(the “Fifth Period) been exercised during the
ZEZ-FNANRE First Period, Second Period,
ZECRERAN Third Period and Fourth
(REEEMA) Perod)
(TE TSR 5% £nAERE])
(BERE-EHH
Em il R
REMEREAIEL

Eaz-h 220
F-hREMm0ERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

BRE(E)
BREZ(E)

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BECR-tETAZT-RLNERZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i B
BlE2 8-tk I3t
fikE BERERR BRUEREL RA=1H TZAZt-8
AERAL REAH (#1)  AOREH i AR BEH B CENGE B&H HAGE
25012017 03025 1 Aprl 20200 31 March 2021 Up o 30% (‘A Options’) 500,000,000 NIL NL NIL NL 500,000,000
“5-tE-§ (both days inclusive) 5300 ABERE ) & & & 2
il (the “A Perioc!)
“RCRENA-RE
e
)
1 Apri 20211031 March 2022 Up to 30% (‘B Options’)
(ooth days inclusive) (together with any A Options
(the ‘B Period") which have not been
“E--FRA-BZ exercised during the A Period)
TRIIESRET-E? RA0%(BEERE])
(BfEERMA)(BHR)) (EFRAERHATE
LEMNEETRTE)
1 Aprl 202210 Up to the remaining balance
24 January 2027 of the options granted
(ooth days inclusive) [together with any A and B
(the “C Perod) Options which have not
ZEZ-FMA-RE been exercised during the
It g =i A Period and B Period)
(BEEEMO)(CER))  RPACRLBRESS
(ERRAEERBHRE A
112 AIAERBEERE)
Others 16/9/2015 045 For Grantegs other than new employees who have joined 99,560,000 NIL NL 19,590,000 (189240000 100,226,000
ifh “5-RE the Company for less than 12 months or are yet to commence & &
AATHA work with the Company on the relevant date of grant

(as the case may be):

SEERE B ZARA(RIA
AR AA R FER)

1st Period
E-[5H

2nd Period
E

RAASRT-RAR
s (EERE)

1st Options
E-1ERE

2nd Options (together with any
15t Options which have
not been exercised during
the 1t Period)
F_MEREGIANE R
HATE NS - RERE)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) B RE(E)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) IR 2] (4E)

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BECR-tETAZT-RLNERZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise ~ Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i 1
BlE2 8-tk I3t
fikE BERERR BRUEREL RA=1H TZAZt-8
ERAL REAH (#1)  AOREH i AR BEH Bk CENME B&H HAGE
3rd Period 3rd Options (together with any
EAR L 15t and 2nd Options which
have not been exercised
during the 1t Period and
2nd Period)

FZhERE(ERRE A
R - EEREATEZ A
E-RRE-RERE)

4th Period 4h Options (together with any
EAERH 1st, 2nd and 3rd Options
which have not been
exercised during the 1st Period),
2nd Period and 3rd Period)
EMRERE(ERRE -
B8 2-EEERE=A
ﬁﬁ H%ﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂ% 3
—ARE=RERE)

5th Period 5th Options (together with any
ERREEH 1st, 2nd, 3rd end 4
Options which have not
been exercised uring the
1st Period, 2nd Period,
3rd Period and 4th Period)
sLhERE(ERNS
EH R R
DR EmES ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
EME—R - E20
E-hREmhERE)

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the
CGompany forless than 12 months or are et to commence
work with the Gompany on the relevant date of grant
(as the case may be):

FRERRL RS ARABIASRAT R ZERD
REBREATER HERME(RERTR) -

16 March 2017 to Up 1020% (‘Options 1)
15 March 2018 S50% [ ERE )
(ooth days inclusive)

(the “Period 1)

e A=

’ﬁ—/‘\i HﬁE

(BEERRA) ([
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EERHE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

BRE(E)
BREZ(E)

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BECE-tETAZT-RLNEAZERERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise ~ Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i i
Bk TE-tf tE-tf
fikE BERERR BRLERES BA=1H tZB=t-R
RERAL REAH (#1)  AOREH AT AR BRH Bk CENME B&H HAGE
16 March 2018 to Up 10 20% (‘Options 2)
15 March 2019 (together with any Options 1
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
(the “Period 2') exercised during the Period 1)
“E-N\EZATrRE S520% )
ZE-MEZATEA (ERREEEATEL
(BfEEEMB)([5H2)) [EERE)
16 March 2019t Up 0 20% (‘Options 3)
15 March 2020 [together with any Options 1
(ooth days inclusive) and 2 which have not been
(the “Period &) exercised during the Periods
ZE-NEZATARE Tand?)
ZECEESATEA R520%([ERiEs))
(BfEEERMA)([HH)) (BRI RoBATTEL
[ERE R2)
16 March 2020 to 15 March 2021 Up to 20% (‘Options 4') together
(both days inclusive) with any Options 1, 2 and 3 which
(the *Period 4') have not been exercised during
“ECFECBRAE the Periods 1, 2 and 3)
ey il S50 ([ BiRi4)) (ERREE
(BfEEEMB)([50H)) 1 OR3RfIE R E
1-2R3)
16 March 2021 to Up to 20% (together with any
15 September 2025 Options 1,2, 3 and 4 which
(ooth days inclusive) have not been exercised
5T -FZATARE during the Periods 1,2, 3
ZECRENATEA ad4)
(AfEERRA) SHN%ERRER 23
RAmR{TE L EiERHE -
2:3R4)
9/9/2016 0.291  For Grantees other than new employees who have joined 139,030,000 NIL NL 47000000 (38,046,000 147,984,000
Z5nE the Company fo less than 12 months or are yet to commence i £
NANE work with the Company on the relevant date of grant (as the

case may be):

STEERE B ZARARIA
AR AA R FER)

the First Period
E-[5R

RAASRT-RAR
R TIE

the First Options
F-1EkE

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR
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BEGHE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) B RE(E)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) IR 2] (4E)

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BECR-tETAZT-RLNERZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise ~ Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i 1
BlE2 8-tk I3t
fikE BERERR BRUEREL RA=1H TZAZt-8
ERAL REAH (#1)  AOREH i AR BEH Bk CENME B&H HAGE
the Second Period the Second Options (together
A with any First Options which
have not been exercised
during the First Period)
E-hERE(ERRE-E
i Cler i)
E-1ike)
the Third Period the Third Options (together
-9 with any Fist and Second
Options which have not
been exercised during the
First Period and Second
Period)

FhERE(EANE B
SRREEAERASR
LHIE-HRE=D
B

the Fourth Period the Fourth Options (together

EAERE] with any First, Second and
Third Options which have
not been exercised during
the First Period, Second
Period and Third Period)

EMERE(EARE -

85 Z-EERRE=A
BRRATE EE-H
E_RRE=RERE)

the Fifth Period the Fifth Options (together

EnEERE with any Firs, Second,
Third and Fourth Options
which have not been
exercised during the
First Period, Second Period,
Third Period and Fourth
Period)

ELRERE(ZANE -

BE 2oEEE 2R
BERENEEERAAE
JEAE-6 52
E=hREMHERE)
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EERHE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) B (E)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) IR 2 (48

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017
BECR-tETAZT-RLNERZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat

Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i B

BlE2 8-tk I3t

fikE BERERR BRUEREL RA=1H TZAZt-8

AERAL REAH (#1)  AOREH i AR BEH Bk CENME B&H HAGE

For Grantess who are new employees who have joined the
CGompany forless than 12 months or are yet to commence
work with the Gompany on the relevant date of grant
(as the case may be):

FREBRL BRARABIARAASH = AAT
DARIERNAR R BB TS (RIERAR) :

9 March 20180 Up to 20% (‘Options )
8 March 2019 S50%([BiE)
(ooth days inclusive)
(the ‘I Period)
ZE-)\F=ANRE
ZE-0EZRNA
(BEEERA)(5H))
9 March 20190 Up o 20% (‘Options I)
8 March 2020 (together with any Options |
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
(the ‘Il Period") exercised during the | Period)
“T-NEZANRE R H20%( BRI (&R R
ZECRE-AA BRix i ErEmRE)
(REEEERA)
(T
9 March 2020 to Upto 20% (‘Options II")
8 March 2021 (together with any Options |
(ooth days inclusive) and Il which have not been
(the ‘Il Period”) exercised during the
ECTE-fNEE Iand || Periogs)
ZE-%ZR)A F500% ([ RN )
(BEERMA)( ) (ERRERRIERTEL
EIE)
9 March 2021 to Up to 20% (‘Options V')
8 March 2022 (together with any Options |,
(ooth days inclusive) [l andl Il which have not heen
(the “IV Period") exercised during the
“E--E=ANRE |, IFand Il Periods)

“E--EZRNR R520%([ERIEN]) (ERR
(RABRMA)(HEV)) 28 IRIERAE,
R - 1R

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

% HX* ma
PR E (&)

Movement of Share Options during the eight months ended 31 December 2017

BECE-tETAZT-RLNERZERERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule and Exercisable portion asat asat
Eligible Date of price  exercise period of of the Share Options 30 April 31 December
persons grant (HKS)  the Share Options granted 2017 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2017
i i
BlE2 8-tk I3t
ffE  BERERR ERILEREZ MA=tH tZB=t-8
2ERAL REAS (B1) WfESE eSS AT Ef Bfif  BENSE BA¥ AT
9 March 2022 to Up to 20% (together with any
8 September 2025 Options | 1l ll and IV
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
ECF-ANRE exercised during thel, I, I
ZRZRENAN and IV Period)
(mfEERRmA) RHNGERRERE 1 Nk
ViR EERE-
Il IRIV)

*1 References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 25 *1 ZQELZJS FAIERAE-_ZT—+tF—A=-+HH -
January 2017, 20 March 2017 and the circular dated 26 June 2017 in —+E=A-+RAYASEREAE-T—+
relation to the conditional grant of Share Options to Mr. Chen Chunguo izx AZ+ARABZBX AAEMERRERLE
to subscribe for up to an aggregate of 500,000,000 ordinary shares. On B G B A 328 4 1 5% 500,000,000 % 58 I
17 July 2017, the Shareholders excluding Mr. Chen and his associates ZHERE - RNZFE—tFA+EH  BRETE
(the “Independent Shareholders”) has approved the resolution at FEBRAC AR EBE A ) (B ) B R ERE R
the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”), please refer to the AE([RERFRAE ) EHEZARR - 51155
announcement dated 17 July 2017 for details. 2HARA—T—tFLtAT+EAZRE -

*2  Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 28  *2  ZIRHEAATHEPAEA-_Z—+FENA-TN\HERA
September 2017 in relation to the change of financial year end date, the AERERVBFELEEBZRE  MRELER
Vesting Schedule and exercise period of the share options granted to 7 AR S T8 R 1 TF BRAEE T LABEER -
Mr. Chen changed accordingly.

Save as disclosed above, no further share options were granted, R EMFIHEEIN BEZ-T—+F+-HA=1—

outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or exercised for the eight months
ended 31 December 2017.

BIENEA - SELGERERRE - HARTTE
KRR~ FEHREATRE
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed to have interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to
securities transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

Long Positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H THEZRARQF
BETBRABRARRREREEZE(TERLES
EBIESTIEFH MEE KRG ([ FH KB RG]
EXVED) 2B - EER D SRESS - A SRER
VA (VIRIEFE 5 R ERE 5 FI BXVERSET7 X8 IA
MG ARRRI Rz #Em kR (BEFEERE
FTHREAEEOIE BB SR IERER 2 Ex
SORE) ¢ Sk IRIERE H K ERE K7 58352168 A
ZIEFTE Mz ERSAR - R RIEGEM E
m%ﬁ BIZE5.46 25675 B ESEITERFRR S ZH
TEANME AR MBI 2 SR AE

#wE

RERERG RIGBEIK G 2 e ir

Aggregate long
position in

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Directors/ the shares and the issued

chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital
R4 RAERER G HEBITRA

BEE BRTBRASHSE 54 2Rt BYBEDHL

Chen Chunguo (Note 1) Beneficial owner 500,000,000 2.84%

PRA B (PREET) BEmEEA

Cui Zhanfeng (Note 2) Beneficial owner 78,630,000 0.45%

S (fEE2) BEmEEA

Pang Chung Fai Benny (Note 3) Beneficial owner 4,410,000 0.03%

g (fEE3) BEmEEA

Chan Bing Woon (Note 3) 4,230,000 0.02%

BRI (P EES)

Beneficial owner
oy

BEmERAA
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EREHE

>

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS EZR B S1THA SRR 1 RIERE R
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND ;
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT'D)

Long Positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen”) is an executive Director and the CEO.

On 25 January 2017, he was conditionally granted 500,000,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling
him to subscribe for up to an aggregate of 500,000,000 shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.3025 per share, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme. On 17 July 2017,
the Independent Shareholders has approved the resolution at the EGM.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Chen on 25 January
2017 have been exercised in full, Mr. Chen shall hold an aggregate of
500,000,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen shall be deemed to be interested in
500,000,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

Professor Cui Zhanfeng (“Prof. Cui”) is a non-executive Director and
the Chairman. Prof. Cui personally holds 65,000,000 shares of the
Company.

On 16 September 2015, he was granted 9,630,000 Share Options
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him to
subscribe for 9,630,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, he was granted 4,000,000 Share Options
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him to
subscribe for 4,000,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of
HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Prof. Cui on 16 September
2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full, Prof. Cui shall
hold an aggregate of 13,630,000 shares of the Company as beneficial
owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Prof. Cui shall be deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 78,630,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2017.

2w RX R ()

HE (E)

RAER ARG RIERER GG 2 s ()

GEE
1. BB (B ARTEE RITRAR -

R-ZE—+F—A-+EHH  BEAQRFRER
fi& hE 5 21 15 1412 500,000,000 BERS A - BH 5
HAEF AT FH0.8025 B T 2 ITHEEREA R
%500,000,0008% A8 A BB A7 » HEZEE T BE AR =T
B2 ERREE - R=E—tFEA++ER B
UBRERERBRREENAS FIEZRESR

PSRN T FE A+ RARTREENR
BAEERRITR  RELEBIEREREAARE
& #£500,000,00088 A2 AR 17

BEEHFLRBERYN  R=2FT—+F+=A
=+—H ' REEEFERA500,000,00058 82
AR AR

2. ELBHE(EHRRBIERTESZRER - &
IR B A$ 565,000,000 A A FIHAD ©

R_T—RFNATRE  BEARAREREK
RERT 4% 79,630,00017 BB R - T AR AT 4%
F0.45/8 7T 2 1T £ B #E9,630,000% 7 22 7]
0+ MEZRE ST B AR ST B 2 (AR At

RZZE—XFHLANA @ BEKARRIREERE
FTE1$%F4,000,00015 AR #E - Bl FEER AT LS
}%0.29178 7T 2 771 & R 88 4,000,000 f% 2 2 7] %
19 HEZRBTIERRIE AT 81 2 R MG -

BER-_ZE-—AFAA+REE-Z—XRFAA
NERTEHRNOBREETRITR - B8
ERE =R ARA S 13,630,000 4 2 &%

T/\ o

BEFEHFLBERN  R=2FT—+F+=A
=+—H  BEHREHRSR NS 78,630,000
KRR P AL ©
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SFERE

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long Positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

3. Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny (“Mr. Pang”) and Mr. Chan Bing Woon
(“Mr. Chan”) are the independent non-executive Directors. On 16
September 2015, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan were granted 2,010,000 and
1,930,000 Share Options respectively by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme entitling each of them to subscribe for 2,010,000 and
1,930,000 shares of the Company respectively at the exercise price of
HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan, were granted 2,400,000
and 2,300,000 Share Options respectively by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme entitling each of them to subscribe for 2,400,000
and 2,300,000 shares of the Company respectively at the exercise
price of HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan on 16
September 2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full,
Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan shall hold 4,410,000 and 4,230,000 shares of
the Company respectively as beneficial owners.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan shall be deemed to
be interested in 4,410,000 and 4,230,000 shares of the Company
respectively as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EERSSTHASREA REERK
2 R

HE (E)

RAER ARG RIERER GG 2 s ()

BaE - (%)

3. EHhEAE(EAE])REAELEE(REE])
ABTIENTES - R_E—HFAA+AAE -
T MR E D B BRI B AR R AT &
% ¥ 2,010,000 }.1,930,00017 B A% 4 - B ¥ 1%
LZEGENDBIAE T 80458 70 2 1T1E B REE
2,010,0008% }.1,930,0008% & A &R » HEZBE ST
R E) 2 ISR I A& -

RIZB—XNENANB EX4ENBEELED T
TR N R AR I BB R 4 A 8 IR T 2,400,000 15 K
2,300,00017 BERE 1 - B FHES BREF A 55
% & 1% 0.291 % 7T 2 17 1 (& 52 B8 2,400,000 % &
2,300,00088 AR EIRE D - BB FEREAEZ
TR R f A o

BRR-_ZE-—AFAATRBR-Z—XRFAN
ANBETFTZRERREENBREERHT
i ZEERREEDBERERERARE
4,410,000% }.4,230,00088 A A @& {9

BEZFFRBEKRNN RZT—+tF+=A

Z=+—H ZAERREEBERAED RN

4,410,000 % % 4,230,000 % 728 22 7] % 15 o 5 45 2
BEXHEEEN RZ2BE—+E+=-—A=+—
H MEEERAQAESTERABREARR R
Higm AE (& BESRAEEMNEXVES) 2%
% HERGRESFTHEERWRERES()RE
FHH RS RGP EXVEBETRED HBAME A QT
MR ERRAR (BREFEREEFRPE
165178 BE SO B /ESR IR B Z iR SRR
S (iR 15 78 75 I B E 1401 58 35216 ZE A2 A RZ 6 P it
Bz ERSOAR - iR IEGEM ETH AR BISE
5.46FE567IKEHESETEFR S ZREAMNE
RAR LB Z TR RS SRR -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2017, the
following parties (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company (i)
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or (i) which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein:

Y

TERFREMA L RREG RIBER
2 iR

BEEHH  R-F—+E+=A=+—A T4
AT GFEESZARARBITRAR) RAR TR
7 BERG R ESS - A LRI A (R
EH RIS XV 2R3 B 2 AR A
ARRBRFTREZ ESAR - ROEEEER
558 1667 SE 06 /R A S P I B R M 2 Al
SAR

Long positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RELXEGRGRIGER (72w
Aggregate long Approximate
position in percentage of
the shares and the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
R G RAERER G HEBITRA
BRES BB 54 2R B BYOBEDH
China Orient Asset Management Held by controlled corporation 5,047,180,319 28.70%
Co., Ltd (Note 4)
FERFEEEERNERAT MR EERE
(FMi5T4)
All Favour Holdings Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 3,708,100,319 21.09%
RIBERAE R A B (FIEE5) BEmEEA
Dai Yumin (Note 5) Held by controlled corporation 3,708,100,319 21.09%
B 2 H(FI5E5) HEEEFA
Held by his spouse 7,715,000 0.04%
BRERERFE
Beneficial owner 1,293,845,000 7.36%
BEmEEA
China Dragon Asia Champion Investment manager 1,414,644,300 8.04%
Fund Series SPC (Note 6) REKE

(PffE6)
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SFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PER

SONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:

4.

Based on Form 2 filed on 24 January 2018 by China Orient Asset
Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”), Optimus Prime Management
Ltd. (“Optimus”) has a security interest in 4,663,180,319 shares of
the Company and China Orient Asset Management (International)
Holding Limited (“COAMI”) has an interest in 384,000,000 shares of
the Company. Optimus is wholly owned by China Orient Alternative
Investment Fund (“COAIF”). COAIF is owned to 45% by COAMI.
COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader Assets Ltd. (“Wise
Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin Development (Holdings)
Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (i) 50% by Dong Yin which is wholly owned
by COAMC. By virtue of the SFO, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and COAMC
are deemed to be interested in 384,000,000 shares of the Company
held by COAMI, and COAIF, COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and
COAMC are deemed to be interested in 4,663,180,319 shares of the
Company held by Optimus as security interest. As a result, Dong Yin,
Wise Leader and COAMC are deemed to be interest in an aggregate of
5,047,180,319 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to (i)
40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”) and
20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited which are both ultimately wholly
owned by Mr. Dai Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), and (i) 40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover,
All Favour has been the beneficial owner of 3,708,100,319 shares of
the Company.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed
to be interested in 3,708,100,319 shares of the Company in which All
Favour is interested as of 31 December 2017.

Ms. Deng Shufen (“Ms. Deng”), the spouse of Mr. Dai has beneficial
interests in 7,715,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai was deemed to be interested in 7,715,000
shares of the Company held by Ms. Deng as at 31 December 2017.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him
to subscribe for 17,500,000 shares of the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions
of the Share Option Scheme. Moreover, Mr. Dai personally holds
1,276,345,000 shares of the Company. Assuming the Share Options
granted to Mr. Dai has been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an
aggregate of 1,293,845,000 shares of the Company as beneficial
owner.

FTERRKEMA TR G RAERER
2R (48)
e ()

RERERG RIGFEIK G 2 i ()

GEE

4,

BEAERFEEEERNDERAA(IRAE
ENR-ZZ—/\F—A-+HBERINRIK2
Optimus Prime Management Ltd. ([ Optimus ] ) 7
4,663,180,319 R AR ARt F HERFE A B
FEEFEEERE (BB IZERAERAF([HRAE
B 1) 7384,000,000 8 & A R I (9 R B i o
OptimusF China Orient Alternative Investment Fund
([COAF))2&#%E - COAFRIm R BB HEA
45% o B 77 BFE 9 Bl /A ()Wise Leader Assets Ltd.
([wise Leader| + RERFFHRER)BRAA([E
R 2EHB)HEBS0%  LiREB(HRFEE
TEAWE)HAES0% © IRIEFEFLEAEKG - Wise
Leader * SRR KR 75 EEWHAR BRI BB FT#E
A #)384,000,000 8 R A B D R AR - ™
COAIF ~ 5 BIF - Wise Leader ~ RIRREHEE
AR AP Optimus 1EIR 8 # 2 #74,663,180,319/%
RATROFHRERER - Bt R=F—tF+=
B=+—H Xk - Wise Leader X B 7 EEHR
ARA ££5,047,180,31908 A A B I (H P A HEZS

TEEBRERAG([2E ) H)TPEAEER
AR ([FoEARE ) & 25 % 8 40% K& Honour Top
Holdings Limited Bz #/520% « M % X &1 8
HEFUEE(RLE D ERE2ERE - Mi)FLE
BB 40% o - 238 53,708,100,319fK &
NERDZEZEB A

BRIEFEHFLRBERS B2 —+F+=A
=t+—B  BEERAEREFEEAEREEHS
HE2£/#93,708,100,31 98 AN A AR A 5 hg s o

HRSat([8rzt])  BELEEZES B
T—+F+= F=+—HK7,715,0008% A& R &%
MARBEREEEDS - BEZSHERPEES - B
E—+HE+-_F=+—0 HELHEANEL
THEHBH7,715,00008 R BIIEG F B R o

R-Z—RAFNA+B  BEELERQARRE
BB RS RE T 819% F17,500,00017 B B #E - BE T EL 4
AL & R%0.458 7L 2 1T B 5RHE 17,500,000/% 2%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’'d)
5. (Cont’d)

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai, together with his deemed interests in Ms.
Deng and All Favour, was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
5,009,660,319 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

The Company was informed by All Favour that it has pledged its
interests in 3,708,100,319 shares of the Company in favour of Optimus
Prime Management Ltd.

6. Based on Form 2 filed on 14 August 2017 by China Dragon Asia
Champion Fund Series SPC (“China Dragon”), China Dragon holds
1,414,644,300 shares of the Company as an Investment manager.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors are
not aware that there is any other party (other than the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (i) which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (i) which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights or
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company had not entered into any connected transaction during
the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 48% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 14% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 79% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets out the revised use and actual use of the net
proceeds from the placings as at 31 December 2017:

Date of announcement

&R

Fund raising activities

FE7EE

FHEsERR

Total net
proceeds
FEREREAR
(HKD Milion)
(B8%7)

Revised use of the net proceeds
fEREFE B AR

Utilised
2HA
(HKD Milion)
(BE#T)

TREJBE_FT—EF+-_A=1+—HLL - EE
PSSR FRE IR R R ERAE

Unutilised
ABA
(HKD Milion)
(B8#T)

10 November 2014, 6 February 2015 Placing of 3,300,000,000 new shares
and 5 March 2015 and grant of share options under
“E-RF+-ATRH 251 specific mandate under the First
ZARBRZE-1E=A%A Placing
RE-REERTRERDIRE
A13,300,000,000R 5% 3
RiRE

23March 2015 and 22 April 2015
“3-REZA-12ER
“E-REMAZTZA

Placing of 977,300,000 new shares
under general mandate under the
Second Placing

RE_REERTRE-RRENE
977,300, 00083

(a)  Used for existing operations and 730
products development and expansions in
tissue engineering

B BRERTER/RALENERREN
RER

(o) Used for broadening R&D coverage, 269.0
opportunities in regenerative medicine
and stem cell related industries, and
other investments
b BRERFEEZSE REARLED
e SRS L
fkE

(o) Settlement of consideration under the 4750
Sale and Purchasg Agreement
) EREEMZETIRE

Sub-total 817.0
/J\ﬁ

730

2690

475.0

817.0

(a)  Used for existing operations and 64.6
products development and expansions in
tissue engineering

B BRERTER/RALENERFEN
RER

(o] - Used for broadening R&D coverage, 814
capturing strategic investment
opportunities in regenerative medicing
and stem cell related industries, and
other investments
b BRERFEE=SE RESLEZ
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁé%%ﬁi%&%@%ﬂﬁ
X

(c)  Settlement of consideration under the 130.0
Sale and Purchase Agreement
) FEEEGZETIRE

Sub-total 216.0
Nt

64.6

1300

276.0
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USE OF PROCEEDS (CONT’D) RSB RA® (&)
Total net
Date of announcement Fund raising activities Revised use of the net proceeds proceeds Utilised Unutilised
MERH SEED FrEsEREZ BB R FEEREEE 28R ABA
(HKD Milion) (HKD Milion) (HKD Milion)
(B&#T) (B&%T) (B&%ET)
10 July 2015 and 30 July 2015 Placing of 1,150,000,000 new shares (@) Money lending operation 150.0 1200 300
“E-REEATAR under general mandate underthe ~ (B) MBS
“T-nEEA=TR Third Placing )
RE-REEBTRE-RFERLE () Medcal equipment rading 500 500 -
1,150,000, 0003 1) b EEREES
() General working capital 256.0 266.0 -
O -#eEEs
Sub-total 456.0 426.0 30.0
Nt
Total 1,549.0 1,519.0 30.0
@t

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the eight months ended 31 December 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 66 to 91. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

BE - BERELEARLQE LHES

REZ-_Z—+tF+A=+—HILENEA &2
AINEEAMBARMERE - BRsHEERA
NEETES e

DAY NN
JJ:%E/I:I

ARB—BHMEFRKFZEEERER - ARFIM
Rz bEEARRABDHENRFOEFEINEZ
TEERWSE - EFAE - CEERBRDERRN
RBMBRRMIEBDBENEHACR - EFSTEE
THE 2 R - ARG B s MR R RS -

RAZNTIFRE
BEAARFEZ APAR - DRIEEERSFR
FUERRT AN - A ARl — B HGEM E TR AIRE 2

NAFRE °

2017 £ TEIBEBRERARAR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEGHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has six members, comprising of our non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (the chairman of Audit Committee), Professor
Cui Zhanfeng, Professor Xiong Chengyu, Mr. Chan Bing Woon, Dr.
Fang Jun and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the eight months ended 31 December 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Chunguo
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FETHERI15E
REHID2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
PEBEEEERERAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 145 to 255,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the period from 1 May 2017
to 31 December 2017 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

(Refer to notes 14, 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill, other
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are HK$202
million, HK$445 million and HK$295 million respectively. These assets
are mainly relating to Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, Weikai
Business and AK Business and are assessed annually for impairment.
The Group has made losses for current and previous years. These
situations increase the risk that the carrying value of these assets may
be impaired.

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable values of the
relevant cash generating units to which these assets belong, using a
discounted cash flows valuation technique, as detailed in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

We have identified such impairment assessment as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and it involves a significant degree of judgement made by
management which includes:

- Preparing future cash flow forecasts for Aierfu Business,
Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK Business; and

- Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates

The Group engages an independent external valuer to assist the
management in assessing the recoverable values.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment included:

- Assessing the accuracy of management’s forecast by
comparing previous budgets to actual results;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecast based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence
provided;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the valuations; and

- Evaluating the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB BB st 4n S I TS SRR EAIER
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEE)
STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise FEREB BRI EAEITETRBES - IFVER
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism T EZEH|H - (R T HEEREAEE  HFIT

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the e

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit e

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used e

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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BN A2 EN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P05325

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

yACSREAN

sre B M EM 2 EIRAR

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 8 —E—+FHA—HEE2 T —+tF+-A=+—H L A

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
BH=2—t%
TA—HEZE H=E
—Z—tF —T—+F
+=-B=+—H MA=+H
LHHAR IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Btz FTHERT FAT
Revenue = 5 503,680 356,987
Cost of sales SHEMA (356,384) (219,462)
Gross profit ERX 147,296 137,525
Other income H A 5 49,909 45,144
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HAS (89,270) (66,796)
Administrative and other expenses TR R EAMRE (238,984) (322,464)
Finance costs MIEER 7 (24,901) (24,426)
Fair value (loss)/gain on contingent FEW S AKE 2 2 FE
consideration receivables (EB18), e 17 (15,876) 20,097
Loss before income tax RSB AIES18 8 (171,826) (210,920)
Income tax credit FTiSTiiE e 11 5,610 11,728
Loss for the period/year AHREFEEE (166,216) (199,192)
Other comprehensive income HMhZEKA 9
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HER[fEE D IEE o
to profit or loss: ZEH
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of BE IR R
financial statements of foreign operations AW, (E518) 31,621 87,777)
Available for sales financial assets AHNESRERE (13,163) =
Other comprehensive income NERRF S E A
for the period/year 2HEEKA 18,458 (37,777)
Total comprehensive income A EEZEAWA
for the period/year (147,758) (236,969)
Loss for the period/year attributable to: l«;(; é é:s Féﬁ‘i ZREAR
Owners of the Company AARRAA (158,492) (184,502)
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR AR R A (7,724) (14,690)
(166,216) (199,192)
Total comprehensive income BUF A TG AR,
for the period/year attributable to: FEXHEBRA :
Owners of the Company AREFEEAN (142,500) (215,988)
Non-controlling interests eI A R A (5,258) (20,981)
(147,758) (236,969)
Loss per share for loss for the period/year AR #H ARG
attributable to owners of the Company FEE FEBFEZ
BREE 13
- basic (HK cents) —EAR(EAWL) (0.901) (1.049)
- diluted (HK cents) — 858 (GB4L) (0.901) (1.049)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARERIEARER

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+F+-A=+—H
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—ZE—+tF =5
+=—BA=+—H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BoaE FET FBTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y3 - BB KRR 14 204,653 220,114
Land use rights T A 15 4,416 4,219
Goodwill EES 16 202,292 196,983
Contingent consideration receivables U SR AAKAE 17 32,502 46,259
Other intangible assets HivEREE 18 444,745 425,716
Deposits for acquisition of property, BEYE  BRELEHE
plant and equipment ZiE® 491 70,136
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR 2 i&e 33 100,000 —
Pledged bank deposits DRI TIER 23 818,062 794,743
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 19 454,456 112,928
2,351,617 1,871,098
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 28,750 60,567
Trade receivables FEWE 5 RRIE 21 279,806 39,117
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% -~ TERFUE R
H A U ERIE 21 490,673 333,679
Financial assets at fair value through BATERERYIREZS
profit or loss & E 22 12,154 12,036
Available-for-sale financial assets A ECREE 19 120,600 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEEBER 23 244,373 571,732
1,176,356 1,017,131
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BB 58R1E 24 238,346 38,993
Accrued charges and other payables FERTE R R EAMFETERIE 25 147,869 104,689
Shareholder loans R ERE R 26 372,542 =
Bank borrowings RITIEK 27 - 28,345
Current tax liabilities EHNIERE 2,976 4,267
761,733 176,294
Net current assets REBEEFE 414,623 840,837
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARERIEARER

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+F+-A=+—H

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—+tF —ET—+F
+=—BA=+—H MA=+H
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’ 000
Mo FET T
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 2,766,240 2,711,935
Non-current liabilities 3Fu|b§bﬁ1i
Shareholder loans MR E R 26 100,000 -
Bank borrowings SRITHER 27 771,840 725,632
Deferred taxation IRIEFRIE 28 81,076 78,411
952,916 804,043
Net assets EEZE 1,813,324 1,907,892
EQUITY E
Share capital il 29 175,858 175,858
Reserves 1 1,584,174 1,701,179
Equity attributable to owners AATREE AELER
of the Company 1,760,032 1,877,037
Non-controlling interests FEER IR RS 53,292 30,855
Total equity R 1,813,324 1,907,892
On behalf of the directors RERES
Mr. Chen Chunguo Dr. Ray Yip
BREE TE HEBL
Director Director
EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SRR

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 & —

\\/T\

—tFhA-HEEC

—tFF+—A=1+—HLLHAE

Non-
controling
inferests Total
Attributable to owners of the Company FHER
LN N REER gt
Share
Share Shere  Tranglation Specil QOther option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve resene reserve reserve losses Sub-total
ke RAEE  RERE  WREE EbRE  BRERE  ZHEE U5
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Thr Thn Thm Thn T Thn ThR Thn T Thn
(note 29)
(Hik29)
At1 May 2016 R-E-7E1A-H 175,922 3,198,791 (17,747) (200 (410,463) 44,943 (924882 2,066,364 51,836 2,118,200
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - (18450 (18450 (14690 (199,192)
Other comprehensive income R 2ERA
Exchange loss on ranslaton of francial B EiE5 £RE KSR 2
statements of foreign operations EiEE - - (31,486) - - - - (31,489) (6.291) (37,777
Total comprehensive income AEEREARA
forthe year . - B . . S e pIB%Y (01 (236%9
Issue of share options not 34) BRRE() - - - - - 2852 - 28520 - 28520
Lapse of share opfions (note 34) BReERE () - - - - - (38,789) 3,789 - - -
Shares repurchased and canceled BEER:EHERD (64 (1,79) - - - - - (1,859) - (1,859)
At30 April 2017 R-E-tEmAZ1A 7588 319696 (49239 000 (0469 MG (107055  1TOY B 190789
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E=_ZE—+F A A —ARBE T —+F+ A =+—H LB

Non-
controlling
interests
Attributable to owners of the Company FER
RAREE AR Rxgs it
Available-
for-sale
Share  financial
Share Share  Translation Special Other option assets Accumulated
capital  premium resernve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total
ke

Bx  RfEE  BERE  HREE  AHRR  BRERE SHEERR  ZHER it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
T T Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn T Tin Tin Tk

(note 29)
(M)
At30 Apr 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZF-tEMA=TAR
“5-t%¥18-H 175,858 3,196,996 (49,233) (200) (410,463 34,674 - (1,070,595 1,877,087 30855 1,907,892
Loss for the period pa¥il) 3 - - - - - - - (158492 (198492) (1724 (166,216)
Other comprehensive income Afp2ERA
Exchange gai on ranlation of fnanciel - BEBINEETERR 2
statements of foreign operations Eila - - 29,155 - - - - - 29,155 2,466 31,621
Avalable-for-sale fnancial assets REESBARE - - - - - - (13163 - (13163 - (13163
Total comprehensive income AHHRELRA
forthe period - - B - - - (316) (54 (1425000 (5 (147759)
Acouistion of a subsidary (note39)  REBHIBAE(Fz30) - - - - - - - - - 7695 2169
Issue of share options (note 34) B{TERE(h) - - - - - 25,495 - - 25,495 - 25,495
Lapse of share options (note 34) BARERE () - - - - - (7.240) - 7,40 - - -
At31 December 2017 RoE-LEoAZ-8 1588 3196965 (009 @00 (0469 5299 (13163 (1220841 17600 B2 18133

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal %ﬁﬂﬁfﬁh REBR_ZT —FEHAR - HUEEHT
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value NAIR D EEEAR B GRUEEZEN B AR T
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the tﬁéﬁ ZARRBROEEZETE -

Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

The other reserve represents the difference between the fair value EihfEEEREEZE T —F —_F—= E&_?
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in a subsidiary, —PO€EpY B =+ H IFEE MR —REH B A
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company Limited and the W@Y@Jﬁ?ﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁﬂ NG ZHQ%@?HREZ
amount of adjustment to non-controlling interests during the years A {BEEIEIERAR R ES AL SRE 2 =58 °

ended 30 April 2011, 2013 and 2014.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\/\EE stz ;ﬁ:%%

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

—t+tFRA—HEZ-Z

—tEFt-A=1+—HBLHE

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—tF
EHA—HEZE HE
—E—+tF T—+4F
+=-BA=+—H MA=+H
IEHARS IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BitEE FHET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities BETHIRERE
Loss before income tax BRET1S T A E1E (171,826) (210,920)
Adjustments for: LREE
Amortisation of land use rights {5 AR A S 69 102
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b A 30,428 40,997
Depreciation e 10,494 14,181
Interest income A2 WA (10,265) (20,128)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR 2 W 40 (35,206) =
Gain on disposals of property plant and HEYE - BEK
equipment, net Btz Was (F58) (1) (48)
Gain on financial assets at fair value BATERERIIRZ
through profit or loss SRVEE 2 Was (118) (2,006)
Fair value loss/(gain) on contingent JER S ARE 2 A TE
consideration receivables B () 15,876 (20,097)
Written off property, plant and equipment W -~ BB &R 427 =
Equity-settled share-base payment DARESS A5 2 e
expenses S EH 25,495 28,520
Interest expenses FEEHA 24,901 24,426
Operating loss before working EESSBEAIZ
capital changes R EE (109,726) (144,973)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BERL,/(38n) 34,483 (51,600)
Increase in trade receivables FEW & 5 BRIEIE AN (238,292) (19,125)
Increase in deposits, prepayments & - B RIE R EAm
and other receivables JE U AR TEE h1 (120,291) (237,278)
Increase in trade payables FETE 5 BRIEIE AN 197,266 37,423
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued charges FEETE R R A th FE ST BRIE
and other payables 0, G ) 44,560 (34,962)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BAFERERSIRZ
through profit or loss S RE ELE N - (10,030)
Cash used in operations REEBERACES (192,000) (460,545)
Income taxes paid B ETSH (1,291) (348)
Net cash used in operating activities KETEHFEARESFHE (193,291) (460,893)

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

relRTnER

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —ZE—+FRA—HEE-ZT—+F+-A=+—H - HM

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—tF
EHA—HEZE HE
—E—tF —E—+F
+=B=+—H WMA=+H
1EHARS LEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FETT
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZHERE
Interest received BHFE 437 29,563
Increase in pledged deposits [REEwGVER Syl - (235,870)
Increase in deposits for acquisition
of subsidiaries W REHT B A Bl & 1 N (100,000) -
Payment of deposits for acquisition SNEEME  BEXR
of property, plant and equipment B[ e - (52,202)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMZE - BE&&E (6,067) (70,947)
Purchase of other intangible assets HBEAMERLEE 18 (3,475) (2,576)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets ~ BE& ]t H&E S Rl EE (475,291) (112,928)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiary ~ WEEMI B AR 2R &
MAHERR 39 5 =
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiary HEHRNBARZES
MAFER 40 24,911 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BEK
plant and equipment B 9 227
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHEARSFHE (559,471) (444,733)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEE 2 RERE
Shares repurchased and cancelled B E R HER G, - (1,859)
Proceeds from shareholder’s loans R E TS IE 472,542 —
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE TS B - 725,632
Repayments of bank borrowings ERIBITHER (28,345) (514,208)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRI TIERZF B (24,901) (24,426)
Net cash generated from financing METEHAEREFHE
activities 419,296 185,139
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREZEER 2
WA (333,466) (720,487)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzHeREESEE
of the year EH 571,732 1,300,825
Effect of exchange rate changes EXSHHRASREAS
on cash and cash equivalents SEEHZEE 6,107 (8,608)
Cash and cash equivalents BR ERXZ2BHERRE
at end of the period/year ZEIER 244,373 571,732

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 10th Floor, Everbright Centre,
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group” hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements for the current financial
period cover the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017
as during the period, the directors have resolved to change
the Company’s financial year end date from 30 April to 31
December so that the financial year end date of the Company is
aligned with that of its operating subsidiaries in the PRC.

As a result of the aforesaid change of the financial year end
date, the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current period cover the 8-month period from 1 May 2017 to
31 December 2017. The corresponding amounts presented as
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
and related notes cover a 12-month period from 1 May 2016
to 30 April 2017 and therefore may not be comparable with
amounts shown for the current period.

The financial statements for the period from 1 May 2017 to
31 December 2017 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 27 March 2018.

— IR

FRBEBERBEARAR(AAR DR
T —FOA -+ HERBREHE R RE(Z
T —HEFTR)E RS S MK &R
RARAFR - HiFMHSEE Rk EZEEMI,
Z Hhk 55 Bl &P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands
RBEBETETITE1085 A 08 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TEETTHBEREBE
POLICIES

2.1 HEEE

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 145 to 255 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for contingent consideration
receivable, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and certain available-for-sale financial assets, which
are stated at fair value. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

BN 14558255 8 2 B &R KR TH k1%
BB BHREER([BBMEHREE
Al ZSBeEmasgsmAg
([BFgstmAag ) BEm e ERE
IR EHREER - HE AR
RZREB)MRE - MRERNEEDS
N EMEB X B 22 BT GEMEE 5 | #8 Bl
([GEM_ETMREI ) 2 BERAFHERTE -

ARSI FR R < T B EFTBUR
BRI X - BRABFIAES - BFR
REEBEARMB2MFE - HAH
Al EIER] 2 BB MR E R KB A
SEFBHREZZE(NE) TINKES
RE -

FATSERR T IRE R IRANE RS - HEfE
WEHRARE - BAFERERIIRZE
BMEEMETAHREESREEARF
BIIE - FTEEEFAN T 2GR
R o

Bma s mEVWBRRESRAET
fEET B - BE M FATIERNEE
BHRE S RITEZRARY) T KR H
ErfiEd - EERAERZEAGERIR
a2 BN - R REHBREMIEZ
BRI RERBREREEATEZR
& R fhE BB TS -

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FE&HEEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Business combination and basis of 22 EFEHRESHEE

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

RAMBHRERER/RARE REKE AT
2R - FE AT ZEAFAFR
5 MEEERARARBIR 2 m M TR mBdis
EMBRREEEHE - BRIERZBR
Frigm e BELIURIE - ZBBRENE
s HER - BRIREHRERINALHH -

FARBRHE ZHBEAR - EXEH
WL AR EEHEEM AN
LEER) PG E R R E 2 E W
ARNA - ERER - MBRRZHHR
REWRE  FHETBRENEEHE
B ABIFIRAE —K -

WREKM B R AR EBREBEFHAEA
Bk o WA T IRWE R HIfTEBR &
E FELZAERAKE(ERNE
)BT R EREE - #
Wi AR EERTEAERBERR
Wi BB 2 A FERTE - ARBEATAT
Fr g 75 2 PR LA S B BREY A B
EWRTE - MATEEZ Wt sEiaRIn
BT HER - AREARERRFEE
B ESIEEIGREIET A @ EE
FEZ LG ERER BATRHBAF
AR FFEIR RS © FTARMIE
ZR RIS AT ERFE - RIER
BUBRELENER S —EAEREE
AfERER o SUIBARRE M AR AN 3 AR
X BRIFEERI TR T AR A -
EZIBAT - BRARAEERTIR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONT'D)

IR BERBEGR)

22 EBEHRGEEEE)

2.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.8 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

2.4 fForeign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTTBERMZE(E)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.4 IMEBRE (1E)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings over 50 years or the
terms of the leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement 33%

Furniture and equipment 5%-25%

Computer equipment 33%

Motor vehicles 20%—25%
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

2.6 Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease
and the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 2.13.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method
over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the
land.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.7 Gooawill

2.8

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 2.17).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than gooadwill) and
research and development activities

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Trademark 15 years
Patents 7-15 years
Capitalised development costs 10 years
Licensing agreement 7 years

2.

TEETHERBEGR)

27 B

BENZARAMER - fEPTEE R (E
K HER A SRR B R M 2 2 & RRHU AR AT
BB BRIEE BERSEER
BRAFEZIER

HABAEE - AERIBRERTE
BHEMNREZAFE - AEREER
BfA R PUE A HIN B R

BB DR ARERFTREBERRT
E-pEgskzleELEV Y HE
BERXIBERR(RHFE2.17)

Hig HEMBARE - BEHE ks
SEESREFRAACTEMEBEZRE
HEHE

2.8 g} CEE (BRI RFFEZE

Wl 2 ST B E ) IR AN HERR, © 112
HERE - ARAERFHCENEER
AR, R 51 8 35 K (X a] REHRE R RS
8- BRAMERFH BV EERER
EREEFT A ERFERNEE - BVE
E—BrfERAFRREE - BRETY

BEERATAERSEES

[k 154
=F 7-15%F
Bz BB 106
RrRTRE T

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.8

e

Intangible assets (other than gooadwill) and
research and development activities (Cont’d)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

° Adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FE&HEEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 zHEE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights IR B E A 2 IR 2 2 MR
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are SibeEE - A BRI R KR
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards EFRELEYE - RIEEREREE -

of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to RERER  SRBEEHWRNUET
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. HERBEMABECSEZE - RF
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined EEMBREEE  REBEIEESHE
and recognised based on the classification of the financial BEMND AEENER o

asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BA-FEREBERIIRZ EMEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes BATERERIR SREERER
financial assets held for trading and financial assets EE B RMEENRRIIZHERIETE
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through REATERNERIIRZ SREE °

profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they WEEEMEE BEMEMIEHE
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. AIEeREESERARERE - 1T4E
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives THE(RRERERARNTETR) NS
are also classified as held for trading unless they are RIEEE  RIFEEERBRE H LT
designated as effective hedging instruments or financial B & REREGL °

guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded i —EHEE — MDA ETRARITE
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated TA - AIBDEESHNRIEEBZAT
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, ERERIR SREE - IRARLT
except where the embedded derivative does not ATAVESFHReRELRERNE
significant modify the cash flows or it is clear that g) - SRR LS HIER ARHTAET AR
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited. BRAN o
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met:

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; or

- The assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets
is provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- The financial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in his category are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONT'D)

IR BERBEGR)

2.9 ZMEE 1)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in
other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments,
which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair
value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- Granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FE&HEEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.9 ETHEE &)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTTBERBME(E)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.9 ZMEE 1)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as an impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale and stated at fair value are
not recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent increase
in fair value is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses in respect of debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

For financial assets other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial
assets and loan and receivables that are stated at
amortised cost, impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly. Where the recovery
of trade receivables is considered doubtful but not
remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.10Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress and
finished goods, cost also comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

2.11Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, time deposits with banks within original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.12Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, bank borrowings
and shareholder’s loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESTTBERBME(E)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowing using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset
or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

2.12Financial liabilities (Cont’q) 212 FEE (&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.13Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see
note 2.6). For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15T
For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTTBERMZE(E)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.14 Share capital 2.14 g 7K

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.15Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, the rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, net of rebates and discounts. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is
usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.17Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, land
use rights and interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.17Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised.

2. 18 Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer’s contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

2. FESTHEREZEE)

217 ML ERE (&

7 R (B BT 18 (B 18 P HARE AR 2 R (B S
BTN RHAMEE - iEMEE
MmE - HAREEEER/ REFRE LG
FHHIRE NS - BB DR ERR -
HeLAE EERRE(E NG = 50 i I SRR RRURK
BEERRREET < REE(FRRER
FrES#EHE)BR -

2. 181EE#EF
(i) EIKEF

REBBRAHERTR B
IR — R EBRERRHER
e RKEAEE ([REESE
gl HRAGERZ2ERES
Bz EE - HFIREEEAF
TR BDLEL - ARIER
SR AT 82 AR RN R R B
RHIE - BB S BEREAK
SEZEESH  LHBILERE
HERHE - KRB /AT
e 2 BEHREFELR2BUR
BEME -

AEERPBEKRELEZMBR
BIFfISES - A2 EAMT™
BT &2 T REAREFTE - &
EMBRARARBHERAZE
—BDHLERTREREBIH
Ko BRHFREFT REAREFT
B REREXNRAERRETA
HBR ©

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FE&HEEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2. 18 Employee benefits (Cont’d) 2. 181ES#E 7 (&)

(i)  Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

2.19Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share-based payment reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the end
of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15T
For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTTBERMZE(E)

POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.19Share-based payments (Cont’d) 219UR BEB 15 (&)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to
share-based payment reserve, net of deferred tax where
applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.20Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.

2.21 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the reporting date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FE&HEEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.21Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d) 221 s 2 &at 4 (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if il A g B ek () F e R (TS & PFBR N T
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from ?&%Zﬁ?&ﬁﬁ%?izéﬁﬂ—?%ﬁﬁﬁg
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) RN ERETE - ATERE
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither MIBEEKAE -

taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary KB AR 2 IR EEE 2 e B R =

difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except HeWRARERIBRE @ EHMANEER

where the Group is able to control the reversal of THIERNERE BB R EREERTE

the temporary differences and it is probable that the AT R SR [ BUVE R ©

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax FEEFIB TV IRTB RN B E s ENEEE

rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is EIRE R 2 R E (P ERRIR) - 1

settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or BEAMENERNRE AE BB

substantively enacted at the reporting date. EEM2BE -

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised BIEHIEEES B BEEH N ERTE

in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or R - M E M 2 ERA S EENR

directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged B EET AR 2IEE B - BIRE

or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in 2 EWA Sk BN R R o

equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented EHNIBEEERE ANBEAGER R

in net if, and only if, TERAFREZS

(@) The Group has the legally enforceable right to set @ AEEFERRBIENITER LK
off the recognised amounts; and BERERSHENE &

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise (o) FIEINAFBEEEEXRRFEIR
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. BERESEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.21Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision makers of the Group,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Tissue engineering — production and sale of tissue
engineering products;

Stem cell — cellular and stem cell therapy, and sales and
distribution of stem cell medical equipment and other
services;

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONT'D)

TEETHERBEGR)

2.22Segment reporting (Cont’a) 2227 Eh#R & (&)

Cosmetic and others — production and sales of cosmetic,
healthcare and other products; and

Medical equipment — trading of medical equipment.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

fair value gain on contingent consideration
receivables

- finance costs
- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except contingent
consideration receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to the
Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include deferred tax liabilities and liabilities incurred
for financing rather than operating purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.23Related parties

@

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FE&HEEME (F)
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.23Related parties (Cont’d) 223B5EAN L (&)
(b) (Cont'd) ) (&)

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) MAEEAAEEGA
which it is a part, provides key management AREHEZEEREAER
personnel services to the Group or to the BHEEAEEEMKE
Group’s parent. NS

Close members of the family of a person are those family BAAT BRI B RTESNREE

members who may be expected to influence, or be BEREETZEIATHZZALIZE Y

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity ZERGKE - B

and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic () ZATZFEREBHIREH
partner; &

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) RATEBIREHEZFL:
partner; and &

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) RATHAEMRBIREHE2ZZ
or domestic partner. BAe

2.24 Provision and contingent liabilities 22418 ERAEEHE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EARKERBESEEREAENHEE

or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive BAE - Mz EE R se S AT A SE{hETAY

obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is KENRRER  ZERBERENS

probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that o BERERAEE -

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic BRI AL ENRRE - 3oREER
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be SEfhEtZzes - MZEEREREE
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a B1E - BRIEE TR H 2 FI B R
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow BIfERGR o AIREZEAENERE @ (HfF
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, EER-IENEZERREEESLREEM
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the BME)NEHELIBEE - BRIELE
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future Az 2 AT BE AR BIVER G® o

events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —Z—+tF A A —HRBRE T —+tF+ A =+ —H LB

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS

BRANE R B HREEA

3.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs 3.1 Ek%ﬁ?/fnf By ACISE] & BB R

During the period, the Group has adopted all the new
or amended HKFRSs which are first effective for the
reporting year and relevant to the Group. Except as
explained below, the adoption of these new or amended
HKFRSs did not result in material changes to the Group’s
accounting policies.

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The
adoption of the amendments has led to the additional
disclosure presented in the notes to the statement of
cash flows, note 41.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related
to debt instruments measured of fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent
with the manner in which the Group has previously
recognised deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

BRANE B R 2 R (&)

3.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (Cont’d) 3.1 IHRANFTGT BMARNS S & B3R

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, to clarify that the disclosure requirements
of HKFRS 12, other than the requirements to disclose
summarised financial information, also apply to an entity’s
interests in other entities classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS
5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has
no impact on these financial statements as the latter
treatment is consistent with the manner in which the
Group has previously dealt with disclosures relating to
its interests in other entities classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

At the date of this report, the following new or amended
HKFRSs have been published but are not yet effective,
and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
2014-2016 Cycle adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
2014-2016 Cycle Associates and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business
2015-2017 Cycle Combinations, HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)'

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventrure?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15T
For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BB BIBHREERNE)

REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 3.2 BEAfE M KEMZFE

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

g The amendments were originally intended to be effective

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The Directors are currently assessing
the impact of the new or amended HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Directors have preliminarily
concluded that the initial application of these HKFRSs will
not result in material financial impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Information on new or amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have an impact on the
Group’s accounting policies is provided below.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments provide
requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting
and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding
tax obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled. The directors of the Company anticipate
that this amendment does not result in any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —Z—+tF A A —HRBRE T —+tF+ A =+ —H LB

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BB BIBHREERNE)
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 3.2 BEAfE M KEMZFE

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows (the business model test)
and that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at fair value through
profit or loss replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements
to allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in credit
risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements
in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

BRANE B R 2 R (&)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 3.2 BEAfE M KEMZFE

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

The Group does not expect the new rules to have a
significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets. There will be no impact on the
Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
have not been changed.

During the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017
and year ended 30 April 2017, there were no significant
impairment for the Group’s financial assets. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the implementation of
HKFRS 9 is not expected to result in any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

This standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard
establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BB BIBHREERNE)
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 3.2 EAE MBI REM 25T

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5. Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under existing HKFRSs. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments to HKFRS
15 included clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent; licenses
of intellectual property; and transition requirements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future will not have
a material impact on the amounts reported to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in the
future based on the existing business model of the Group
as at 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

BRANE B R 2 R (&)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 3.2 BEAfE M KEMZFE

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

This amendment is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendments
clarify that prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met — instead of at fair value through profit
or loss. The directors of the Company anticipate that this
amendment does not result in any significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of operations.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

This standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. HKFRS 16, which
upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”
and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

188

REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Cont’d)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.
As set out in Note 32, the future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
HK$90,108,000. Based on current leasing patterns,
the Group do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16
as compared with the current accounting policy would
result in significant impact on the Group’s results but it is
expected that the certain portion of the lease commitment
will be required to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

This Interpretation is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Interpretation
provides guidance on determining the date of the
transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration paid
or received in a foreign currency and the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
Interpretations specifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part thereof) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

BRANE B R 2 R (&)

3.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 3.2 BEAfE M KEMZFE

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company anticipate that this
interpretation does not result in any significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of operations.

HK{(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

This Interpretation is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Interpretation
supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income Taxes,
by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that
it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected using
either the “most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty.

The directors of the Company anticipate that this
interpretation does not result in any significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment of trade
and other receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers or debtors and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the impairment of
trade and other receivables at the reporting date.

Estimated impairment of goodwill, other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment related to
cash-generating units

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.17. The carrying values of other intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when there are any indications that the carrying value of other
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use/fair value less
costs of disposal calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates about future cash flows and discount rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment related to
cash-generating units (Cont’d)

4.
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In the process of estimating expected future cash flows, REFHREIAR KR 2 RABEY - ERER
management makes assumptions about future revenues and RIRUY S B MR R % o 8 AR R U as &Y

profits. The assumptions about future revenues are mainly
based on the actual financial performance of the Group’s
revenue from respective cash generating unit for the year,
the current market demand of the products in the PRC,
the current supply of the similar products in the market, the
estimated utilisation of the Group’s production capacity and the
management’s current assessment of the economic outlook.
The unit selling price is assumed to remain constant throughout
the forecasted period. The assumptions about future profits are
mainly based on the available market data of the profit margin
ratio of companies engaged in respective cash generating unit
in the PRC and global market. As these assumptions relate to
future events and circumstances, the actual results may vary
and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment within the next financial year.

Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating
the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific
risk factors. The management has taken consideration of risk-
free rate (reference to the yield of the long term bond issued
in the PRC), the cost of equity and debt of the companies in
respective industry and other possible risk factors such as the
market capitalisation of the Group in estimating the discount
rate. Details of the estimates of the recoverable amounts of
cash generating units are disclosed in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees/consultants by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires determining the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.
This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
are disclosed in note 34.

Contingent consideration receivables

Where the fair value of contingent consideration receivables
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets, where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such
as probability-adjusted profit/loss, marketability discount and
minority discount. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of contingent consideration
receivables.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The directors review available-for-sale financial assets at the end
of each reporting period to assess whether they are impaired.
The Group records impairment charges on available-for-sale
financial assets when there has a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below their costs. The determination of
what is significant or prolonged required judgement. In making
this judgement, the directors evaluate, among other factors,
historical financial performance and financial position of the
available-for-sale equity investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME S

The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts during the
years presented.

Other income recognised during the year is as follows:

Wz Ko EABUIA

AEBEZEXBERERFEARBETR

EE

 BABEEREST MR ZEEEM

LRFEAE W -

REFAEHEREMUALT

Period from

1 May 2017 to Year ended

31 December 30 April

2017 2017

B=Z—tF

EHA—HEZE HE

—E—+tF =5

+=B=+—H MA=+H

1EHARS IEFE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FBTT

Bank interest income ERITHRBHA 9,967 12,813
Fair value gain on financial assets BATERERIIR 2 ¢/l

at fair value through profit or loss BEATFEREZE 118 2,006

Gain on disposals of property, HEYE  BREREE 2 s

plant and equipment 1 48

Gain on disposal of subsidiary (note 40) HEHB AR 2 W (HI5E40) 35,206 =

Government grant income BT R B U A 2,351 11,322

Interest income on loan receivables R E T2 F BIRA 208 7,315
Gain on purchase and sale B B EYUETS < Yas ()

of Debt Receivables (note) - 10,843

Others A, 1,968 797

49,909 45,144

Note: On 1 November 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with independent third parties to acquire
the debt receivables and the associated security package of
Shenzhen Longzhu Hospital (the “Debt Receivables”) for a
consideration of RMB520 million. On 22 November 2016, the
Group entered into another sale and purchase agreement with
another independent third party (the “Buyer”) to dispose the Debt
Receivables for a consideration of RMB530 million. Accordingly,
a gain on purchase and sale of Debt Receivables of RMB10
million (equivalent to HK$11 million) was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 30 April 2017.
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% 1) R{EAAREES520,000,0007T © R =
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

~\ 377 S
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEBER
The executive directors have identified the Group’s four NITEEE RN EEEES R ALED
business lines as operating segments as further described in B (FEBERNHIFE2.22) o BIFLTHE D PE
note 2.22. The operating segments are monitored and strategic EEEM RS LD EE i B 2 K 1 H SR S
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating RER o
results.
Tissue engineering Cosmetic and others Medical equipment
a5IR {thERA BERE
Period from Period from Period from Period from Period from
1May 2017 1May 2017 1May 2017 1May 2017 1 May 2017
to Year ended to Year ended to Year ended to Yearended to Year ended
31 December 30Aorl 31 December 30 Aol 31 December 30Apd 31 December 30Api 31 December 30 Aprl
a0 o a0 o o 0 o 0 0 07
BoE-tF BoE-tE BoE-tE BoE-tE i
1f-REE HE  Df-BEE HE  If-BEE H§F  ©A-AEE HEE DR-AEE L
-t C3tF C§-tE TETHE 0 C§-tE CEI4E Bt CEFE 0 SRt CE4E
t2Bzt-F BA=TH tIBZt-B EASTE tzB=t-B MASTA tzR=t-B BASTA tzRst-R MASTA
LE® 5 i3 5 i |55 -] 15§ a1 1t5§
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS1000 HKS000 HiKS'000 HKS000
47 1 47 Thn 47 T 47 T AL Thn
Revenue W&
- From extemal customers ~ResRER 122563 126281 2,149 272 67497 1496 341 1830 503,680 397
- From intersegment revenue R R - 2 - - - 187 - - - 189
Reportable segment revenue AT2EAPuE 12253 126283 2,149 2124 67497 45,113 31471 183,056 503,680 31,176
Reportable segment (oss) proft e v ) 5% (51,141) (30,380) 10854 (10023) (0.957) (1233 (50969) (61,098)
Amortsaton f land use rights HfRER 69 102 - - - - - - 69 1”2
Amortisaion of other intangble assets EfeayEERE B4 3682 4954 7315 - - - - 30428 Q097
Depreciaon i 562 7758 3750 2174 5m 633 % % 9979 10599
Inteestincome: HEMA 5604 2702 7 I 18 b 11 i 5808 307
Reportable segment assets AT2HndEE 1,060,411 1,003,750 319,356 300783 121,163 149,159 411,069 19725 1,011,999 1563417
Addiions o non-curent segment g/ EREraATEE LR
assets during the periocfyear 29781 3810 30,19 06,214 621 3118 - 4 61,121 73,146
Reportable segment iabiftes FSES V- 89,095 65,390 3,254 1389 2205 51,726 28746 2680 380320 133685
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. DEBERI(E)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the financial statements as follows:

ARER B2 7 BR 51 7 Y A RE BN S [ 0 B 7
HRIIRH BRI EEE RN

Period from

1 May 2017 to Year ended

31 December 30 April

2017 2017

B=Z—tF

EHA—HEZE HE

—E—tF —E—+F

+=-BA=+—H MA=+H

1EHARS IEFE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FBTT

Total of reportable segments’ revenue AT MmN AW LRTE 503,680 357,176

Less: Elimination of intersegment revenue R HEE D BRI ES - (189)

Group revenue ESE e 503,680 356,987

Total of reportable segments’ loss BT 2 EEERE (50,963) (61,098)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR 2 K 35,206 =

Unallocated corporate income AOBEEEKA 4,120 18,429

Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBEERY (119,412) (163,922)
Fair value (loss)/gain on contingent R ESAREB 2 ATE

consideration receivables (B18), W= (15,876) 20,097

Finance costs W58 R (24,901) (24,426)

Group’s consolidated loss before income tax  ZNEE B 2 (& FriSFi Al 47 & 548 (171,826) (210,920)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

tET - A=1T—HLLHH

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. DEHER(E)

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—tF T—LF
+=—BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBTT
Total of reportable segments’ assets AT ERDEBEELTE 1,911,999 1,553,417
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 575,056 112,928

Financial assets at fair value through TR ER BRI
profit or loss 2 EREE 12,154 12,036
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEKTB AR 2 RS 100,000 —
Contingent consideration receivables ISR IAKA(E 32,502 46,259
Cash and cash equivalents BehReFEEBER 6,575 288,405
Pledged bank deposits 2RI TIER 818,062 794,743
Other corporate assets HEfEEE 71,625 80,441
Group assets SEEE 3,527,973 2,888,229
Total of reportable segments’ liabilities BATZE ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ%@%ﬁé 380,320 133,685
Bank borrowings IRITIES 771,840 753,977
Shareholder’s loans Hx%f“*” 472,542 =
Deferred taxation IRIEFRIA 81,076 78,411
Other corporate liabilities EfF¥alE 8,871 14,264
Group liabilities SEaE 1,714,649 980,337

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs,
exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segments.

ANECEAXTIBBREIFEXAEALE
DEWZEBEHEENEIRAN  ELE
B URsEEZRESNER HeRH
FIs o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. DEBERI(E)
The Group'’s revenue from external customers and its non- REERBINAEFPHM G RHIEREE E
current assets other than contingent consideration receivables, (BUEARE - AL E SR E E RS HEHF
available-for-sale financial assets and pledged deposits FRBRIN ([FEFERBNEE | it @ D AT 1A
(“Specified non-current assets”) are divided into the following ™

geographical areas:

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENREF R BEFRBEE
Period from Period from
1 May 2017 to Yearended 1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April 31 December 30 April
2017 2017 2017 2017
B=Z2—t#F B=Z2—t#F
EA-HEZE BHE EA-HEZE BHE
—2-tF —T—tF —2-tF —T—tF
+ZA=+—H WA=+H +=A=t+-—H MA=+H
1EHARE EFE LHEAE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THT THERT THT
Hong Kong BB 13,377 328 83,723 123,705
The PRC (domicile) Bl (EBBPAE) 490,303 356,659 962,874 793,463
503,680 356,987 1,046,597 917,168
During the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017, 14% BE-_Z—+tFRA—BEE_ZT—+F+—
and 10% of the Group’s revenue depended on one customer A=+—H 5 - $’§ B U 25 19 14% &
in medical equipment segment and one customer in tissue 10% DRI RBERBERHED *IKZ % xR
engineering segment respectively. As at 31 December 2017, 0% KB TR B2 — % BE o RZE—LF
and 1% of the Group’s trade receivables were due from these +—A=+—8 xEEEKES EEIEE’JO%
two customers respectively. FA%DRIREZMEBEF o

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

—tFRA-BRE_ZT—tF+-A=+—HILHH

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

During the year ended 30 April 2017, 46% and 33% of the
Group’s revenue depended on one customer in medical
equipment segment and one customer in tissue engineering
segment respectively. As at 30 April 2017, 0% and 18% of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from these two customers
respectively.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on (1) the physical location of the assets
(for property, plant and equipment and land use rights) and (2)
location of operations (for goodwill and other intangible assets).
The Company is an investment holding company where the
Group has majority of its operation and workforce in the PRC,
and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segment”.

DEPER ()

HE_Z—tFENA=THILEFE  A5£E
W #46% K% 33% D Rk E R EBERESE
2 %ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁmhﬁz BEE o R
E—EMA=1H AEFRKE SR
TEM0% K 18% D RIR B ZMB R ©

BEEMEMEIREBMREZRGARNTE
an ZHFEI D o BEIFRBEE 2 IR
BEONEEERMEMCGERRYE BEK
AR L ) I (28 & P s CE AR Y
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁFﬁw‘ﬁ A&
BEBRRR] MAREAZHEERSE N
SeERE - Eit - ERRARREE S
BREEU LR LD BMIMEMBE
REBE 2 TRATEM -

FINANCE COSTS Bi5E M
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=ZE—+tF
TA—HEZE HE
—E—+tF —T—tF
+=-BA=+—H WMA=+H
LEHAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERZ S 24,901 24,426
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRATBHIAIEE
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—tF
EHA—HEZE HE
—E—+tF =5
+=B=+—H MA=+H
13RS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FBTT
Loss before income tax has been arrived BATERAEREINR(GEA)
at after charging/(crediting): THIFIE -
Amortisation of land use rights b fh AR A B 69 102
Amortisation of other intangible assets, EfthfE T & =S
included in administrative expenses (BEBEETHRASH) 30,428 40,997
Auditor’s remuneration % 2R AT N & 1,022 1,133
Depreciation e 10,494 14,181
Advertising and marketing, included in seling E& R HiaHER
and distribution expenses (BERREEHEE D HEAYH) 63,128 38,218
Equity-settled share-based payments AR E 2 IRiES B 25,495 28,520
Exchange difference, net JE N =R (FRE) (1,648) 18,224
Operating lease rentals in respect MAEYFE 2 LEHERS
of office premises 22,677 23,169
Research and development costs B A AR 30,194 58,623
Less: Capitalisation to other intangible assets & : EA L = EM EF EE (3,475) (2,576)
26,719 56,047
Employee benefit expense (including EERMNAZ(BRIEESMHE
directors’ emoluments (note 9)) (note 10) (MF3E9)) (FitsE10) 101,414 131,746
Less: Employee benefit expenses included & : IR AR 2
in research and development costs EERARX (2,878) (5,304)
98,536 126,442
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9. EBERESITTHAEME

OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS

Contribution
todefined  Equity-settled
Salaries and contribution share-based
Fees allowances plans payments Total
CEME  EREEY
ik FeREH HEZBR  REXNER it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thn TER T Tén TEn
Period from 1 May 2017 to H-2-t§0A-BiE2
31 December 2017 ZER-tEtAT- AL
Executive directors YES
Mr. Chen Chunguo fRERESE - 3,465 12 9,821 13,208
Mr. Ray Yip (re-designated EER4
from non-executive (R=F—tENANA
director to executive director HETEZATAIES)
on 8 September 2017) 400 800 - - 1,200
Mr. Wong Sai Hung at LS
(resigned on 30 November 2017) (R=F—tF+-R=THE) - 840 1 1,24 2,135
Dr. Shao Zhengkang MREEL
(resigned on 8 September 2017) (R=F—tENANBEF) - 635 8 1,014 1,657
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFH{TES
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RmeEs 160 - - 188 348
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest U S 160 - - - 160
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny FHBEE 160 - - 196 356
Dr. Fang Jun FEET(RNZE—tF
(appointed on 29 December 2017) TZAZThREZH) - - - - -
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BARILE
(resiqned on 8 September 2017) (R=F—tENATRAEM) 140 - - - 140
Non-executive directors i8S
Professor Cui Zhanfeng EOEHE 800 - - 601 1401
Professor Xiong Chengyu FETHR 400 - - - 400
Mr. Wang Hu (re-dlesignated from TELE
independent non-executive (R=F—tF~A-H
director to non-executive BEVHTESREA
director on 1 June 2017 FHTESUR_T—1F
and resigned on 8 September 2017) NANBEH) 182 - - 14 196
2,402 5,740 3 13,118 21,291
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERESITTHAEME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)
Contribution
to defined Equity-settied
Salaries and contribution share-based
Fees allowances plans payments Total
TERER  DEREE
ik G dEtR RENER At
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THI ThL Th ThL
Year ended 30 April 2017 BE_R-tEMAZtELFE
Executive directors Hi7ES
Mr. Chen Chunguo RERE
(appointed as presicent (R=Z—"E+A=tRA
on 25 October 2016 and BZARERIN-E—1F
re-Gesignated as chief ZAZTZREEATRER
executive officer on RZE3—tE-A=+HA
23 February 2017; Bz tREES)
appointed as executive
director on 25 January 2017) 770 - 5 - 775
Mr. Wong Sai Hung EttiEEE - 1440 18 1,374 2,83
Dr. Shao Zhengkang BREEL
(ceased to be chief executive (R=F—tF-A=1=H
officer on 23 February 2017) MEEATHER) 1800 150 18 1317 3285
Independent non-executive directors  BUFH{TES
Mr. Lui Tin Nang aRERE 240 - - 137 317
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny FHELE 240 - - 137 317
Mr. Chan Bing Woon B 240 - - 132 372
Mr. Wang Hui TERE 240 - - 120 360
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest EREE
(appointed on 23 February 2017) (W=F—tF-A-t=HEER) M - - - 4
Non-executive directors HurEs
Professor Cui Zhanfeng ELEYE
(appointed on 7 October 2016) (R=F—nEF+ALBEER) 682 - - 645 1,327
Dr. Ray Yip EERL
(appointed on 23 February 2017) (R=Z—tF-A-T=REZ) 110 - - - 110
Professor Xiong Chengyu RETHE
(appointed on 20 March 2017) (R=E—tE=A-TREZA) 70 - - - 70
Mr. Yang Znengguo FEELE
(resigned on 5 August 2016) (R=Z—"E)\ARAET) 316 - - - 316
Professor Deng Shaoping BaETHas
(reted on 9 September 2016) (R=F-"ENANBEE) 430 - - - 430
Mr. Wang Jianjun IRERE
(reted on 9 September 2016) (R=F-A"ENANBRE) 360 - - - 360
Mr. Cao Fushun s
(resigned on 18 July 2016) (R=F—rFLATN\BEH) 258 - - - 258
5,800 1,590 H 3,862 11,293
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the period (Year
ended 30 April 2017: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments in respect of those
persons’ other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Employees’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments including share-
based payment expenses were the highest in the Group for
the year included four (30 April 2017: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

9. EERESTBRAEMNE (&)

HAMBEEENRXRAERETAME 2%
FEE-ZTFOA=TBEILFE: £)-

AREBESEFAESEMERMME - (ERINA
AREBE SN INARE B 2 2B BRI 1E -

XNTFHTEEZHRE  HF2RRRBER
REEALTFERERARRRENBARSE
BHEAMRB 2% -

ESHE

AEEFATERHA L (NS BREMER
MRERZNFEX)BRENE(ZF—tF
MA=1H: =ZR)E%F - AME RN Lt
DA - BT —B(ZE—LFOA=1H:

emoluments of the remaining one individual (30 April 2017: two) WA ATHMESIAT -
were as follows:
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—tF
EHA—HEZE HE
—E—t& —E—+F
+=-BA=+—H MA=+H
IEHARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETT
Salaries and other benefits e RE MR 1,890 2,464
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFFT B 12 30
Equity-settled share-based payments AR E 2 RiES B 292 359
2,194 2,853

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERBESITHAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)
The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell HFEENTERFTALTHOMES N T LATEHE N
within the following band: AN

Number of individual

A

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017

B=ZT—+tF
BA—HRE BHE
—E—+tF —ET—tF
+=A=+-—H MA=+AH
1-EARE IEFE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007%8 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500, 0017T — 2,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000, 00187t — 2,500,000/ 7T 1 -

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10. EERARX(BREESMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—tF
EA—-HEZE HE
—E—tF —E—+F
+=A=+-—H MA=+AH
1 HA R LEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Wages and salaries ITERF® 69,145 90,191
Equity-settled share-based payments ERER < RESZ & A 23,173 24,597
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ RIRE A — E RG] 7,002 10,377
Other staff benefits Hih 8 TEH 2,094 6,581
101,414 131,746
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

11.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (Year ended 30
April 2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
period. The PRC enterprise income tax of 25% (Year ended 30
April 2017: 25%) is applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
except that Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering Company
Limited and Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd are granted the tax
benefit for the National High-Tech Enterprise for three years
starting from the calendar year ended 31 December 2016. They
are subject to income tax rate of 15%. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the period at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

1. FiSHiER

BT SR TR AT ER R R R &
16.5%(BE_T—+tFWA=THIFE :
16.5% )T & © N5 [E P BT B A Al A 25%
(BE-_Z—tFMA=THILFE : 25%)
ZHBETCEMSH  WRINERAKEIRE
BRARMKEFINEM TIERR R BIRE
E-E-REt+tZA=+—HILEE#T=
EFENELSBER SIS 3 mERTHE
B3R+ RAEK15%Z FTSRRBF - BINF
SR TR A B B (A E R s AR AR E
KB FREM 2 IR TR R GTE o

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017

B=Z—tF
TA—HBE HE
—E—tF —E—+F
+=—A=+—H WMA=+H
LEHAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

Profits tax — for the current year ST —ARFE

Over provision in respect of prior years B FEREERE - (4,382)
Deferred taxation (note 28) EIEFIE (FM13E28) (5,610) (7,346)
Income tax credit FrisHi R (5,610) (11,728)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

1. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONT'D) . FrSHiiER (&)
Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting loss REAMEGECEHERRSHER
at applicable tax rates: HERWAT -
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=ZE—+tF
EHA—HEZE HE
—E—tF T —+ 4
+=B=+—H MA=+H
1EHARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Loss before income tax BRETEBIAIESIE (171,826) (210,920)
Notional tax calculated at the rates LB R R BB
applicable to the loss in the tax Az B EGTERNRETIE
jurisdictions concerned (36,082) (43,294)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A AEMM 2 AR 2
for tax purpose 36,235 43,617
Tax effect of income not taxable AR AR TS 7 2
for tax purpose (1,211) (5,357)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR EE RN S 2 3,041 3,125
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FRABTRARER L
tax losses THIAE A (7,593) (5,437)
Over provision in respect of prior years BAEFEBERE - (4,382)
Income tax credit FEBiEs (5,610) (11,728)
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EEV rERENASERE(HEE=_Z—+

the period (Year ended 30 April 2017: Nil). FA=1THILFE : £) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

13. LOSS PER SHARE

13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

BRER

ARRRHEE AREERERNNETERTIR
BATEURRT R -

data:
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—tF
RA—HEZE HE
—E—tF —E—+F
+=-BA=+—H MA=+H
LEEARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FATT
Loss for the period/year attributable RAUGTEEREREE 2
to owners of the Company for the PiN/NETE 2PN F PN
purpose of basic loss per share B FEER (158,492) (184,502)
Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
A=Z—tF
REA—HEZE HE
—E—tF —E—+F
+=A=+-8  MA=+H
LEEARS IEFE
’000 ‘000
T T
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FBUAGHE G AEIE 2
for the purpose of basic loss per share TR NRE I £ 17,585,790 17,587,434

For the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 and
year ended 30 April 2017, diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company was the same as basic loss per share
because the impact of the exercise of share options was anti-

dilutive.

B +&FRA—HAEE_T—tF+—
A=+—HBItHRA;HEE=Z—+F 1WA
=+ HLEFE  ARTTERREEREEY
2 WARFHE AREEREEEERS
AR E AR EEAER ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - MENKE

Furniture
Leasehold and Computer Motor
Buildings  improvement equipment equipment vehicles Total
BT HEWERE  GARRE ERRfE RE fit
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TATL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 May 2016 R=Z-~ERA-B
Cost WA 108,666 12,777 80,386 2615 3,171 207,615
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (5,484) (7,360) (18,384) (1,576) (2,058) (34,862)
Net book amount FEFE 103,182 5417 62,002 1,039 1113 172,753
Year ended 30 April 2017 BE_T-tFBAZTRLEE
Opening net book amount HBOREFE 103,182 5417 62,002 1,039 1,113 172,753
Exchange differences ERES (5,904) (189) (2,976) 99 (58) (8,226)
Disposal e (84) - (95) - - (179)
Additions hE - 47,793 21,202 621 1,331 70,947
Depreciation ik (2,495) (3,681) (7,074) (407) (524) (14,181)
Closing net book amount BRERFE 94,699 49,340 73,059 1,154 1,862 220,114
At 30 April 2017 R=E-tEMA=1A
Cost R 102,331 60,189 99,497 3289 4531 269,837
Accumulated depreciation Zitie (7,632) (10,849) (26,438) (2,135) (2,669) (49,723
Net book amount FEFE 94,699 49,340 73,059 1,154 1,862 220,114
Period from 1 May 2017 to B-E-tERfA-RBE-E
31 December 2017 —tE+ZRA=+-HILHE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 94,699 49,340 73,059 1,154 1,862 220,114
Exchange differences ERES 5,940 214 3,521 34 104 9,813
Disposal irk=5 - - ® - - ®
Additions hE - 43,766 30,080 1,866 - 75,712
Witten off i - (422) ? &) - (427)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40)  (HEMBAR(Kiz40) - - (1,435) (60) - (1,49)
Acquisttion of a subsidiary (note 39) KB AR (Fitt39) - = 1419 19 - 1438
Depreciation Vil (1,647) (2,350) (5,79%) (370) (332) (10,494)
Closing net book amount BRERFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1634 294,653
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tF+-A=1-A
Cost A 108,847 104,09 134,582 5,086 4,825 357,436
Accumulated depreciation e (0,855) (13,548) (33,743 (2,446) (3,191) (62,783)
Net book amount FEFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1,634 294,653
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

14.

15.

—t+FHRA—HEE-ZT—

tET - A=1T—HLLHH

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BB KRR (&)
(CONT'D)
As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, all the Group’s R-E—+tF+-_A=+—HBR-_ZT—tF
buildings are situated in the PRC and are held under medium MA=1H  AKEFBEFHUNFEE
term leases. AR ER A EE -
As at 30 April 2017, certain of the Group’s property, plant and RZZE—tFMNA=+H  AKEKRHEFE
equipment with net carrying amount of HK$78,027,000 were 78,027,000/ T2 & T - BERZED
pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group T - LAREBER 2 RITE IR E
(note 27). Such bank borrowings were fully repaid and the R(MIFE27) - BN - ZERITIEREBE(E
pledge of assets were released during the period. & BEERMRDERR -
During the period, the directors reviewed the carrying amount HN - EFCFEME - BERERE KRR
of property, plant and equipment. The details of the impairment B o BERHE 2 FHBEEMIFE6 ©
assessment are stated in note 16.
LAND USE RIGHTS 15. i fs FAHE
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—+tF =5
+=-B=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
Opening net carrying amount HAY AR TE B 4,219 4,584
Exchange differences JEN ERE 266 (263)
Amortisation iy (69) (102)
Closing net carrying amount BARARE A 4,416 4,219

The Group’s land use rights represent payments to acquire
interests in the usage of lands situated in the PRC, which are
held under medium-term leases.

As at 30 April 2017, the Group’s entire land use rights were
pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group
(note 27). Such bank borrowings were fully repaid and the
pledge of assets were released during the period.

REE 2z L b AR MBI N P B 2 3

ZERER (AP HEET AR ) 2 K
1§ o

R-ZE—tFOA=1+H AEEZ2HL
HWEMEE TEM - AAAEEER ZRTT
1*“”&( HER(MIRE27) » IR - s FR1TIE
RETBHEE - BEERITCHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

16. GOODWILL 16. B&

The goodwill arose from (1) the acquisition of FD(H)
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries, which are engaged
in the production and sales of tissue engineering products,
in 2008 and the acquisition of Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai
Technology Co., Ltd (“Kechuang”), which is engaged in
development and sales of information technology software
related to lamellar keratoplasty recording during the period
(note 39) (“Aierfu Business”); (2) the acquisition of Maylion
Management Limited and its subsidiary (“Reshine Business”),
which is engaged in bio-medical engineering, research and
development of regenerative medical products in relation
to tissue engineering technology in December 2013; (3) the
acquisition of Passion Stream Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Weikai Business”), which is engaged in the design and
manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related
equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors and their
related consumables, as well as provision of CRO services in
April 2015; and (4) the acquisition of Frame Sharp Limited and
its subsidiaries (“AK Business”), which is principally engaged in
providing service and equipment for human cell and stem cell
related clinical applications in August 2015.

AEDELXBAN)ZZZ N\ F KEFDH)
Investments Limited & £ KB A7) - EH =
EEREEAKTREER « MARWKEFI
BalERFEMAR AR (DFEIIFEE]) - H)E
ERBENEERIREABRRELERE (=
B RATE G (M) (BB %S ) : 2=
T =F+ - AREEREEAERAFTRE
MBAR([mEEK])  HtE4EmEST
12 - BRAAL TIRRITH) B A B R E m AT
% Q) =Z — A F M A Y Passion Stream
Limited R B AR ([FIEHK]) - HtH
Fe PR BT AR AR A S AR BE AR R AR i 2 R AT AN B3
(BRI RE = SRS R Y R BT 54
BRFEM ) A R IR A R BT 7R AR &
@ =—ZF—HA%F )\ A EEFrame Sharp Limited
REWBAR([RIER])  HEEBHREA
N BE 40 BB K% 94 400 R AE A B R B PR BB AR AR A K
A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

16. GOODWILL (CONT'D)

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

16. BIE (&)

BB ZREFHEZ AT

Aierfu Reshine Weikai AK
Business Business Business Business Total
L) B WEEE  FUEE  RIER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TR THT THT
At 1 May 2016 R-E-AERA—H
Gross carrying amount BEEAE 141,310 152,615 96,213 8,902 399,040
Accumulated impairment Z5RE - (152,615) (49,442) - (202,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
Year ended 30 April 2017 BE-2—tF
MA=tHLEE
Opening net carrying amount HREFE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
Closing net carrying amount HARIREHE 141,310 - 46,771 8,002 196,983
At 30 April 2017 R-E—tEMA=1H
Gross carrying amount BEEAE 141,310 152,615 96,213 8,902 399,040
Accumulated impairment ZERE - (152,615) (49,442) - (202,057)
Net carrying amount EH3E 141,310 - 46,771 8,002 196,983
Period from 1 May 2017 to H-Z—tE5RA-AE-%
31 December 2017 —tE+ZA=+—-HLHB
Opening net carrying amount HREFE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) Bz HiB 2 & (KizE39) 5,309 = = = 5,309
Closing net carrying amount HRIREFE 146,619 - 46,771 8,002 202,292
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tF+=A=t—H
Gross carrying amount BEEAE 146,619 162,615 96,213 8,902 404,349
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE - (152,615) (49,442) - (202,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 146,619 - 46,771 8,902 202,292
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

16. GOODWILL (CONT'D) 16. & (E)
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to AETRERA  BEeS/RENERSE
four cash generating units, Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, EEBA - VRBEED W ER - FIlE%
Weikai Business and AK Business. PECIE S

The recoverable amounts for these cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use (“VIU”)/fair value less
cost of disposal (“FVLCD”) calculation using discounted cash
flow technique, covering detailed five-year budget plans. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the

EZ%fﬁiEEEQE’J—M&@i%’ﬁaﬁéﬁ*ﬁ@iﬁﬁ
MAREREX(RABRFEEE)

ZEREE(ERERD, 2 $1ﬁﬂﬁ’%ﬁ
AT AFEBHERANDFEET - AFH
A& 2 R e M ETIRIA T ASIMEFHE R X H#

estimated growth rates as stated below. The discount rates g - AREREE 2T ERL SRR
used for VIU and FVLCD are pre-tax and post-tax respectively ET“EJ RRTA KRG - W RERAEEEE
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating CEEBMZIFERRE °

unit.

The key assumptions used for recoverable amounts are as
follows:

A E S EEAMERMERRERMAT

Basis Growth rate Discount rate
04 BR% TRE
31 December 30 April 31 December 30 April 31 December 30 April
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
“E-tf “5tE “E-tE 3 “E-tE “I-tF
TZR=1-H MA=tB t=A=1-H MA=+B tZA=1-H MA=1H
Ajerfu Business NBEER ViU ViU 3% 3% 2% 22%
FREE fPREE
Reshine Business TREZH ViU ViU 3% 3% 28% 28%
FREE FREE
Welkai Business BB FVLCD FVLCD 3% 3% 2% 20%
AYERLERR ATERLENS
AK Business NBEEE FVLCD FVLCD 3% 3% 22% 20%
AYERLERK ATERLENS

The key assumptions are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin, which had
been determined based on the market comparables and
budgeted revenue, which had been determined based on the
management’s expectation for the market development and the
production capacity of relevant cash generating units.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in their key
assumptions. However, the estimate of recoverable amount of
the Group’s cash generating units is particularly sensitive to the
discount rate applied.

The recoverable amount has been determined by an
independent professional valuer, Hong Kong Appraisal
Advisory Limited with the discounted cash flow approach.
The recoverable amounts of these cash generating units are
classified as level 3 measurement.

Ixﬂﬂj‘”ﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁiﬁf BRERRBHEER
RERIE™ 5 A LLEYE M TR E Was (AR

TJ%%IE%ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁé)ﬁﬁ*@%ﬁﬁ%?iﬁu

MAERN < TRHERE)ETE -

BLiiEeReELBM NSRRI EE
A= - ARE 2 B TR [ IR A 30 HEAEAA
Hiprlge o8 SHF2LHTERRK -
AW AEBERECELBUNATRESE L
EETH AT R 2 TR R SR -

ARESBDBBY X GHEME LT ER
FRERQRERABRESRELET - 25
ReEL B WE S BRI R E =RET

Eo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

16.

17.

—t+FHRA—HEE-ZT—

tET - A=1T—HLLHH

GOODWILL (CONT'D) 16. HE(E\)
As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, based on the R-E—+tF+-_A=+—HBR-_ZT—tF
results of the reviews of the recoverable amount of the cash WMA=+H BEYRSCEASLM(BEN
generating units containing goodwill, the recoverable amounts )N ESENEESER HeEE B
exceeded the carrying amounts of the relevant assets less FEERBEN R IE SRR AREE -
liabilities of the cash generating units, the management miii’ REBARE-_Z—+tFRHHA AL
considered that there was no impairment to be recognised in EF+tFTA=T—HIHEREZE
profit or loss for the period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December “E—+tFOA=THLEFENERANER
2017 and year ended 30 April 2017. B °
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. BIWESARE
RECEIVABLES
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—+tF T —+4F
+=—BA=+—H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
At 1 May RAA—H 46,259 28,030
Fair value (loss)/gain ANFEEER), s (15,876) 20,097
Exchange differences JENR ERE 2,119 (1,868)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 32,502 46,259

There are profit guarantees for the acquisitions of Weikai
Business and AK Business.

For Weikai Business, the vender guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB25,000,000, or he
will transfer part of the shares of Passion Stream Limited (a
70% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group) held by him
and classified as non-controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statements, based on the percentage of the shortfall
in total net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The
adjustment will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

For AK Business, the vendor guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB8,000,000, or he will
transfer part of the shares of Frame Sharp Limited (a 70%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group) held by him and
classified as non-controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statement, based on the percentage of the shortfall
in total net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The
adjustment will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

WREHHEHRRIXHIIE B HIRE

ERBIER  BEAFRAEERE 2
—E-RFE_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—8
IEFEZ2FBEFFEETLIRARE
25,000,000 7T * & A B A% 8 & AT 15 50 1D
Passion Stream Limited ( 7% £ & 70% [ # Fft
BAR)ZRh (REERFF58ERE LR
FFHEEZZBEN L REEMBEHRENA
DIRIEERI R L) - BRIAZSNNE
HRREES o

EARINEL  BEFRMAEERE  BHE
—T-RFE_ZT—)\F+=-A=+—H
EFEZEFEEFFEETLIRARE
8,000,000 7T + 7 Bl H # 8 & K A5 30 19
Frame Sharp Limited (A& B 70%EE KB A
7)) 2 fn (IR IE 2% 7 F R ER B R FF
HMEZEZEANL  REEMBEHRERAD
RIEEIRAR R ) o BTN UF AL
RigEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

17. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

The contingent consideration receivables represent the
fair value of the profit guarantees in accordance with the
share purchase agreements for the acquisition of Weikai
Business and AK Business and are estimated by independent
professional valuers, Hong Kong Appraisal Advisory Limited.
As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, the fair value of
the contingent consideration receivables were estimated by
applying probability weighted discounted cash flow approach
based on the estimated total profits expected by management
of the Group to be earned by the Weikai Business and AK
Business for the four years ended 31 December 2018 and the
estimated fair values of the shares of Passion Stream Limited
and Frame Sharp Limited held by the non-controlling interests.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. Significant unobservable
inputs for the valuation approach are as follows:

17. BUEARNREGE)

FEW S AR BRI o 275 R e %
B RhBEWZENEMNRE A TE
THEBYEXGEMEATEBRRERAR
st e RZE—tF+-A=+—HBRZ=ZE
—tFMA=+H  BRIAREZATE
Th{E AR RN IR IR € R EE BB A &
EERERREE—T—\F+=_A=1+—
B 1P E 5 [E G ol 375 & R e FE S BRER 2 fl
S8R ) 48 58 DA K2 FE1%E s IR BR 4 25 T 5 Passion
Stream Limited & Frame Sharp Limitedf% {3 2
HEFAFEMEEHEE °

JEWSAREBZATFERE =REEERF
B2 o (AEEAZEARERAIBERBBA T
NG

Weikai Business AK Business
EEES LS
31 December 30 April 31 December 30 April
2017 2017 2017 2017
§-tf T4 3-tf Tt
tZA=1-H MA=1H tZR=1-H MA=1H
Marketabilty discount on the ROAFEZ T RBNRE
fair value of shares 20.89% 20.8%% 20.89% 20.8%%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

17. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. EWERARE(E)

RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

Higher marketability discount on the fair value of shares of
Passion Stream Limited and Frame Sharp Limited will result in
corresponding lower fair values.

As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant, the sensitivity analysis of
the change in significant unobservable inputs to the fair values
of contingent consideration receivables is as follows:

Passion Stream Limited }  Frame Sharp
Limited Z IR A FEZ TS RBITREAS
G R THEEERD

R_ZE—+F+-_A=1+—Bh_Z2—+tF
WA=+H ' BT EMESRFITE
JEUW S AR E 2 A ERIEEAFEAI B2
B 2 BRESHTAOT ¢

Decrease in fair values of

contingent consideration receivables

EBYIAKEZ 2 FERD

Weikai Business AK Business
EEK R ¥R
31 December 30 April - 31 December 30 April
2017 2017 2017 2017
—E—tfF —T—+F —E—tF —T—tF
+=H=+—8H WA=+H +=B=t+-—A mA=+H
Increase in the marketability T35 REITIREFHS5%
discount by 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HitEFEE

Development Licensing
Trademark Patents costs agreement Total
e &7l BRAEK B EhS aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL T TAL T TAL
At1 May 2016 R=E-~ELR-H
Cost 5 79,984 497,839 115,370 - 693,193
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEHREEFE
impairment losses (40,014) (166,679) - - (206,693)
Net book amount REFE 39,970 331,160 115,370 = 486,500
Year ended 30 April 2017 BE-Z-tFMA=TALEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 39,970 331,160 115,370 - 486,500
Additions RE - - 2,576 - 2576
Exchange differences EREE - (15,556) 6,807) = (22,369)
Amortisation B (5,330) (82,223 (3,444 - (40,997)
Closing net book amount BRERE 34,640 283,381 107,695 - 425,716
At 30 April 2017 R=Z-tEMA=1A
Cost 5 79,984 473372 111,005 - 664,451
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEHREEFE
impairment losses (45,344) (189,991) (3,400) - (238,735)
Net book amount REFE 34,640 283,381 107,695 = 425,716
Period from 1 May 2017 to BZE-tFLA-REZ
31 December 2017 ZE2-tEtZAZt-HiLHE
Opening net book amount BREFE 34,640 283,381 107,69 - 425,716
Additions RE - - 3475 - 3475
Acquisition of a subsidiary note 39)  UiEEHIB A = (FitH39) = = - 23,393 23393
Exchange differences ELER - 14,238 8,351 - 22589
Amortisation B (3559) (21,922 (2332 (2,621) (30,428)
Closing net book amount BRERE 31,087 275,607 117,189 20,772 444,745
At 31 December 2017 R=B8—t%E+=A=t-A
Cost 5 79,984 493,470 123,216 23,393 720,063
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEHREEFE
impairment losses (48,897) (217,773 (6,027) (2,621) (275,318)
Net book amount REFE 31,087 275,697 117,189 20,772 444,745
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

18.

19.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of other
intangible assets of HK$116,107,000, HK$228,269,000,
HK$49,371,000 and HK$50,998,000 are related to four cash
generating units, Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, Weikai
Business and AK Business respectively. These other intangible
assets were mainly arising from the business combinations as
stated in note 16.

During the period, the directors reviewed the carrying amounts
of the other intangible assets. The details of the impairment
assessment are stated in note 16.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

8. HtvEILEE (&)

R-ZE—+FE+-A=+—08 HibEFRE
EZ RE{E116,107,0005 7T + 228,269,000
B IT ~ 49,371,000 7T & 50,998,000 7T 7
RIERPOEIR S EE L BAT (AN B E 255 - Bk
5% I FEBRBIFER) B o 2 EM
EEEE B RE M6 2 A6 -

R EXEETHMEBVEEZREE -
BERHG 2 FHB RN HIEE16

19. AItHETREE

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—tF —E—+F
+=—BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
Non-current ERE
Unlisted equity securities — I EMRAFE S —F L™
unlisted PRC company, at cost FEAR R 112,928 112,928
Unlisted private equity fund — ELEMAERAES 8N
Overseas, at cost LR AR 214,691 =
Unlisted private equity fund — ELEMAERAES —FH
Overseas, at fair value BAYE 126,837 =
454,456 112,928
Current B
Unlisted equity securities — I EMRAES - L™
unlisted PRC company, at cost AR - A 120,600 =

Unlisted equity securities in private companies and certain
private equity funds are measured at cost less impairment
losses as the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Except for the unlisted equity securities in PRC company of
HK$120,600,000, the Group does not intend to dispose of
available-for-sale financial assets.

ENREEAFELFTBERZEHBEEALRN
R ERZ BB AZ M E AT T8
BEFENMER  RARRZIFLHIRAE
# METILERAE S AR E R BT
B - ARABFARLDTFEL TEEAISEFE ©

B A B R ) 2 FE T AR AN 38 %+ 120,600,000
BN AEE TSR ESRMEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

20. INVENTORIES 20. 8
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—tF —ET—+F
+=-BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET AT
Raw materials R 8,093 3,716
Work in progress Pl 1,176 1,728
Finished goods IR Gh 17,286 9,310
Goods in transit EER 2,195 45813
28,750 60,567
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 21. EWE ZERIE - % « FAIFRKIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES K E b fE UL BR1E
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—tF —T—tF
+=ZB=+—H MmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BR18 279,806 39,117
Deposits b ia 14,887 14,509
Prepayments SEUNE O] 315,977 138,518
Bank interest receivables JEUERTTHI S 17,276 7,448
Other receivables E b fEUg BRIA 142,533 173,204
490,673 333,679
As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, prepayments RZBE—+F+_A=+—HER-_ZE—+F
mainly represented by the prepaid promotion expenses and MA=+H ' BNfZEIEZERMNEHEER
purchases of medical equipment for trading. Other receivables B ERHEIAEES - EMEWIREEE
mainly represented payment made to an agent for identification Eme REEEEWEEmM N T —
and negotiation of potential acquisition opportunities. RIBMEEIE - EEERATENNTIE R EME
Management considered that prepayments and other WERIA AR & HEAfE 1218 B AE A B
receivables will be utilised/repaid within 12 months from the 2B U DEARENEE o

reporting date and classified as current assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT'D)

As at 31 December 2017, ageing analysis of trade receivables
based on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

FEWE SIRE - %9 - ANRE
R E fo e 85 (4

RZZE—+tF+A=1+—0 EWEFKE
RIHEZZH B RABREER 2 BRE DT
T

31 December 30 April

2017 2017

—E—+tF —E—t5F

+=—A=+—H mA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FATT

0-90 days 0-90K 259,744 12,348
Over 90 days but less than 1 year FBIBI0NIE D1 4F 19,770 18,590
1 year or over 1 year 1FS 1A B 292 8,179
279,806 39,117

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(80 April 2017: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The carrying amount of trade receivables is considered as
reasonable approximation of their fair value. Impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtors and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. All of the Group’s trade receivables have been
reviewed for indicators of impairment.

AEEGETHEP Z FHEEHA60-180K
(ZE—tFWHHA=+H : 60-180K) °

EWE ZREREERRASEATFEZA
BOH - EEFERBRRARKEKRESN
R EWERTE 2 RAT R B 2 30k R - Rl
SRERWESRBLERE - EHAEY
BEARMBHEE - A SREEM A RIER -
BRESREKE ZRBLERBEEZTR -
SEMERKEZRAD ETRENREH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

21.

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 21. BWEZARIE - B « ANFE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES R HE R ARE (/)
(CONT'D)
In addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are N - RERER - HHWEREZEWE S
past due as at the reporting date. Ageing analysis of trade BRI ThE BAR A o WARE 2 EILE 58RI
receivables not impaired is as follows: ZIRERDITIAT
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—B—+F —T—tF
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
0-90 days 0-90KX 13,149 8,605
Over 90 days past due but less than 1 year  #BiEI0KIE A1 4 328 13,516
1 year or over 1 year 1FS 1A B 49 8,178
13,526 30,299
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related BEB AR EZENE SRR R EAKEE
to customers that had a good track record of credit with the ERIF=E2HNEE - BIEBENEERD
Group. Based on past credit history, management believes % TEEMRE BAREE8E=VERAS
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of KEH) 0 B E AT 2 E L E
these balances as there has not been a significant change in WB AR SR ERE - AEET
credit quality and the balances are still considered to be fully Mot B B E Y WS 5 ERIERE A (T
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of A o
trade receivables that were past due but not impaired.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 00 AT ERNIBETIE Y SRSE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

These represented the listed equity securities in Hong Kong
held for trading purposes. The balances at the reporting
dates are stated at fair values which have been determined by
reference to the quoted bid prices at the reporting dates.

HEERERTELTRARZSAFIEEER
7o RNIE A 2 BHIEAFER2ERER
ZREEE)IIK -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED

23. RERREEEER TIEKME

BANK DEPOSITS TEX
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—+tF —ET—+tF
+=—BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cash and bank balances 5 MIRTTAE SR 244,373 571,732
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEER 244,373 571,732
Pledged deposits (note (a)) AT EE) 818,062 794,743

(@)

The deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank loans (as
detailed in note 27 to the financial statements). These deposits
earn interests from 1.44% to 2.10% (April 2017: 2.10% to 3.68%)
per annum. As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, the
pledged deposits are classified as non-current assets as it is
pledged to secure non-current bank loans.

Included in cash and bank balances, short-term deposits and
pledged bank deposits of the Group is HK$411,733,000 (April
2017: HK$641,938,000) of bank balances denominated in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through banks that are recognised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

GFRERBFRITUMEABRITERZER
(ANEFFEIRAR 27 R 54 ) » X FSTFREF
KA A4%E210%(—E—+FMW/ =+
H :2.10%%£3.68%) - R=ZT—+tF+_A
=t+—Bk=_ZE—tFNA=+H  BE&H
FRREE R EAIERNERITE R 2 ERM D
HAERHEE °

ANEBZIRE MFTES  BHERLER
FHIRITER BB TP Z BITTUAAR
([ AR ) FHE 21T/ #:411,733,000
BL(CZE—tEMA=1H1 : 641,938,000
BIL) c ARBIWIEAREBZER - R
BRER 2 INEEBIGH REE - BER
EERRTE @ AEBEES BERERETT
INEZETE 2 RITIE AR S AINE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24, ENEZERE
As at 31 December 2017, ageing analysis of trade payables R_ZB—+tF+=-—A=+—H EHEZK
based on invoice date is as follows: HIREZ ARSI ¢
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—+tF —E—tF
+=-BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
0-30 days 0-30K 222,131 37,075
31-60 days 31-60K 14,582 55
Over 60 days but less than 1 year FBHAG0KRIE D1 E 195 1,049
1 year or over 1 year 1FES1F A B 1,438 814
238,346 38,993
General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60 HERER 2 —RIEE N FE0RECOK °
days.

25. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. fE:tE& AR EAiE(TERIE

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—g—tF T LF
+=—A=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Accrued charges JEEtE A 33,897 9,306
Receipt in advance from customers B E FERTE 23,569 18,678
Other payables HAthfEBRIA 44,206 32,815
Government assistances BT ED 46,197 43,890
147,869 104,689
Government assistances represent payments granted by the BT BhiE R B & M Bk I st i R B 1T 2 28
local governments in the PRC in relation to the research and MITREMBAREBEERELEREFE L 23
development of tissue engineering and stem cell projects T8 o« ZEXEB RS BTE AR E B KR
carried out in the PRC. These payments will be recognised as VER L EBIER AW ©

income upon the approval from the local government on the
output of the relevant projects.
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BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

26. SHAREHOLDER'’S LOANS

As at 31 December 2017, loans from a substantial shareholder
of the Company (who held 21.09% of the shareholding of the
Company) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
one year except for the amount of HK$100 million, which is
for the potential acquisition of Lung Hang Investments Limited
(note 33) and repayable on the third anniversary date of the
advancement date of the shareholder’s loans.

27. BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings are

repayable as follows:

26. REEF

BE 2 ARE -
27. ATHER

BEBITEKWT ¢

R_ZT—tFE+_A=+—8 ' KELQF
TERFFFEARA21.00%#) 2 BER
REER  RERAER—FANER  HEHE
100,000,000/ TLER SN - X EFKIATI AR AJ
§EUBELung Hang Investments Limited ( & Bt
F33) - WEARKRRERBM A HRER=

RZB—+tF+_A=1+—H XEEZE

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—tF —E—+F
+=-B=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FATT
Current: ENER :
Bank loans, secured — repayable within IRITEN - BEE——FREE()
one year (i) - 28,345
Non-current: JEBNER :
Bank loans, secured — repayable over IRITEN - BEA——F1&
one year but less than five years (i) 1B : F R = i) 771,840 725,632
771,840 753,977
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

27. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised
cost.

(i) As at 30 April 2017, the current bank borrowings
represented bank loans with principal amounts of
RMB25,000,000, which were repayable within one
year and secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with carrying amounts of
HK$78,027,000 and HK$4,219,000 respectively. Such
borrowings were fully repaid during the period.

(i)  As at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017, the non-
current bank borrowings represented bank loans with
principal amounts of RMB640,000,000, which are
repayable over one year but less than five years. The
bank loans of RMB640,000,000 are secured by the
Group’s pledged bank deposits with carrying amounts of
HK$818,062,000 (30 April 2017: HK$794,743,000)

Interest rate of the bank borrowings was carried at fixed interest
rate at 4.750% (April 2017: 4.750% and 6.090%) per annum for
the year.

27.

RITHER(E)

At BARTTEK TV IRE A SRR o

(i)

R-Z—+FWMA=+H ' BIEREITE
FIEARE &7 A ARE25,000,0007T
AR —FAEE B D5 A78,027,000/8
JTX%.4,219,000/8 7T Z ¥ % - BE MR
LA R 1o VR IR RO ERITE RN -
BN - ZEERETBHREE -

RZE—tF+_A=+—HBEK=F
—+FMA=+H - JEENERRITE IS
BN —FRERFRNEZZERESA
R #640,000,0007C Z SE1TE K ° %%
A R #¥640,000,0007C 2 $R1TE AR
& E BRE(E 4818,062,000/8 L ( — &
—+FEMA=+H : 794,743,000 7T )
2 BIRIRERITIE SRAEH AR ©

AEERITERIZREEFMEL750% (==
—+tFPMA=+H :4.750%%6.090%):T & °

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. IEIERIIE
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference under B IR TIIRIE B BRI & B AL & P B
the liability method using the rates of taxation prevailing in the KRBT BRGNS ERETHE ©

countries in which the Group operates.
The movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows: REFTA B E 2 FFHan T -

Fair value adjustments arising
from other intangible assets

HBREEMEELEZ
DNEERE
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—t5F —T—tF
+=-A=+-—H MA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FBTT
At beginning of the year F4 78,411 90,306
Fair value adjustments arising from WEMTB AR FTEE 2

acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) ANEFAR(K17E39) 4,151 —
Credited to profit or loss for the year Bt AREE B (MIFE11)

(note 11) (5,610) (7,346)
Exchange differences EHERR 4,124 (4,549)
At end of the year FR 81,076 78,411
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses RZZ2—+tF+=—A=+—8 ' xEEE R
of HK$88,863,000 (30 April 2017: HK$90,919,000) available B) R 71 18 E515.88,863,000/4 7T ( — & —+4F 1Y
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has A=-+H :90,919,000/&7L) ' A AREINR
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the A F o B AR B8 SRR B9 A AT FEORIE -
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will expire W B FRIE BB R EERIEEE - HIE
after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were BRI EEA S FRETSFEEIE -
incurred.
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BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BRA
31 December 2017 30 April 2017
Z2-tF+ZA=T+-8 ZE—tFMA=TH
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RH#E 2 i i
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TATL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ ZRAE001ETLZ E AR
Authorised: EERA -
Atbegnningof theyearand ~ FHIRER
at end of the year 100,000,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
At beginning of the year 1) 17,585,790,000 175,858 17,692,180,000 176,922
Shares repurchased
and cancelled (note) REAEN GG - - (6,390,000) (64)
Atend of the year EX 17,585,790,000 175,858 17,585,790,000 175,858
Note: FifaE
On 8 September 2016, the Company cancelled 6,390,000 of its shares RZE—RFNLANB » KA A]:E$H6,390,0000%
in respect of the repurchases made on 26-29 July 2016, 1 August 2016 HRZE—RFLtAZ+AHEZ-+HhH =T
NENA—BEZZE—A"FNA=BERAE

and 3-5 August 2016. Details of the share cancellation were contained
in the Company’s announcement dated 8 September 2016.

All these ordinary shares issued by the Company during the years rank
pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

Bl 2Bty - BRERMDEHEZFBHN AR B
REZE-ANFAANBZRE

ARARBEFEEITZAEERRNE T EGHE
ERZRAEANF RS EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —Z—+tF A A —HRBRE T —+tF+ A =+ —H LB

30. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 30. ERA B ZBEARR R

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017 R-B—tH&+=-A=+—H

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—t5F —T—tF
+=B=+—H WMA=+H
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
MosE FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y12 - B Bk 107 86
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WEINBLR 2R 100,000 =
Interests in subsidiaries ALIEINGIPA S5 1,064,516 200
1,164,623 286
Current assets RENEE
Deposits and prepayments 2e MIBNRIEA 5,996 16,153
Financial assets at fair value BAFERERIRS
through profit or loss DRIEE 12,154 12,036
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EYNGIE S 1,701,644 2,493,180
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 1,367 69,586
1,721,161 2,590,955
Current liabilities REERE
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE A R E M E R ARIE 12,092 7,919
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHTB A RIRIE 189,059 142,693
Shareholder’s loans R E R 355,792 =
Current tax liabilities EHNIBAE 1,326 1,326
558,269 151,938
Net current assets REBEEZE 1,162,892 2,439,017
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBEE 2,327,515 2,439,303
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Shareholder’s loans fRERE R 100,000 =
Net assets EEFE 2,227,515 2,439,303
EQUITY B
Share capital HﬁZ’S 29 175,858 175,858
Reserves [ 31 2,051,657 2,263,445
Total equity HRER 2,227,515 2,439,303
On behalf of directors RRESE
Mr. Chen Chunguo Dr. Ray Yip
REREL£E E2ERL
Director Director
EE EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

31. RESERVES 31. @&
The Company A=
Share
Share option Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
KiiaE BRERE EiRE ZitEE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT TAT TAT
At 1 May 2016 R=E—~ERA—H 3,198,791 44,943 13 (799,298) 2,444,449

Shares issue expense EATb = = - - -
Exchange gain on translation of R EEINERITHREK 2
financial statements of foreign ~ JE Mz

operations - - 1 - 1
Issue of share options BIRERE = 28,520 - = 28,520
Lapse of share options BRI - (38,789) - 38,789 =
Share repurchased and cancelled 2 &l R aF SRk (7 (1,799) = = = (1,79)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (207,730) (207,730)

At30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 R=E—+FEA=1ER
“Z—+%nA-AH 3,196,996 34,674 14 (968,239) 2,263,445
Exchange gain on translation of ~ REEINEREIBREK 2
financial statements of foreign ~ JEX 4t

operations - - 1 - 1
Issue of share options BRRE - 25,495 - - 25,495
Lapse of share options Bk - (7240) - 7,240 -
Loss for the period AERBE - - - (237,284) (237,284)
At 31 December 2017 RoB-t%

+ZA=1+-H 3,196,996 52,929 15 (1,198,283) 2,051,657
In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, BERHSHEHERNGDE ' ARRIZRMEERE
the share premium account of the Company is also available TRAl DR FREER - MEARA FBRNBEREES IR
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company is MERBBEYIKBEE @ BeHEH B E5E
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of BRESRHER -

business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to five years.

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

—tFRA-BRE_ZT—tF+-A=+—HILHH

2. IMEMEAE
1EREMT

AEERBELHEERETYE - AHHE
WA —ERE -

K& R - REAATBEHEEEEM A
ZARKEESERRMT

31 December 30 April

2017 2017

—E—+tF —ET—+tF

+=—BA=+—H MA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Within one year —FNRN 38,797 26,445
In the second to fifth year inclusive FCEFERF(BREERMT) 51,311 44,962
90,108 71,407

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group entered into
the framework agreements with independent third parties to
establish an ophthalmic clinic and a specialist hospital located in
Shenzhen, PRC. According to the terms of the two framework
agreements, the Group may have use of each of the two sites
for the first eight years following the date the relevant site
becomes available for use and the Group is required to share
49% of the audited net profit (after tax) of the specialist hospital
with the independent third party during the term of that lease.
Thereafter, the Group may elect to continue to rent the sites
at a rental to be determined by reference to the then prevailing
market rate for the seven years that follow. As at 31 December
2017, the Group has not yet used these sites.

REBE-_T—tFMNA= +E¢¢F AREE
lﬁﬁj%_ﬁﬁiﬂ kS R E
ARYNBCSL — ER T2 P Je — ﬁﬁﬂ &fe o 1R
FW@E R 2 55K - AEREAIRNBRES
Pl fE A 2 AR B 8\ F A% ES
B BEARSEARNHEFHRERBE= E
D FBERBF49% KL ELFFE(RR) °
% AEEREBEEHEZZTSM a"\ﬂfﬁ
K2ELFRIGBITTISMNEREE - R-F
—tF+-A=t—8  AEERRPHEZ
FI5FT
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B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

33. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 33. EAXKHEMAE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital and other
commitments as follows:

NZZE—+FE+-A=+—0 xEEZE
ARG EAMAFENT

31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—tHF —E—tF
+=—A=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FATT
Capital commitments for property, B REIE ¢
plant and equipment:
Contracted but not provided for: BEREERETL :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB Y% - E LR E 4,125 15,038
Total 4,125 15,038

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the
University of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and
tissue engineering. The Company agreed to provide GBP9
million (equivalent to HK$90.1 million) to the University of Oxford
by instalments over the period covered by agreements. Up to
31 December 2017, the Company has paid GBP4.75 million
(equivalent to HK$52.65 million (April 2017: GBP4.5 million
(equivalent to HK$52.6 million)) to the University of Oxford.

On 31 March 2017, the Group entered into the commitment
letter to subscribe for the interests in Haitong International
Zhong Hua Finance Acquisition Fund I, L.P. (“the Fund”),
an exempted limited partnership to be established in the
Cayman lIslands, and irrevocably undertake to make a capital
contribution of US$75 million (equivalent to HK$585 million)
to the Fund as a limited partner of the Fund, subject to and
assuming the satisfaction of the conditions contained in the
limited partnership agreement and subscription agreement of
the Fund and acceptance by the general partner of the Fund.
Up to 30 April 2017, the Company has not yet made any
payment to the Fund.

AN EAEREAEG S E ALK TR
TR LMD E B % - AR RIRER T
M 2 B M) 4R K B9 B 449,000,000
% (A& 790,100,000/ 7T) - HE2—T—+
F+-—A=1+—H  XRRIERFEZAES
4,750,000 2% £ (#8 & 7 52,650,0007% 7T )
(ZZE—+tFMA=1H : 4,500,0005 £ (45
E152,600,000/87T))

RZB—+F=A=+—RH  XEEFTIR
f# Haitong International Zhong Hua Finance
Acquisition Fund |, L.P.([ &% ) (A RHS
HENI 2 EHREEREEERER)ERN
AYER - WA AEERER ZBR
&% AMES£)FE75,000,000% 7T (HE R
585,000,000/87T) * EAFGFESZBREME
& Rt aE MR Bt PT 8l Z IR I EZ R IA
NEESZ EREBAEMNELEE - &
EE—FMA=1+H AAREARME
© X HEAIFRIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

33. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

(CONT'D)

On 15 July 2017, the Group entered into the limited partnership
agreement and subscription agreement of the Fund. On 7
November 2017, the Group entered into the amended limited
partnership agreement of the Fund and the Group’s commitment
in the Fund as a limited partner has been reduced from US$75
million to US$35 million (equivalent to HK$272 million). Up to
31 December 2017, the Company has paid HK$214,691,000
to the Fund and such balances were classified as available-for-
sale financial assets under non-current assets.

On 10 December 2017, the Company entered into the
framework agreement with an independent third party in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Lung Hang Investments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability.
Lung Hang Investments Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution, trading and
sale of proprietary Chinese medicines, chemical raw materials,
biochemical products, chemical medicine preparation and
health food and other related business in the PRC. The amount
of the consideration for the potential acquisition shall be in the
region between HK$3.6 billion to HK$3.8 billion, subject to
further bona fide negotiations. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2017.

According to the framework agreement, the Company shall
pay HK$100 million to the existing shareholder of Lung Hang
Investments Limited within 7 days from the signing of the
framework agreement. This payment is non-refundable and
if the proposed acquisition materialises, this payment shall
be applied as part payment of the consideration. As at 31
December 2017, the Company paid HK$100 million and
classified as deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries under non-
current assets.

For the purpose of this potential acquisition, All Favour Holdings
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company which
held 21.09% of the shareholding interests of the Company
as at 31 December 2017, advanced HK$100 million to the
Company to pay the deposits pursuant to the framework
agreement. This shareholder’s loan is unsecured and interest-
free. If the Company proceeds with the proposed acquisition,
the Company shall repay the shareholder’s loan on or before
the third anniversary date of the advancement date of the
shareholder’s loan.

33.

BN EAhAdE ()

N_ZE—+F+A+HB  AEEFVAR
ERMERECRBH ZE R2T—tF
+—AtR  AEEFNEETBRE R
ENESREBE  AEBEAEIERBRA
B ARES)TE RS EER75,000,000FTH
2 35,000,000 7t (48 & 7272,000,0005%
) cBEZT—+tF+=-A=+—H &2
AIE MES S 14214,691,000/8 7T © #4585
MAIRHEEE N2 AIRHESREE °

RZZFE—tF+ZHATH  AARIHEBIE
=FHRIER W - AR A REEKELung
Hang Investments Limited (7 % 8 2 Z B &
A2 BERAR) 2 2HEZITRA -
Lung Hang Investments Limited X £ K & A
RIEERPENEFREE  (LEBRFE - 4
fbER (LB2EIBRRERROEE - 9
$H - B NIHEEBUAREMABZER - &
W IE =18 v KBS EN T I6IEHETEI8
BT EEFE—TENERET - £—
FHBHRARRABHAE-_E—tFTH
THEZAE -

RIBERE - NARERELERHGREE
7HAMLung Hang Investments Limited{ &
BRRLZMEBT - ZERBRTITRE -
WEZWEEIEERE - ZEXESRERE
HEs - R —_FE—+F+-_A=+—
B ARRBEXMUEST  WHEAIER
BEEET 2 WEMNB AR RS -

BETRBEEKESE  AQRZEER
REEERBERAR(RZZE—tF+=A
=t+—BEBRRAF21.09%[% ) FZA A7)
BB T RIE LR IBAE R e X iR
T ZERRERAERALEE - AR
REITEBWEEE  ARABRBREER
BNAMER ZRFERARZAEERRE

=+
oo
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33.

34.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
(CONT'D)

The Company has reached agreement with the substantial
shareholder that if the Company decides not to proceed
with the proposed acquisition, the Company shall nominate
the substantial shareholder as nominated purchaser for the
potential acquisition and the substantial shareholder agreed
to proceed with the proposed acquisition. In such event, the
obligation to repay the shareholder’s loan by the Company
shall be deemed discharged when the substantial shareholder
enters into the sale and purchase agreement of the potential
acquisition.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011 (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the directors may grant options to (i) any
eligible employee (means any employee, whether full time or
part time employee, including any executive directors and non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and
any invested entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; (i) any customer
of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity
that provides research, development or technological support
or other services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v)
any shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any invested entity. The period of the Scheme shall
not be more than ten years from the date of adoption of the
Scheme.

33.

34.

BN EAhAdE ()

ARREHREZRRERTLHE - WAR
ARENETEBUESE - ARAHEE
TERRESEBEWESTHNEEERT - M
T2RRABETEZWEEE - RZBER
T ARAEERRERZAEEREE/E
REBBERMEZWBF AL E B i
FETT e

B

RKABBE—ER-_ZE—FNA+HAR
BRFRRM—IBERETEI([FTE]) -
RIZETE] » EER] A TFI A T L RS ARAE DA
REAQRRG : )AQR) - HEAWEA
RINRERFTIEE TR 2 (T4 ERES (BT
ARz FkBES  SREENTESRE
HITES)  ()RAEBEMAKE QR REM
Fris E B HEE RS R < EAHER
(AN RE R EER 2 ERNER  (v)
RSB S EMATIRE B BIREME - F%
SRR ST B S A M AR TS 2 AR A TS E RS
MW AEEKEMKE QAR KERTIEEE
BE 2 R IR R sk AN SR B AT A B A R A E A
Fri% & EEE 21T 2 EMFEH 2 EFF A (F
[ 2EE])  FEZENNRERLEEY
REBAEZ BEEMEL BRI S8R &
AEBGUBERERESES - WKk
AEEREFRIEEERMSEEZANE
IR o G HA R ANET 2| A R AT NS A T
ﬁzo
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B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

34. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the Company, or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option period to be determined by the directors is at their
absolute discretion shall not be more than ten years after the
date of the grant of the share option (“Option Period”). Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during the Option Period after the option has been
granted. The exercise price should not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grants, which
must be a trading day; or (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its shares.

During the period, 500,000,000 options (year ended 30 April
2017: 227,330,000 options) were granted under the Scheme.

4. IBirE ()

BRIEEB AN RIMEA A - RIBETEIR 7%
2 BB AE S R 2 R D BB S BB AR A
R EIE BE TR Z210% © LEIh
TR IRET B4 M i M AR T3 2 B AR e T
Al FETZARRKRDEE LR - TSEBAE
KRR THE BTG 230% o RAEMR12
18 A HAf A AT M fE ] A L3R 2 BB S &
Z BB B TERBIEARR R AR R HEE %
TRRBZ21%  fMAARQ R EEREK B L
FENTESHEMESZEZIHEARLZ
BEREBBARARKRAZ01% X EEBB
5,000,000/8 7 + B BES AR B IR EHL
)E °

PR 2 R R R ) B EAEE 28 H HAfA
MRS - MEXENBRERASN1E
T BREMEAEFERNBEE - H
NS BE LB E B R +F ([RAE
Hif |) - RO BBAER - BB A B R
AR A % FR 5T 81 iR R BB B T DATT{E » 1T (B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

34. SHARE OPTION (CONT'D) 34. BIRE(E)
The following tables set out the movement in share options: TR B 2 #
Outstanding at Granted Transfer Lapsed Outstanding at
Name or category Share 1 May during during during 31 December
of participant option type 2017 the period the period* the period 2017
R=B-tF R=B-tfF
EA-A tZA=t-H
SEAT LSRR ERERD BRI B ] BN BRI
Directors gz
Executie diectors HiTEE
Chen Chunguo REELE 1202017 - 500,000,000 - - 500,000,000
Mr. Wong Sai Hung BHELE 04/2016 7,560,000 - (7,560,000) - -
(resigned on 30 November 2017) (R_EF-t£ 04/2017 24,000,000 - (24,000,000 = =
T-R=THEM)
Dr. Shao Zhengkang yREL 04/2016 12,030,000 - (12,080,000 - -
(resigned on 8 September 2017) (R=T—LFAANBRE) 042017 23,000,000 - (23,000,000, - -
Non-executive dlrectors FHEE
Professor Cui Zhanfeng EOEHE 04/2016 9,630,000 = = = 9,630,000
04/2017 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
Mr. Wang Hui TERE 04/2016 1,750,000 - - (1,400,000) 350,000
(resigned on 8 September 2017) (R=T—LFAANBRE) 042017 2,100,000 - - (2100000, -
Indepencient non-executive directors BV 712 %
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BARLE 04/2016 2,100,000 - - 2,100,000 -
(resigned on 15 September 2017)  (R=E—+#& 04/2017 2,400,000 - - (2,400,000 -
NATHARHD)
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny YRELE 04/2016 2,010,000 - - - 2,010,000
04/2017 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RmgsE 04/2016 1,930,000 = = = 1,930,000
0472017 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
Sub-total 15t 97210000  500,000000  (66,590,000) (8,000,000 522,620,000
Employees k&
In aggregete = 04/2016 78,680,000 - 12030000 (158460000 74,864,000
04/2017 111,110,000 - 23000000 (31,710,000 102,400,000
Consultants B
In aggregete G 04/2016 20,880,000 - 7,560,000 (3078000 25,362,000
04/2017 27,920,000 - 24,000,000 (6,336,000 45,584,000
Total a5 335,800,000 500,000,000 - (64,970,000 770,830,000
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

34. SHARE OPTION (CONT'D)

During the period, share options granted to directors,
employees and consultants have been transferred in view of (1)
Mr. Wong Sai Hung was resigned as director of the Company
and acted as consultant of the Company; and (2) Dr. Shao
Zhengkang was resigned as director of the Company but
continued to be employed by the Company during the period.

For the period, share options lapsed were due to 64,970,000
(year ended 30 April 2017: 142,190,000) share options issued
to directors, employees and consultants who resigned/retired/
ceased to provide services to the Group. As a result of the lapse
of share options during the period, an amount of HK$7,240,000
(year ended 30 April 2017: HK$38,789,000) were debited to
the share option reserve and credited to accumulated losses.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted, as the directors consider that the
share options granted is an extra incentive to the consultants
and no specified identifiable goods or services to be provided

to the Group.

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017 are as follows:

—tFRA-BRE_ZT—tF+-A=+—HILHH

BE(E)

B EREHHELEDHEARAARES
WHRERAFER - RQ)BFBEE LD EHE
ARREE - MERHIANBEARRER - &
TEZ  BERERZBRED TAEE -

H - BBRE RS R mEHT, RIS
E%ﬁﬁlﬁ1%ﬁ2%$ 1B 8 MR 3
17264,970,0003 (HE2=—ZE—+FHWH A=+
Eiiﬁ : 142,190,00017 ) RE AR #E - A&
IR EAR R0 » 7,240,0008 T(HE =
—+FMA=1+HIEFE : 38,789,000/ 7T)
WA BRI AT A RFTEE ©

HRESRRPIR L 2 BT R R (F
2 BSNEED - R A A AN SR R 2 K
TE Al AR S an kAR A - BRARAETT 2 PARERS
REIBEXNERRXHZ A HENESE
PR HRE R 2 A HEETE -

R_F—+tF+-_A=1t—BER=F—LtF
Eﬂf+52%k%ﬁﬁ&M#mT-

Date of grant
RiiAH

Vesting period
SR

Exercise period

18

Directors and chief executive

officer
ESRTBAR
16 September 2015
ZE-REARTAA

16 September 2015
ZE-REAATAR

16 September 2015
Z-RENATAR

16 September 2015
ZE-REARTAA

16 September 2015 to
16 September 2016
ZT-RENATARE

ZENENATRR

16 September 2015 to

15 September 2017
S-RENATAAZ
‘*—tﬁhﬂ+£ﬁ

16 September 2015 to
15 September 2018
“Z-REAATARE

ZZ-\FAATHA

16 September 2015 to
16 September 2019
“E-REAATARE

“Z-AENATRA

16 September 2016 to
15 September 2025
:Z‘ NENATARR

ZZCRENATRR

16 September 2017 to
15 September 2025
ZEtENATRE

ZECRENATRRA

16 September 2018 to
15 September 2025
ZE-\ENATARE

ZZ-RENATHA

16 September 2019 to
15 September 2025
ZE-NEAAT/RE

ZZCRENATRR

Number of options
ERERHE

Contractual ~ Contractual 31 December 30 April

exercise price  life of options 2017 2017

) e A

A0GRE BRERNER  tZA=t-R MA=tH

HK$0.45  10years 3,064,000 7,402,000
0458 10§

HK$0.45  10years 2,714,000 7,402,000
04587 10§

HK$0.45  10years 2,714,000 7,402,000
0458 10§

HK$0.45  10years 2,714,000 7,402,000
0458 10§
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

34.

SHARE OPTION (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at n=
31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017 are as follows: (Cont’d)

—+FHRA—HEE-Z

—tF+- A=+ HILHHE

34. BIRRE(E)

—+F+-_A=+—"HBRk_ZT—
WA=+ B 2 BRI GIT : (8)

+E

Number of options
EREHE
Contractual ~ Contractual 31 December 30 April
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2017
“E-tE “E-tf
RitEH RS 8 A0GRE  BRERNER  tZA=t-A MA=tA
Directors and chief executive
officer (Cont'd)
ESR
THEE(E)
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$0.45  10years 2,714,000 7,402,000
“F-TENATAA 15 September 2020 15 September 2025 045%T  10%
“E-RENRTAER “E2-EENATAAR
ZZZEENATRA “ECRENATRRA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$0.29  9years 1,740,000 12,040,000
“E-~EnANA 8 September 2017 8 September 2025 02981 9%
ZEENANRE “2-tENANRE
“E—tENANR “ZZREAANA
9 Sep tember 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2018 to HK$0.29  9years 1,740,000 12,040,000
“E-RNENANR 8 Sep ember 2018 8 September 2025 02981 9%
“EENANAE “2-)\ENANAZ
“E-\ENANR “Z-RFNANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2019 to HK$0.29  9years 1,740,000 12,040,000
“F- ENANR 8 September 2019 8 September 2025 020%8T 9F
“2- ENANRE “E-NENBNBZ
“Z-NENANR “Z-RFAANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$0.29  9years 1,740,000 12,040,000
“E-~EnANA 8 Sep tember 2020 8 September 2025 02981 9%
“EENANAZ “E-EENPNAZ
“E-EENANR ZZZREAANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2021 to HK$0.29  9years 1,740,000 12,040,000
“E-RNENANR 8 September 2021 8 September 2025 02981 9%
ZE-NENANAE “EC-FNANRZ
“E--ENANA “Z-RFNANR
25 January 2017* 18 July 2017 1o 1 April 2020t HK$0.3025 10 years 150,000,000 -
“F—t5-A-11A 31 March 2020 24 January 2027 0302557 104
ZTtELATNRE “ZTEMA-AZ
“E-TECACTR 2= tE-f-tnA
25 January 2017* 18 July 2017 to 1 April 2021 to HK$0.3025 10 years 150,000,000 -
“E—t+5-A-T1f 31 March 2021 24 January 2027 03026% 10§
“ZtELATNRE “Z--EMA-AZ
“E--E=A=1-H “E-tE-ACTRA
25 January 2017* 18 July 2017 1o 1 April 2022 to HK$0.3025  10years 200,000,000 -
“E-t5-A=TEA 31 March 2022 24 January 2007 0302587 104
I 2 o A= - ZZEMA-AZ
“E--£-f=1-H SoHE-ATA

2017 3 TEIBEBRERARAR
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

BE(E)

R-FB—+FT_HA=1T—HBE_F—+F
WA=+ B2 BRI T : ()

34. SHARE OPTION (CONT’D) 34.

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Number of options
BREHA
Contractual ~ Contractual 31 December 30 April
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2017
) ) -t Z2-4E
RiAS BB e A0GRE BRERHER  TZA=t-A MA=1H
Employees
4]
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45  10years 14,972,800 15,736,000
“E-RENATAR 15 September 2016 15 September 2025 0458w 10%
“B-REAATRE B ENATSRE
ZE-NENATEHA “ZCREAATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$0.45  10years 14,972,800 15,736,000
“2-TEAATAR 15September 017 15 September 2025 04587 10§
Z-1ENA1AE “EtENRTAEE
TIE-ERATEA ZZRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HKS045 10 years 14,972,800 15,736,000
“E-IEAATAR TSSeptember 218 15 September 2025 0455 10§
Z-1%ENA1AE “2-\ENR+AHE
e \ERATEA ZE-REAATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$O.4_5 10 years 14,972,800 15,736,000
ZZ-IEAATAR 15 September 2019 15 September 2025 0455 10§
ZE-RENATARE Z2-NEAATSBE
ZE-NENATERA “ECRENATRRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$Q.4_5 10 years 14,972,800 15,736,000
“EF-RENATAA 15 September 2020 15 September 2025 045%T 10%
“E-RENRTAEE “E2-EENATAAR
ZZ-EENATRA ZE-REAATRRA
9 Sep tember 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$Q.2_9 9 éears 20,480,000 22,222,000
“F- ENANR 8 Sep tember 2017 8 September 2025 0203T 9
ZEENANRE ZE-CENANRE
“S—tENANR “ECRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2018 to HK$0.29  9years 20,480,000 22,222,000
“E-rNENANR 8 Sep fember 2018 8 September 2025 02081 9%
ZZ-ENANEE ZZ-\ENANRE
“E-\ENANR “E-RFNANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2019 to HK$0.29  9years 20,480,000 22,222,000
“E-RNENANR 8 Sep fember 2019 8 September 2025 02981 9%
ZZENANAE ZE-NENANRE
“Z-NENANR “Z-RFNANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2020 to HK$0.29  9years 20,480,000 22,222,000
“E-RENANR 8 Sep fember 2020 8 September 2025 02081 9%
“E-NENANRZE “E-ZENRNAE
ZZZTENANR “Z-RFNANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2020 to HK$0.29  9years 20,480,000 22,222,000
“E-RNENANR 8 Sep ermber 2020 8 September 2025 02981 9%
“E-ENANAE “E-ZENANAE
“EZFENANR “Z-RFAANR
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34. SHARE OPTION (CONT'D) 34, BIRHE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at R-E—tF+_A=+—HAR_T—+F
31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017 are as follows: (Cont’d) A=+ R Z B 1'%%7\&1'¢1¢QDT (%)
Number of options
BREHR
Contractual ~ Contractual 31 December 30 April
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2017
- “B-tf “E-tF
RiLBH R 1 E0OFEE  BREGHES  t-A=t-A MA=tA
CoFr%suItants
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45 10 %ears 5,072,400 4,176,000
“E-14nA Jr/\E 15 September 2016 15 September 2025 04581 10
:Z‘—ﬁﬁlﬁﬁRHi 2 /\ﬁﬂﬂﬁ\%
“E-NENATRA SZRENATRA
16 Sep ember 2015 16 September 2015 16 September 2017 HK$0.45 10 éears 5,072,400 4,176,000
S-RENATHAA 15 September 20 15 Sep fember 2025 0458 10
Z-1%NA1 A% :af TENRTARE
:x—tﬁﬂﬂ 1A S-RENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$0.45 10 %ears 5,072,400 4,176,000
“E-14nA Jr/\E 15 September 2018 15 September 2025 04581 10
“T-RENATAAZ 2 \EAAT/RE
“E-\ENATERA ZECRENATRA
16 Sep ember 2015 16 September 2015 16 September 2019 HK$0.45 10 éears 5,072,400 4,176,000
S-RENATHA 15 September 201 9 15 September 2025 0458 10
Z-1%NA1 A% “E-N\ENAT~AE
CIET-NERATER ToECREAATEA
6 Sep tember 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$0.45 10 %ears 5,072,400 4,176,000
“E-14nA Jr/\E 15 September 2020 15 September 2025 04581 10
ZT-RENATARE ZERENATARE
“ECTENATRA ZECRENATRA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 9 September 2017 HK$0.29 9 %ears 9,116,800 5,584,000
—Z 8 Sep tember 20 8 September 2025 020%T 9
“Z- /\ijlﬂjla_t x—tinﬂnﬁi
“F-tEnANA SZRENANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 to HK$0.29 9 %ears 9,116,800 5,584,000
ZE-NENANR 8 September 2018 88ep ember 2025 02981 9
ZENENANRE NEAANBE
“E2-\EnANA ZRENANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 9 September 2019 HK$0.29 9 %ears 9,116,800 5,584,000
—Z BSep tember 201 9 8 September 2025 020%T 9
“Z- /\ijlﬂjla_t x—jﬁnﬂnﬁi
ZZ-WENANR SZRENANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$0.29 9 %ears 9,116,800 5,584,000
ZE-NENANR 8 September 2020 88ep ember 2025 02981 9
ZENENANRE ZEENANRE
“ZZFENANA SZRENANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 9 September 2021 HK$0.29 9 %ears 9,116,800 5,584,000
—Z 8 Sep tember 202 8 September 2025 020%T 9
ZZENANEE :2:—% NEE
ZZZ-5nANR ZZRENA) \B
770,830,000 335,800,000
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34. SHARE OPTION (CONT'D)

*

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 January 2017, 20 March 2017 and the circular dated
26 June 2017 in relation to the conditional grant of Share Options
to Mr. Chen Chunguo to subscribe for up to an aggregate of
500,000,000 ordinary shares. On 17 July 2017, the Shareholders
excluding Mr. Chen and his associates (the “Independent
Shareholders”) has approved the resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”), please refer to the announcement
dated 17 July 2017 for details.

The Company had 77,205,200 and 67,160,000 share options
exercisable at 31 December 2017 and 30 April 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 770,830,000
(80 April 2017: 335,800,000) share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 4% (30 April
2017: 2%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 770,830,000 (80 April 2017: 335,800,000) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$7,708,300 (80 April 2017: HK$3,358,000) and share
premium of HK$240,345,760 (April 2017: HK$115,875,000)
(before issue expenses).

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

4. BhEGE)

=E

BIRMANR A T—+F—F_+H
H - —EBE—+H#=A=-1tHZAERBHA
—T—+FXA=Z+BZEK REE
BRRERLEBEHERLAIRES 5
%500,000,000/% L BAR 2 FEREHE - R=F
—+F+A++R - BRE(REEREER
HEge A ([BZRE ] ERBRREIAE
(TAREREFRIA® |) EHEZRES © 15
2HBEHA—T—+tFLtATERAZAE -

RZZE—+F+—_A=+—BER=ZZ—+
FMWA=+H " KXR7EHET77,205,2001%
67,160,00017 BE R R] F1T{E ©

RZZE—+E+_A=+—H K2 FH
770,830,000 (= E—+&EWA=+1 :
335,800,00017 ) 5 &1 T8 T 2 & A& 17 B Ak
T (EARRRRZEZEETRDH4% (=
T—+EMA=1+H:2%)  RARFEE
BARERET  BETHERTBRESSBE
NN B2 77770,830,0008% (= F —+4F /M
B =-+H : 335,800,0000% ) 58 4) & 8@ A% -
LRI AR 7,708,300 L ( —E —+ 4
MMAB=-+H : 3,358,000 7T) &% 75 % B
240,345,760/ L ( ZE—tF WA =18 :
115,875,000 70) GRIBREITHA) °

FERERE R IEFIIITEEMT ¢

31 December 2017 30 April 2017
“2-tf+tZA=t-H “E—tFWA=+H

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options

itk S il S|
TEE BREHE 1B BiRER
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT T4 BT T
Outstanding at beginning of year EMRAITR 0.36 335,800 0.32 745,660
Issued during the period/year 8/ ERET 0.30 500,000 0.29 227,330
Lapsed during the period/year 8/ ERER 0.35 (64,970) 0.29 (637,190)
Outstanding at end of year ERMAITHE 0.31 770,830 0.36 335,800

As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 8.36 years
(80 April 2017: 8.37 years).

MN-ZB—+FE+-_A=+—08 ' HMRITEE
R A FY DA 1S i B A A F R A8 .36 F (=&
—+FEMA=1+HF : 8.374F) °
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34. SHARE OPTION (CONT’D) 34. BBREE(E)

The weighted average fair value of each option issued
during the period was HK$0.127 (year ended 30 April 2017:
HK$0.193). The fair value of the share options has been
determined based on the Binomial model estimated by an
independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited. As
at the date of grant, the fair value of the options issued by the
Company during the period was HK$63,365,000 (year ended
30 April 2017: HK$43,970,000). The following significant
assumptions were used to derive the fair values:

HREITHNEHBREZ METEAFES
0127 T(BE_ZE—+FWA=1THIF
[§:0198%7m) - BREZ AFERBLE
X HEMZESBEETEERARBRE B\
RAEEEEE - WIREBE - KARIEREE
1TEERAE 2 A B A63,365,000/8 T (B2 —
T—+tFOMA=F+HIFE : 43,970,000/8
7T) ° A FETIEA TEARERSDL ¢

31 December 30 April

2017 2017

—E—+tF —EF—+F

+=-BA=+—H MA=+H

Underlying stock price (HK$) HHEARE(BT) 0.22 0.29
Exercise price (HK$) TEEGERT) 0.30 0.29
Risk-free rate (%) 47 [ R 1) 2R (%) 1.451 0.812
Annualised dividend vield (%) F % B B3R E (%) - -
Expected volatility of underlying share (%) FERER% (D 2 TE BRI 1R (%) 72.39 80.16
Weighted average remaining contractual life  HNAEF15 k&4 494 HA 9.998 8.995

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome. No special features pertinent
to the options granted were incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

During the year, share-based payments expense of
HK$25,495,000 (April 2017: HK$28,520,000), which included
share-based payment transactions with directors and
employees of HK$23,173,000 (April 2017: HK$24,597,000) and
with consultants of HK$2,322,000 (April 2017: HK$3,923,000),
have been recognised in profit or loss.

TEHDRK R A B R - BNARE LR IE AR
KBEWER  BEZARBBEN T —ERE
BRER HEFEATERTEMABHEDK
B AR A R IR B

FN - AR N EFH A25,495,0008 T (=
T—+EMA=+0H : 28,520,000 T) * H
PEFHEEREEZABRESNEBRERS
23,173,000 T (ZE—+FWA=+H :
24,597,00078 7T ) LA K EREA S 2 iR 7+ &
AR 52,322,000 (= E—+tFH A=+
H : 3,923,000%87T)  ENEImAER °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors, chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the
Company. The remuneration of the key management personnel
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends. The
remuneration of the key management (excluding directors and

chief executive officer) was as follows:

—t+FHRA—HEE-ZT—

tET - A=1T—HLLHH

35. BBERS
FTEEEASHE

AEBEEZEEABNARFES ~ TR
RENEENEE TEEEABZMET)
m T B 2 IRE A AT 2 KRB KL 58
ZEE  IREEABIMBREZRITHRAE
E@ZM@%E@Ti

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
B=Z—+tF
BA—HARE HZE
—E—+tF —T—+tF
+=H=+—8 MA=+H
1EHARS LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Salaries and other benefits Fre M E AT 1,890 2,409
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RONEFIET B TR 12 20
Equity-settled share-based payments DA o IRIES N E R 202 359
2,194 2,788

The emoluments of the key management (excluding directors
and chief executive officer) fell within the following band:

TEEEAE(TERESRITRER) B
SN FLATEE :

Number of individual

AB

Period from
1 May 2017 to Year ended
31 December 30 April
2017 2017

B-®—LF
TA—HEZE HE
+=A=+-—H MA=+H
LEHAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000

Z%1,000,000/8 7T
1,500,001/ 752,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7T % 2,500,0007 7T

- 1
- 1
1 _

Details of the remuneration paid to the directors and chief
executive officer are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as elsewhere in the financial statements and above, there
was no other related party transaction during the year ended Gh
30 April 2017 and period from 1 May 2017 to 31 December

2017.

HERMFE
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36. SUBSIDIARIES 36. MBI

R-ZFE—+F+=-_A=+—H ' KRQFIzE

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at

31 December 2017 are as follows: 2B ARIFFIBAT -
Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BEATEER RAAGERE
NRER AL/ E S BA/ BREX ERBLA) TEEBREENY
Directly Indirectly
HE 55
China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1S$20,000 100% - Investment holding,
RN EEEEREERAT] FBRIEE 20,000%7T Hong Kong
RERK &8
China Regenerative Medicine Tissue Engineering British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100%  Investment holding,
Limited KBRIHS E Hong Kong
HEBA RS AR TEERAT] RERK &8
FD(H) Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 100%  Investment holding,
EERLES 1007t Hong Kong
RERK &8
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company ~ The PRC RMB250,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales of
Limited (“Shaanxi Ajerfu’) i AR 8250,000,0007C tissue engineering skin
RELREAGTRERLR related products, the PRC
(TP EE]) FERAERRTIRRER
BER
Shaanxi AiBosin Bio-Engineering Company Limited ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Research and development
(‘Shaanxi AiBosin’) i A #2,000,0007C of tissue engineering
REXEEENTIRARAR((RALEL]) products, the PRC
HRABTRER &
Shaanxi AiNear Comea Engineering Company The PRC RMB3,800,000 = 100%  Research and development
Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear”) i A #3,800,0007 of tissue engineering
RENEEAEIRERAR(RALER]) products, the PRC
HEABTIRER &
Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering Company The PRC RMB3,800,000 = 100%  Production and sales of
Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear’) i AKH3,800,0007C bio-engineered comea,
RSB AR TRERAR (TRYILEE]) the PRC
EERHEENIRAE -
i
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 § —E—+tF A A—HEEZE _T—+tF+_-_A=+—H I B

36. SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

36. B A= (&)

Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BEATEER FARNERE
DAER MR/ G A/ BRExR ERBLA) TEEBREENY
Directly Indirectly
HE 55
Zhongsheng Medical Equipment Trading The PRC RMBG60,000,000 = 100%  Sales and distribution of
Company Limited i AR %60,000,00070 medical equipment,
PERREMHERRAR the PRC
HERDHBRRE -
Shaanxi Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd. (‘Reshine’) The PRC RMB117,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales,
REREEMRIEBRAR (hek]) i AR#117,000,0007 research and development
of tissue engineering
products, the PRC
HE  HERFBRELTR
Em PE
Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 51%  Sales and distribution of
(“Shanghai Hesid!") i AR #50,000,00070 cosmetic products,
LB crnERAR ([ HEH4E]) the PRC
HERD S P
Shenzhen Hesidi Bio-Technology Company Limited  The PRC RMBS5,000,000 = 51%  Sales and distribution of
(“Shenzhen Hesidl’) i K #5,000,0007C cosmetic products, the
AU MR AR AR (TRYI4 ) PRC
HERDHE  RE
China Bio-Med Technology Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Research and development
HARSRBER AT i AR%50,000,00070 of tissue engineering
products, the PRC
HRABTEER &
HK International Regenerative Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 80%  Provision of a healthcare
ERERELRERLER AR i 10077 service, Hong Kong
RUBERERS - &%
China Regenerative Medicine Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding,
HEBAREER AT &b 1871 Hong Kong

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

36. SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 36. BT (&)
Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BEATEER FARNERE
NRER AL/ E S BA/ BREX ERBLA) TEEBREENY
Directly Indirectly
HE 55
BioCell Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Stem cell operation,
BRAMBEER AR BE 18T Hong Kong
sffES - B
Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd The PRC RMB10,400,000 - 70%"  Sales and distribution
REEHNENTRERAF i AR%10,400,0007C of tissue engineering
products, the PRC
HERDHEATRER
i
AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd The PRC RMB1,470,600 - 70%"  Sales and distribution
B (BM) =B iEBR AR i AE#1,470,60070 of tissue engineering
products, the PRC
HERDHEATIRER
i
Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai Technology Co., Ltd  The PRC RMB20,420,000 - 51%  Provision of information
MIREEREERAR(RIREN) i AE#20,420,00070 technology services,
the PRC
PRt B ATARE -
Note: Mgz -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the
period or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group at
the end of the period. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end
of the period or at any time during the period.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

ERIHEEFRBRIER

BAEERAEENE

MAEEMREEFEIZHROZHBLRF - =
ERR  JHEMHBRARZHEECREAERN

Tk e

FIEMBARE REREEAH -

RER N HREAER  SENBARERE

AIEBES -

FEU (AT M B A RIRIE A MEIER - 28 RA

RERIER -
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

36. B AT (&

BieE : (88

36. SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Note: (Cont’d)

*

The Group does not have any equity interest in Tianjin Weikai
Bioeng Limited (“Tianjin Weikai”) and AK (Suzhou) Biomedical
Ltd (“AK Suzhou”). However, the Group has entered into the
contractual arrangements with Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou
and its equity holders, which enable the Group to (1) exercise
effective financial and operational control over Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou; (2) exercise equity holders’ voting rights of
Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou; (3) receive substantially all of the
economic interest returns generated by Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou in consideration for the management services provided
by the Group; (4) obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right
with an initial period of 10 years to purchase the entire equity
interest in Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou from the respective
equity holders. The right automatically renews upon expiry
until the Group specifies a renewal term; an (5) obtain a pledge
over the entire equity interest of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou
from its respective equity holders as collateral security for all
the payments due to the Group and to secure performance of
Tianjin Weikai’'s and AK Suzhou’s obligations under the above
contractual arrangements. Accordingly, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou and is considered to
control Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou. Consequently, the Group

AEBWESARFEIEY TRERAF]
(MR2EI]) RES FMN) EDEMmERA
A1([ RS (ERIM) D BRI - AT - A&
I B KR A el e BRI () R R s R A A
RN ARNGE - EAKEEH)TEHR
SRS R B (BRI B B 765 I A A )
B QT RREI R R (M) EERFE
AHIZERE ;- QUERR R EH K BB S (B M)
EERABHEENROR - ERAKELR
HHERRGONE « QECSESERRSE
ABERZEI LR EIMN) 2 BN T
FIRGH KB RER - YRERATF - 186
M mBs B EAER - AR BT ER]
FRERGRS - RE)EFSERRAAHR
RN =Y G 2R ER - (ER
AR SR B K A SRR IR S AR K02
@ R B (BRI BT Lt & KL HIR T HY
BiE - FEllt - AEEEEBRS ER2E
RES(FRMNEBMEXATZEMIFAFEE
135 B EEIRIZEH S B (BRI ) RO il 4
FEZEMIR - WRE RIS R E N R
L&) - Bt - REFBFERELR
AREERR R EL R R (FIM) RN B

AR e

regards Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou as the indirect subsidiaries
under HKFRSs.

REFIREI (BN 2 ek FBEREEE

The revenue, net loss and total assets of Tianjin Weikai and AK

Suzhou are summarized as follows: R -
Tianjin Weikai AK Suzhou
b= £k Bl (&)
31 December 30 April 31 December 30 April
2017 2017 2017 2017
—E—+tF —E—+F —Z2—+tF —T—tF
+=—A=+—H mMA=+H +=A=+-—H MmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT FET FAT
Revenue for the period/year — HAR,F AU EE 742 2,149 736 247
Net loss for the period/year iR, F R FE1E 7,317 5,583 4,968 8,612
Total assets WEE 101,990 107,254 76,964 73,901
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. eREERERIEBEIEHNE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value TR AEENEHEERBEREE
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities: MAFEE :
31 December 30 April
2017 2017
—E—+tF el
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Financial assets ETHMEE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 454,456 112,928
Financial assets at fair value BAFERERYIRZCRIBE
through profit or loss:
Contingent consideration receivables FEW A RAE 32,502 46,259
Loans and receivables: ER K EARIE
Pledged bank deposits BEEIRIRI TR 818,062 794,743
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFERERYRCRIBE
through profit or loss 12,154 12,036
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 120,600 =
Loans and receivables: BN EWERTE
Trade receivables JEW & 5 BRIE 279,806 39,117
Deposits and other receivables e R H b fEURBRTE 174,696 195,161
Cash and cash equivalents RekIBeEEAR 244,373 571,732
2,136,649 1,771,976
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Financial liabilities measured A E AT EZ ERATE
at amortised costs:
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERE 5 R1E 238,346 38,993
Accrued charges and other payables J@E%E?H R H M pE AR TR 78,103 42,121
Bank borrowings RITEK - 28,345
Shareholder’s loans IR E R 372,542 =
Non-current liabilities 3qu§1§{§
Bank borrowings RITEK 771,840 725,632
Shareholder’s loans IR E TR 100,000 =

1,560,831 835,091
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For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —Z—+tF A A —HRBRE T —+tF+ A =+ —H LB

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. eRIEERERAEES BHE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (#8)

(CONT'D)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREBHEARAFEIIEN SR TR 2 A FE

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: DT

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o  FE—4: HAMEERAGBRERTS
identical assets and liabilities; KRB (R AR

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within o F_f: EHBEEFAEBERE—RRE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either LASN - B (BB sk (B R B
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from SHABRBAZE &
prices); and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o  E=f: AREENABILIEIEIE
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). RIS ERNEASIE GERTE R A

HIR)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial TREEIBERAFERBRNZ D ERE

asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on RREATEFEBEENR AR &K

the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value &Rl o

measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —ZE—tF A A —HRERE T —tF+ A=+ —HILHHE

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. tREERERIABES BHME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (4&)
(CONT'D)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated REETERRAEARTFEFEZEME
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value B HBEAZAFBEEEHOT :

hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ B F=H &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAET THET THET
At 31 December 2017 R=E—t&+=A=+—H
Contingent consideration JEM S ARE
receivables - - 32,502 32,502
Available-for-sale financial AN ESHEE
assets 126,837 - - 126,837
Listed equity securities HEEE LMRAES
held for trading 12,154 - - 12,154
138,991 - 32,502 171,493
At 30 April 2017 R-ZE—tEMA=1+H
Contingent consideration JEN S ARE
receivable - - 46,259 46,259
Listed equity securities
held for trading HEEE LMk ES 12,036 = = 12,036
12,036 - 46,259 58,295
The listed equity securities are denominated in Hong Kong ETRAFSABTE - A TFEIRER
dollars. Fair values have been determined by reference to their ERHEBFTROEABETE
quoted bid prices at the reporting date.
The details of the valuation of the fair value of contingent U ARBAFEZGEFISRERMN
consideration receivable are disclosed in note 17. 17 °
There have been no significant transfers between levels in the RIS EIAE - BRI EE2ER -
reporting period.
The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of th¥EaFEREERE 0 AR EAFEERN A
measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous RARER T EEE) -

reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R T =E

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B ==

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

—tFRA-BRE_ZT—tF+-A=+—HILHH

I EEEE

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has a written risk management policy in place in
relation to credit risk associated with loan receivables. The
board of directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s exposure to a
variety of risks associated with financial instruments which arise
from the Group’s operating and investing activities. Generally,
the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its risk
management to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how these risks
are mitigated are described as follows:

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency exchange rates is
minimal as the group companies usually hold most of their
financial assets/liabilities in their own functional currencies.
Currently the Group does not have foreign currency
hedging policy but the management continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and those
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposure
on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of financial
assets and liabilities when necessary. A reasonable
change in interest rate in the next twelve months is
assessed to result in immaterial change in the Group’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses. Changes
in interest rates have no impact on the Group’s other
components of equity.

K%E@E%%%i@ﬁ#&ﬁ&ﬁ%@bqﬂ
FERERTAMAEMERR - MEERE
EmiZER(RREREEER - FIRER &Em
EBifER) - EERRMRBESRR

AEEHTERREFBRNEERRZE
Eﬂﬁﬁ BRR EFeCEHARERET

DT TE R ES - PAE TR I B AT AR SR [ P
xﬁ%@ﬁ%li‘“%&&ﬁ%ﬁ%izizzfﬂl
Az AR - —RME  AREHERE
B R ERRS L‘Mﬁ%éi&ﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
B o TR T AMER 2 Rk K&
A R BREREanT :

@ SNEEFE

RRAKERE T ARG RH AR
NEeMEE/AF  HASEHEREX
BB E R o KB B A ESNE SRR
R EEEE-EEEFAEINERRILRN
BRERZREHERINERR ©

) FEmEE

BEYPNE 2 eMEENAEEASE
ERRESREMNEZRR - MAREEME
ZERMEERBEEAKE@mEATE
TR - AEBRHEEENXER -
TRV ERFHBESHEERBE A
B RARRT_EAMERZEEEFK
FEE B AR EAFEE R EE M R ER
WEEAEE o FRBEEANEEEaS
ZE AR WS o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(©

(@

Crediit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. As at 31 December
2017, 22% (30 April 2017: 26%) of the total trade
receivables were concentrated in the Group’s largest
debtor and 62% (30 April 2017: 83%) of the total trade
receivables were concentrated in the Group’s top five
debtors (all private companies incorporated in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan).

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks. The
credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
most of the Group’s bank deposits are deposited with
major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of
the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair value of non-current financial assets
was not disclosed because the carrying amount is not
materially different from its fair value.

—+FHRA—HEE-Z

P ERE

(©)

(@

—tF+- A=+ HILHHE

IE ( nlﬁ
EERE

REBZHBRARAZINEHMEERN
%E@Em%ﬁﬁﬁﬁwwﬂoﬁ%ﬁ
ZEERBREESEREEZTNEIBRY
%o%ﬁméﬁﬁz TEMBERZED
BRIV EERBEETE - FEEEER
Re R_ZT—+F+_A=+—H &
WE GERIARRRE 2 22%( —ZF—+ %"
A=+H:26%)&FREAEENR
KEBA - ERESREATEZ262%
T—+FPNA=1H : 83%)EHRK
EﬁﬁlmﬁkﬁﬁA FrAFLE AR
HRES - FER KA &ML -

AEERZRRITERRE - BRAK

B2 SRITIF RA R T B 78 R B
ZEBRIT MR RBITHEBZEER
REAR -
AT

ARBEERABERARE 2 ZEER
TABAKHNEHAZE - #Rg s
MEERBBZAFERAREEZE
BEYTEKX - ARFRBDERMEENR
FEEARAEZERY FEK - BIK
TR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(e

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group has net current assets
of HK$414,623,000 (30 April 2017: HK$840,837,000)
and net assets of HK$1,813,324,000 (30 April 2017:
HK$1,907,892,000) as at 31 December 2017. In the
opinion of the directors, the Group’s exposure to liquidity
risk is limited.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payment computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on current rates at the reporting date) and the

—tFRA-BRE_ZT—tF+-A=+—HILHH

R EE(E)
(e REELELE

$§%ZE{ BEH;QEFTI,\//\L@,%E%FE
2 BRESTHRSHE  BREH
EREZREBESFT K RZE—+F
+=A=+—8 AEBRBEEFE
#414,623,0008 L (ZZE —tF MM A
=-+H : 840,837,000/ 7T) * BEZEE
#1,813,324,0008 0(— & —+tF M A
=-+H :1,907,892,000/& 7T ) > EE:R
75"] ﬁ’g.mm@)ﬁ /‘/\IEﬁBEE’\]O

TRAJAKRENTESRBERESR
FHRZRBEOH - ZRDIREBEFTOR
MIRRERE(BIREITONEH(ER
FRIREBHRE B ZERRIRFEZF
BX ) RAKEAI AN R 2 RE A
iR e -

earliest date the Group may be required to pay:

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 years
HESER: 32 MERT BB1E
BEE HRERELE EZX BHR5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT AT THET
As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—t&+-A=+—-H
Trade payables EREZEE 238,346 238,346 238,346 -
Accrued charges and other [E&HE B R E (M ERERE
payables 78,103 78,103 78,103 -
Shareholder’s loan REER 472,542 472,542 372,542 100,000
Bank borrowings RITIER 771,840 837,302 - 837,302
1,560,831 1,626,293 688,991 937,302
As at 30 April 2017 RZZ-tFMNA=+H
Trade payables EREZER 38,993 38,993 38,993 -
Accrued charges and other [E&HE B R E(ER A
payables 2121 42,121 42,121 -
Bank borrowings RITIER 763,977 840,800 28,719 812,081
835,091 921,914 109,833 812,081
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In May 2017, the Group subscribed new shares of Kechuang
with the subscription price of RMB30,000,000. After the
subscription, the Group held 51.08% equity interests of
Kechuang. Kechuang is principally engaged in development
and sales of computer software and information system

39. EKEpHt

software related to lamellar keratoplasty recording. The Group RAEFRIIELEIT] # B 155 55

considered Kechuang can assist the training of doctors to be

familiar with the Group’s tissue engineering products within BT

Aierfu Business in order to facilitate its sales.

Details of fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

were as follows:

Eﬁﬁ%ﬁklﬁTZ%ﬂéﬁIEFﬁu :

RZZFB—+tFHA  AEBEIZREE /\Eﬁ%
30,000,000 T R A INEL B 2 A% D © IR
BB1% - $$lhﬁ/ﬂWWM1%%%%
i)llﬂauixfié%%ﬁ%ﬁ&iﬁ:.,jJiFﬁaﬂEMﬁ
uEffﬁF‘ﬁZE&H«(@&ﬁu? RE o REE
AEAEBER
LAfE {58

BAZAHEREERBBNHRFEFBTAT

HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) Y - s R (MIEE14) 1,438
Other intangible assets (note 18) Hibmp & E (fizE18) 23,393
Inventories & 1,658
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BAREREMEWRRIE 13,710
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁ/i\&fﬁ/\”ﬁlﬁ = 20,505
Deferred tax liabilities recognised upon fair value AT EARGERNEERIBAE
adjustments (note 28) (FfzE28) (4,151)
Net identifiable assets acquired B8 A2 Al R B E S E 56,553
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR R A (27,695)
28,858
Gooduwill arising on acquisition (note16) WhEmm 2 (MisE16) 5,309
Total consideration BR(E 34,167
Satisfied by: B I SEZ AT
Cash Re 20,500
Other payables E At ERIA 13,667
Total purchase consideration BEBENRE 34,167
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONT’D)

An analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of the subsidiaries was
as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —Z—+tF A A —HRBRE T —+tF+ A =+ —H LB

39. EBE/(E)

ERRBHREBARZRE MASFEEAR
HFBR DT

HK$’'000

FAT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAZHeRRSEEIER 20,505
Cash and cash equivalents paid ENEESRESEEEE (20,500)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEEBRAFHE 5

Since the acquisition date to 31 December 2017, Kechuang
had contributed HK$730,000 and HK$2,539,000 to Group’s
revenue and loss. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 May
2017, Group revenue and loss for the period ended
31 December 2017 would have been HK$503,680,000 and
HK$166,216,000 respectively. This pro forma information
was for illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 May 2017, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future performance.

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Kechuang mainly
represented (1) significant future prospect and the business
value of Kechuang and (2) synergy effect of the newly acquired
business with the existing tissue engineering business. The
Group has elected to measure non-controlling interests in the
acquisition at proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

QW%Eiify —tF+-A=t—8"

FYBBEAAEB z b m hEEER
730,0005%73&2,539,0007%73 J ;ETWE%E@

—tFRA-R#L  AEEHZE

—t¢+ A=+—BItHEz K &%E
J& 9 7l /4503,680,0007% 7T, K 166,216,000/
TC o WHEEERHERFARE - YRR
REWBR _T—tFAA—RATKAEER
ERSERNRGEREEES - TILIELER
REGERTER -

WERNHEEZAEEZR)RYIFA
MEARRA R RAEXEERQMTEBERS
HIEABTREEBHHRBE - AEEE
BRI E A BRI BRHEE EM L FIET
ST A FRITARBR AR

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. LEMHWBQF]
M-F—+E+H  AEEABIE=SH
AN TR 2 A M B A AP LAY
R AR AT (TRAXER]) 2 BERT
BRAREAEN A EERE - BRERARY
40,000,000 (#8 & 48,240,000/ 7T ) ° BR
TN ERE BU BB o

In October 2017, the Group disposed of the entire issued share
capital of Shaanxi Aimiya Bio-Technology Company Limited
(“Shaanxi Aimiya”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its amounts due to the Group to an
independent third party, at the total consideration of RMB40
million (equivalent to HK$48,240,000). Shaanxi Aimiya engaged
in production of cosmetic products.

PREGIEHEN N E Rz BEFEN T ¢

The net liabilities of Shaanxi Aimiya at the date of disposal were

as follows:

HK$’000

T
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB KRR 1,495
Inventories FE 2,918
Trade receivables U E 5 8R1E 94
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e B FREREmEWRRTE 2,449
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREeEFMEER 13,078
Trade payables BB SR (274)
Accrued charges and other payables FESTE A & E A R ARIE (6,726)
Amounts due to the Group e AN EE A (27,406)
Net liabilities disposed of HEzBEFE (14,372)
Amounts due to the Group assigned BN EMNAEE A 27,406
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary SN EB AR 2 W 35,206
Total consideration BRAE 48,240
Satisfied by: B TP EE AT
Cash P& 37,989
Other receivables E fib e Us BR 18 10,251
Total consideration BRAE 48,240
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS RAFE
Cash consideration received BUIRESRE 37,989
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZReMReEEER (13,078)
24,911
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 E —Z—+tF A A —HRBRE T —+tF+ A =+ —H LB
41. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH  41. RE&RERIFHE

FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities: BEEHEENBE R

Bank Shareholder’s

borrowings loans
RITIER MR E R
(note 27) (note 26)
(B&E27) (Bt5E26)
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FATT FATT
At 1 May 2017 RZE—+tFHA—H 753,977 =
Changes from cash flows: BemEdl
Proceeds from new borrowings T IRITE SKFTIS 5RIA - 472,542
Repayment of borrowings BEBNK (28,345) —
Interest paid BRFE (24,901) =
Total changes from financing cash flows BER S REE BT (53,246) 472542
Other changes: Hh &g
Exchange difference recognised in other REMEEWARNTER ERZ5
comprehensive income 46,208 -
Interest expenses FIEMAX 24,901 =
At 31 December 2017 R=FB—tF+=-A=+—H 771,840 472,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the period from1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 B —_E—tF A A —HEEZE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HIHHE

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 42, BREBHENERF

PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend

policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 30 April
2017 and 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$1,907,892,000 and HK$1,813,324,000 respectively, which
the management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities.

AEEERERZBRER

o  REAKERELLE ZREN  BERK
R R B3R N A E M) B e

o MRBAKEIZERERER: M

o RHBESAMBAKREZRAREIERE
5 o

AEBERGE MR NEERLEARRERE - i
FREABREEARBERIEHRERRER -
VEBAEERRESFTERNEARE - ]
R RFREREE ] RAKERERE B
REARX RIEAIRBEIEIRERE - XEH
B A3 B EREUE(] IEA B RR

EREERBRRAERAEEIER -HNE
—+FE+-_A=+—"BFE-_Z—+tFWMA
=+H ' EXELED RIZA1,907,892,000/%
JL}%1,813,324,00087 - EHREEEEER
BFEHz EAAST RIERIRRE IR E M
WRBEREEE MR -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

XA 4~z Th
B e
RESULTS e
Financial
period form
1 May 2017 to
31 December
Financial year ended 30 April 2017
BEMA=1HLHEEFE BZE-t%
TA-REE
ZE-tF
2014 2015 2016 2017 +=B=1-H
—T-mE “Z-1F —EF I 3 LB B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T T AT T
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(izE71) (sms51) (7)) (f=E51)
Revenue gy \ 510 2,817 27,751 356,987 503,680
Cost of services provided/Cost of sales ERERB LKA/
HEMA (352) (1431) (9.410) (219,462) (356,384)
Gross profit Z7 158 1,386 18,341 137,525 147,296
Other income Et A 5,662 2,101 110,981 45,144 49,909
Seling and distribution expenses HERDHHAX (2912) (8,226) (33,078) (66,796) (89,270)
Administrative and other expenses TRREMES (133,967) (162,899) (270,171) (322,464) (238,984)
Finance costs HBER (2,532) (3,058) (25,827) (24,426) (24,901)
Fair value gain on contingent consideration B AREZ ATE
receivables W - - 8,556 20,097 (15,876)
Impairment of goodwil HERE (141,657) (60,400) = = -
Impairment of other intangible assets e EERE - (41,432) = - -
Loss before income tax BRATEHAIER (275,248) (272,528) (191,198) (210,920) (171,826)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrER(FY) /B8 3,951 17,136 (3,326) 11,728 5,610
Loss for the year/period REE/HEER (271,297) (255,392) (194,524) (199,192) (166,216)
Attributable to: T
Owners of the Company NG 7PN (263,442) (250,098) (190,902) (184,502) (158,492)
Non-controling interests FERRRER (7,855) (5,204) (3622 (14,690) (7,724)
Loss for the year/period REE/HEER (271,297) (255,392) (194,524) (199,192) (166,216)
As at 30 April As at
REA=TH 31 December
2014 2015 2016 2017 RZB-tF
S “E-hf ERE “F—+% +zB=t+-AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAL T THL FEL
Total assets BEE 961,342 2,054,815 2,901,277 2,888,229 3,527,973
Total liabilities BEE (181,292) (210,600) (783,077) (980,337) (1,714,649)
Shareholders’ funds BRES 780,050 1,844,215 2,118,200 1,007,892 1,813,324
Note: PEE -

The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements.

BTS2 SEMR K RS R 2 BB 17 o
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